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Thanks to the unwavering trust from investors, Nissin
Foods Company Limited (the “Company”, together with
its subsidiaries, the “Group"”) has been a constituent of the
Hang Seng family of indices and eligible for trading via the
southbound trading link of Stock Connect since September
2020. The inclusion reflects investors’ continuous support to
the Group, and demonstrates the capital market’s recognition
of the Group's performance and business outlook. Currently,
the Company is a constituent of the following indices:

Hang Seng Composite Index

Hang Seng Consumer Goods & Services Index

Hang Seng Stock Connect Hong Kong Index

Hang Seng Stock Connect Hong Kong MidCap & SmallCap
Index
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Hang Seng Stock Connect Hong Kong SmallCap Index
Hang Seng SCHK Mainland China Companies Index
Hang Seng SCHK ex-AH Companies Index

Hang Seng Small Cap (Investable) Index
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On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Nissin Foods
Company Limited (the “Company”), | am very pleased to present the
Annual Report of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for
the year ended 31 December 2020.

In the midst of the COVID-19 pandemic, thanks to all the Group’s staff
who have been working hard together to ensure a stable supply of
products and sharing the belief of the Group’s founder, Mr. Momofuku
Ando, that “Food-related job is a sacred profession (IR A2 H:])",
the Group achieved a resilient performance for the year under review.
The Group's profit attributable to owners of the Company grew by
approximately 20.3% over that of last financial year and it achieved a
high profit growth year-on-year for the second consecutive year. The
Group's revenue grew by 14.0% year-on-year mainly due to the surge
in demand prompted by social distancing measures and a new normal
life. In particular, the revenue for the PRC operation achieved double-
digit growth in the RMB term for the third consecutive year.

Despite all production lines were temporarily suspended in the PRC in
February 2020 in compliance with the relevant requirement imposed
by the local governments to curb the spread of COVID-19, the Group
has continuously delivered unique foods, including Cup Noodles (&
#8) brand and Demae lccho ((HAT—T) brand through the expanded
geographic business territories and channels. Particularly, the demand
for bag-typed noodles such as Demae lccho (i AT—T) increased due to
stay-at-home economy in both Hong Kong and the PRC. Furthermore,
the increase in sales in non-noodles category including frozen foods,
granola, potato chips and Kagome vegetable and fruit juice contributed
to overall financial performance.
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The Group continued to invest in new businesses and reinforced
diversification to non-noodles business. In Hong Kong, it made a capital
injection to ValleyFarm Holdings Limited which produces and sells
indoor hydroponic vegetables in August 2020. Since then, it is deploying
a new production facility to expand the production of refreshing
hydroponic vegetables. In addition, the Group set up a production line
for pre-packaged ready-to-eat fresh-cut vegetable in Hong Kong and
the products are available for sale at certain supermarkets in Hong
Kong since December 2020.

Meanwhile, we formed a joint venture in Shanghai engaging in
distribution of Japanese brand snacks and beverages which has
commenced business since April 2020. This distribution business has
contributed to overall revenue and profit for 2020. Ultimately the Group
aims to create synergy with more sales in instant noodles and expand
sales network of snack and beverages through this new channel.

The Group also continuously invests in talented employees to equip
them with new management know-how, technical skill and knowledge
in order to promote a more localised organisation in the future.

The Group is committed to sustainability management as a responsible
company under the belief of our founder, Mr. Momofuku Ando, that
“Create food to serve society ([R&|&t])”. During the year, the
Group has taken various initiatives to demonstrate its commitment to
sustainable development. First, the Group is actively seeking the reduction
of carbon footprint and has installed solar photovoltaic on the roofs of the
manufacturing sites to enhance the usage of renewable energy. Second,
the Group has implemented various risk management system to ensure a
safe and stable food supply system as a sustainable growth company. Since
the outbreak of COVID-19 in early 2020, the Group has made available
precautionary hygiene supplies, such as surgical masks, hand sanitizers and
disinfectants in its inventory and disseminates surgical masks and hand
sanitizers to all its staff in order to prevent the spread of infections. Third,
the Group acknowledges the importance of sustainability in community
development and has therefore set up the “Nissin Foods (Hong Kong)
Charity Fund” focusing on initiatives that are supportive and beneficial to
the community and contributing to the development of education. The
charity fund also contributes to educational programmes at primary and
secondary schools as well as tertiary institutions, including scholarship,
research and development, events and activities in relation to food science,
nutrition, and physical education.

| anticipate COVID-19 will continue to impact the global economy
in 2021 even though vaccination program has commenced in major
economies around the world. However, as consumption upgrade trend
remains unchanged in the PRC and there is still a strong demand for
premium instant noodles, the opportunities for our instant noodles
business continue to expand. As the scale of business of the Group is
still relatively limited as compared to its competitors, there are rooms to
expand its business territory across the PRC and the Group is committed
to deliver more value added products to its customers, raising our brand
awareness to fully grasp the opportunities. In particular, not only is the
Group selling more Cup Noodles (&5 #&) brand but it is also increasing
the sales of bag-typed noodles such as Demae lccho (HHAT—T) brand
in the PRC. In terms of non-noodles business, the Group will continue
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to optimize the synergy with the noodles business and share logistics,
back offices and others with other businesses, thereby enhancing
financial performance of this business segment.
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Finally, sharing with all staff the belief of our founder, Mr. Momofuku
Ando, that “Peace will come to the world when there is enough food
(MR tF])", together we are fully committed to ensuring a stable
supply of affordable, safe and tasty food products even under this
challenging environment. In 2021, | am determined to paving way for
achieving sustainable growth for the Group in the future.
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Revenue
Gross Profit

Profit attributable to owners of

the Company

Segment Results
EBITDA

Total Assets

Net Assets attributable to owners of the

Company

Total Dividend per share (HK cents)

Earnings per share (HK cents)

Dividend Payout Ratio (%)

Net Asset per share (HK$)

TRACK RECORD 1 #4& T £%

Revenue in China

REWA
HKSmillion B &7 7T
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2,000
1,500
1,000

871.4
500

0

2019 2020

Revenue in Hong Kong
BERRBA
HKSmillion B & 78T
1,500

1,000

w0 6264

2019 2020
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10268 +17.9%
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+17.8%
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@ 1H L¥F

+13.1%
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EBITDA
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ShAE AR (B
BB GBI
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Segment Results in China

B I EE
HKSmillion B &7 7T
250
200
150
142.8

100 9.4
50
0

2019 2020

Segment Results in Hong Kong

BB IEE
HKSmillion B &8 7T
200
150
100 97.9
50 I 58.7
0
2019 2020

FY2020 FY2019 +-%
2020 BTERVEE 2019 HIREFE
HK$ million HK$ million
BEAT BEAT
3,518.8 3,087.8 14.0%
1,158.7 1,013.4 14.3%
32.9% 32.8%
301.9 251.0 20.3%
8.6% 8.1%
412.6 310.5 32.9%
11.7% 10.1%
570.0 4554 25.2%
16.2% 14.7%
5,183.9 4,633.9 11.9%
3,895.7 3,589.6 8.5%
14.05 11.70 20.1%
28.11 23.36 20.3%
50.0% 50.1%
3.63 3.34 8.7%
Proportion of Revenue
by Geographical Region
Zih @ & 2 WA LE I
FY Bk @ China 78
+17.4% 59.7
@ 1H L¥F Hong Kong &%

+43.7%

Proportion of Result
by Geographical Region
R EEI D 2 EEL B

FY BB @ China &
+65.5% 59.9%
@ 1H b Hong Kong &7%

+66.87%
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The Board is pleased to announce its annual results for the year ended
31 December 2020.

CARVING OUT A NICHE IN AN UNKNOWN SPACE

The year 2020 will be remembered as one of the most challenging years
in the recent history! The emergence and the outbreak of Coronavirus
Disease 2019 (“COVID-19" or the “pandemic”) since January 2020
and the subsequent evolution and spread of the pandemic variants on
a global scale dramatically reshaped the way we live in this uncertain
world. Governments from countries and cities around the world
proactively introduced a series of precautionary measures such as social
distancing, travel restrictions and even complete national lockdowns,
to curb the severe spreading of the pandemic. However, the measures
were largely ineffective and the world continued to submerge deeply
into an unknown space far beyond our imagination, with no sign of
recovery in the near future. The wide spreading COVID-19 has also
triggered a strong sense of insecurity, depression and anxiety among
the public. People’s lives are at an unprecedented level of risk which
has not been observed in recent history. The pandemic has adversely
impacted a wide spectrum of industries and has almost grounded the
global economy to a halt.

In Hong Kong, the Government has tightened and extended the social
distancing measures multiple times in year 2020 and has stepped
up with both mandatory and target group virus testing to contain
the pandemic. These necessary measures have hindered the normal
economic and social activities. At the same time, the pandemic also
prompted more consumption of the instant and convenient food as
they were strongly advised to “work-from-home” and “stay-at home".
In the PRC, vigorous measures have managed to control the pandemic
quickly in the first half of the year and the economy geared up its
momentum and returned to a growth phrase in the latter part of the
year.
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As a responsible food manufacturing company, we strive to ensure a
readily supply of affordable, safe and tasty food products to customers.
Under this difficult circumstance, the Company proactively offered
help and care to the community in need and fulfilled its corporate
social responsibility. During the year, the Company has been adjusting
its production line for instant noodles and frozen foods and closely
coordinating with our distributors, wholesalers and retailers in order
to react to the surge in demand of our products. The Company has
operated all of its production plants in Hong Kong right after the
Chinese New Year while the production plants were temporarily
suspended in the PRC amid the COVID-19 outbreak. Operation in our
production plants in the PRC resumed in the middle of February 2020.
Our attention to the customers’ demand has helped heighten our
reputation among customers and has essentially translated into a good
financial performance for the year under review.

As we sail through the crisis of the pandemic, one of the key elements
that help us a lot is our thorough risk management plan which defines
our responsiveness to sudden change. Being a food manufacturing
company, the Company has readily available precautionary hygiene
supplies in our inventory such as surgical masks, hand sanitisers
and disinfectants to fulfill our standard operating procedures. The
Company can deploy such materials to our employees and operations
in an efficient manner should there be a virus outbreak. Alternatively,
through our broad global procurement network, the Company can also
solicit and procure precautionary hygiene supplies easily to replenish
our inventory. This detailed preparation mechanism has warranted the
healthiness of our employees amid the pandemic.

It all comes back to one of our founder’s spirit over 60 years ago which
says “Create Foods to serve society”, i.e., to create a food culture and
provide people with happiness and inspiration. We hope our initiatives
will pave the way for our sustainable growth in the future.

FINANCIALS

For the year under review, our dedication in the provision of steady
food supply in both Hong Kong and the PRC has resulted in a resilient
performance for the Group throughout the year. Revenue increased
by 14.0% to HK$3,518.8 million (2019: HK$3,087.8 million), primarily
attributable to satisfactory performance in both instant noodles and
frozen foods businesses in Hong Kong as a result of the successive
waves of the pandemic, as well as the surge in demand for instant
noodles in the PRC. As reported in the 2020 Interim Results, the joint
venture distribution business commenced operation in April 2020
and has contributed to the revenue during the year. Gross profit
increased by 14.3% to HK$1,158.7 million (2019: HK$1,013.4 million),
representing a gross profit margin of 32.9% for the year (2019:
32.8%). The increase in gross profit margin was mainly attributable
to the reduction in utility overheads and the relatively stable price for
key raw-materials year-on-year, but was adversely impacted by the
commencement of distribution business in the PRC.

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED AERMAERARA
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At Adjusted EBITDA level™®), the Group grew by 25.2% to HK$570.0
million (2019: HK$455.4 million), representing the Adjusted EBITDA
margin of 16.2% for the year (2019: 14.7%). Profit attributable to
owners of the Company increased by 20.3% to HK$301.9 million (2019:
HK$251.0 million), representing a net profit margin of 8.6% for the
year (2019: 8.1%). Profitability has been improved substantially as a
result of the boost in sales and the better control in the operating and
non-operating expenses.

Note: Adjusted EBITDA is a non-HKFRS measurement which is used by the
management to assess performance of operating segments, allocate
resources and make strategic decisions. The measurement basis of
Adjusted EBITDA is defined as net profit before net interest expenses, tax,
depreciation of property, plant and equipment, depreciation of right-of-
use assets and amortisation of intangible assets. This also excludes share
of material gains or losses which are of capital nature or non-operational
related and fair value changes on financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss.

The Group's basic earnings per share increased to 28.11 HK cents for
the year (2019: 23.36 HK cents). For the fiscal year of 2020, the Board
has resolved to propose a final dividend of 14.05 HK cents per share
(2019: 11.70 HK cents), representing a dividend payout ratio of 50.0%
(2019: 50.1%) for the year.

As of 31 December 2020, the Company’s cash and cash equivalent
was HK$1,607.2 million and the gearing ratio was zero. We foresee
the Company should have enough resources to sail through the
unprecedented challenges ahead and to continue to deliver sustainable
business development and performance in the long run.
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INCLUSION IN INDEXES

As reported in 2020 Interim Results, with effect from 7 September
2020, the Company is selected as a constituent in the Hang Seng
Composite Index and its family of indices and is eligible for trading
via the southbound trading link of Stock Connect. This inclusion
reflects the continuous support from the investment community
and demonstrates the capital market’s recognition to the Group's
performance and business outlook. As reported earlier, the Company
has also been added to the MSCI Hong Kong Small Cap Index since
May 2019.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Hong Kong Operations

In Hong Kong, the threat of COVID-19 since the early 2020 has
seriously disrupted a wide range of local economic activities and
supply chain in the region, sparking a fear of economic recession,
unemployment and bankruptcy. With the disease evolving into a
pandemic in March 2020, the economic fallout became even more
severe. For the year under review, according to the Census and Statistics
Department, the Real GDP, CPI inflation and the total retail sales
value were unsatisfactory at -6.1%, +0.3% and -24.3% year-on-year
respectively. Although the Government has introduced a series of anti-
epidemic measures to contain the virus, the third and the fourth wave
of pandemic in the second half of the year has led to a more pessimistic
outlook in Hong Kong. As the Government advocates the change in
living style to “work-from-home”, “stay-at-home” and “eat-at-home”
to reduce the flow of people and social contact in the community, we
saw a surge in supermarket retail sales value at +9.7% for the same
period as customers stocked up daily necessities at home. Being one
of the market leaders in the instant noodles and frozen foods industry
in Hong Kong, the Company has been benefiting from such reshaping
behaviour for the year under review.

Revenue from Hong Kong operations increased by 9.1% to HK$1,418.4
million (2019: HK$1,299.8 million). In the beginning of the year, we
witnessed a sudden surge in sales for instant noodles and frozen foods,
as customers stocked up for food items that have longer shelf life and
are easier to prepare, which contributed to the sales growth during
the year. The trend for stocking up was amplified again and regained
its momentum in the second half of the year when Hong Kong
suffered from further pandemic cases. Currently, revenue from Hong
Kong operations accounted for 40.3% (2019: 42.1%) of the Group's
revenue.
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In terms of segment results, the Hong Kong operations increased
drastically by 65.5% to HK$165.5 million (2019: HK$100.0 million),
mainly due to surge in revenue from the instant noodles and non-
noodles businesses and the better control in the cost of sales and the
selling expenses during the year.

During the current year, the Group recognised government grants
of HK$43.7 million in respect of COVID-19-related subsidies in Hong
Kong under Employment Support Scheme provided by the Hong Kong
Government.

Instant Noodles Business

The Company has been optimising its product collections in Hong
Kong during the year. A series of new products have been launched to
promote the product price optimisation and a product upgrade. As a
household name, our signature brand Demae Iccho has recorded an
encouraging growth in sales amid the pandemic situation, benefiting
from the prolonged period of time staying at home. On top of the
original offerings, the Company launched the Hokkaido Wheat Flour
Sesame Oil Flavour Demae Iccho in July 2020, featuring 100%
Hokkaido wheat flour with a chewy in texture and exudes a sweet
wheat aroma. For Cup Noodles, the Company has further expanded its
Western-style flavor collection to three offerings with a new Mushroom
Seafood Chowder Flavour, as well as its Southeast Asian-style flavor
collection to two offerings with a new Thai Crab Curry Flavour.

To further expand the taste collection for our customers, the Company
has launched novel offerings under UFO, RAOH, FUKU and DOLL
brands, as well as the non-fried Bar Ramen and Bar Udon. We hope the
customers could find a moment of joy under this difficult time.

Non-Noodles Business

In the past few years, the Company consistently diversified its product
portfolio into the non-noodles business to broaden its product offerings
and to achieve further growth in Hong Kong. Our strategic move
proved to be a clear winner in year 2020 under the impact of the
COVID-19. For the frozen food products under the DOLL brand, the
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ready-to-eat microwavable items have been well-received by customers
for its convenience. KAGOME, vegetable and fruit juice products that
we have launched since 2018, was expectedly performing well this
year due to its advocacy of healthiness. For the granola business, the
Company has further introduced a new Strawberry Granola this year to
enhance its product collection.

This year also marked the first strategic movement for the Company to
enter into the vegetable businesses to cater for the health-conscious
customers. As reported in the 2020 Interim Results, the Company has
made an investment of approximately HK$7.1 million in setting up
its production line on pre-packaged ready-to-eat fresh-cut vegetables
in Hong Kong. This business has already commenced operation since
December 2020 and the products are available at certain supermarkets
in Hong Kong. In August 2020, the Company has also made a capital
injection of approximately HK$6.0 million to ValleyFarm Holdings
Limited (“ValleyFarm”) to invest in indoor hydroponic farm in Hong
Kong, whose products are for sale in Hong Kong. We foresee the
vegetable business would be a fruitful outcome in the future.

The PRC Operations

The beginning of year 2020 represented a rare start for the PRC
economy, with the economic growth severely impacted by the outbreak
of the pandemic and the GDP recorded its first-ever negative growth
since year 1978. In response to the pandemic, strict nation-wide
precautionary measures have been introduced throughout the country
to contain the virus. Thanks to a faster-than-expected recovery from the
COVID-19 and the strict control and prevention measures to curb the
pandemic, the PRC geared up its growth momentum in the second half
of the year and might be one of the very few economies in the world
to show positive growth in year 2020. As reported by the National
Bureau of Statistics of the PRC, the retail sales growth shrank by 11.4%
year-on-year in the first half of the year, but has rebounded quickly
since August 2020 and dropped by only 3.9% for the year under
review. All major areas ranging from manufacturing to retail sales and
consumption reported positive and faster growth especially in the last
quarter of the year.
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For the year under review, thanks to the sudden surge in demand for
instant noodles in the first half of the year, the PRC operations achieved
an outstanding overall performance. Revenue increased by 17.5%
(in local currency: 18.6%) to HK$2,100.4 million (2019: HK$1,788.0
million) in year 2020. It also marks the third year in which the Company
delivered a double-digit growth pace on its revenue growth for the
full year, demonstrating the time-proven record of our commitment
to the long term growth in the PRC. During the year, we observed a
good take-up for both the Cup Noodles and Demae Iccho brands
in the PRC as customers got prepared for potential outbreak of the
pandemic. The new joint venture distribution business in Shanghai
commenced operation in the second quarter this year and contributed
to the revenue this year. Currently, revenue from the PRC operations
accounted for 59.7% (2019: 57.9%) of the Group’s revenue.

In terms of segment results, the PRC operations increased by 17.4%
to HK$247.1 million (2019: HK$210.6 million), mainly attributable to
the solid performance from the instant noodles business, as well as the
additional contribution from the new joint venture distribution business
in Shanghai.

During the year, the Company continued our effort in geographical
expansion and key regions development, aiming at delivering
sustainable growth in the PRC. Through investment in infrastructure
and people, we have delivered a satisfactory performance for our Cup
Noodles brand and it was especially encouraging for the made-in-
Hong Kong Demae Iccho brand in our key operating regions in the
Eastern and Southern China. Further investments were made in the
Western and Northern China as we further expanded our geographical
coverage. With customers preferring instant and convenient food under
the pandemic, competition were mild throughout the year.
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In terms of product innovation, the Company continued to develop
innovative products through collaboration with Japanese anime that
have been beloved and well received among the youngsters in the PRC.
Following the successive launch of the collaborative commercials of Cup
Noodles and Japanese anime “Kaguya-sama: Love is War” in August
2020, the Company has received good response for its collaborative
packaged Cup Noodles. In addition, the Group launched four
flavours of RAOH bowl type in November 2020, namely Black Garlic
Oil Tonkotsu Flavour, Spicy Tonkotsu Flavour, Dandan Mian Flavour
and Rich Chicken Soup Flavour, to further enhance our premium-end
noodles collection and to satisfy demanding customers who pursue
high-quality noodles and innovative tastes with quality close to those of
ramen shops.

For the new joint venture distribution business in Shanghai, this
strategic investment enabled the Group to further strengthen its
business foundation in the Eastern China, and at the same time,
creating a synergy with our current distribution channels as we further
expand our business in the PRC. Currently, we distribute a number of
famous Japanese brands of the snacks and the beverages in the PRC.

Regarding the construction of a new production plant for the purpose
of manufacturing packaging materials as announced in July 2019, the
Company targets to complete the construction within year 2021. The
progress of the construction is on track.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2020, total assets of the Group amounted
to HK$5,183.9 million (31 December 2019: HK$4,633.9 million)
and the total equity was HK$4,043.1 million (31 December 2019:
HK$3,712.3 million). The Group's working capital was HK$2,231.3
million (31 December 2019: HK$2,136.0 million), represented by the
difference between the total current assets of HK$3,296.6 million (31
December 2019: HK$2,995.2 million) and the total current liabilities of
HK$1,065.3 million (31 December 2019: HK$859.2 million). The current
ratio was 3.1 as at 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019: 3.5).

The financial position of the Group remained healthy with net cash of
approximately HK$2,115.0 million (31 December 2019: HK$1,610.3
million) and HK$180.8 million (31 December 2019: HK$180.8 million)
in available banking facilities as at 31 December 2020. The Group had
no external borrowing and the gearing ratio was nil as at 31 December
2020 (31 December 2019: Nil).

Donation made to a charitable fund amounted to HK$40,000,000
(2019: nil) during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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Capital Expenditure

The Group'’s capital expenditure was HK$259.7 million during the year
under review (2019: HK$283.6 million), which was mainly due to the
capital investments on the production plants in Hong Kong and the
PRC.

Capital Commitment

The Group had capital commitment in respect of acquisition of
property, plant and equipment contracted for but not provided of
HK$20.7 million as at 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019: HK$82.3
million).

Financial Risk Management

The Group had not entered into or trade in derivative financial
instruments either for hedging or speculative purposes. The Company
and its several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency sales
and purchases, which expose the Group to foreign currency risk. As HK
Dollar is currently pegged to US Dollar, the Company considered that
the Group’s exposure to fluctuation in HK Dollar against US Dollar is
limited. The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily Japanese Yen
and Renminbi against HK Dollar.

Contingent Liability

In respect of the legal proceedings against the Company regarding
an alleged wrongful termination of distributorship of a former sub-
distributor of our “Demae lccho” instant noodles products (the
“Proceedings”) as disclosed in the prospectus of the Company issued
on 29 November 2017 (the “Prospectus”), no provision for the claim
in respect of the Proceedings was made by the Group and as at 31
December 2020, the Group had no material contingent liability (2019:
Nil). The Company is pleased to report that subsequent to 31 December
2020, the Company received a judgment of the Proceedings issued
by the High Court of Hong Kong and dated 12 March 2021 ruling
in favor of the Company. The Court has dismissed the claims made
by the former sub-distributor and awarded costs of the action to the
Company.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no material contingent liability
(31 December 2019: Nil).
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Pledge of Assets

The Group did not have pledged assets as at 31 December 2020 (31
December 2019: Nil).

Use of Proceeds from Global Offering

The shares of the Company have been listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
since 11 December 2017 (the “Listing”). The total proceeds from the
Global Offering involving the issue of 268,580,000 ordinary shares of
the Company amounted to approximately HK$950.8 million. As at 31
December 2020, the Group held the unutilised net proceeds as deposit
with licensed institutions in Hong Kong.

According to the proposed applications of the proceeds set out in the
section headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus,
the utilisation of the net proceeds from the Listing to 31 December
2020 was shown on the below table:

Usage disclosed in the Prospectus RARERBERORS
Further expanding and upgrading ERERARAERRE R

production plants and facilities 45%
Further expanding sales and distribution network EASHE 7 484 10%
Enhancing research and development capabilities $2FHE%E8E ) 5%
Partnerships and/or acquisitions BUBMHBEERSETKESE  30%
Working capital REEESER 10%
Net Proceeds FENEEE

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

As disclosed in the voluntary announcement of the Company dated
23 January 2020 and reported in the annual report of the Company
for 2019, the Company has formed a joint venture with Ms. Liu Feng
in January 2020 for engagement in import and sale of Japanese brand
food and beverage products in Shanghai and other first tier cities in the
PRC. As mentioned in the paragraphs respectively headed “Financials”
and “Business Review — The PRC operation” above, this new joint
venture distribution business in Shanghai has already commenced
operation in April 2020 and has contributed to increase in revenue in
the second quarter of the year. The formation of such joint venture did
not constitute notifiable transaction of the Company under the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”) as so disclosed in the said voluntary announcement.
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During the year, except for the aforesaid joint venture, there were no
material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures by the Group, and the Group did not hold any significant
investments.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Looking ahead, we foresee the pandemic will continue to impact on
the global economy in year 2021. Fluctuation in raw material costs
may become more severe as the global economic development remains
ambiguous. Not until the vaccinations become available to most of the
population would economy reignite its growth momentum and the
world return to peace.

In Hong Kong, the fourth wave of the pandemic continued to weigh
on the local economy at the beginning of the year 2021. The Company
would keep a close eye on the turbulent situation and would timely
adjust its production capacity for instant noodles and frozen foods
to keep serving you. In addition, as customers become more health-
conscious, we foresee the non-noodles business would deliver a bright
outcome in the years to come.

In the PRC, the Company is cautiously optimistic towards the future
development in its key operating regions. Continuous research and
development would be implemented on the production knowhow and
product innovations to enhance customers value. Also, the Company
would continue to expand its business territory in the PRC and deliver
a sustainable growth in the long run. Efforts would be made to more
closely monitor and control the operating costs.

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2020, the total number of staff of the Group was
approximately 3,500 (31 December 2019: 3,450) with staff costs
(excluding directors’ remuneration) amounting to HK$585.1 million
for the year. Remuneration package is determined with reference to
the individual performance, qualification and experience of employees
concerned and prevailing industry practice. The Group provides
mandatory provident fund entitlement to its employees in Hong Kong.
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Executive Directors

Mr. Kiyotaka Ando

Mr. Toshimichi Fujinawa
Mr. Shinji Tatsutani

Mr. Kazuo Kawasaka
Mr. Munehiko Ono

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Sumio Matsumoto

Mr. Junichi Honda

Professor Lynne Yukie Nakano

Mr. Toshiaki Sakai (@ppointed on 1 April 2020)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Junichi Honda (Chairman)
Dr. Sumio Matsumoto
Professor Lynne Yukie Nakano

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Junichi Honda (Chairman)
Mr. Kiyotaka Ando
Dr. Sumio Matsumoto

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Kiyotaka Ando (Chairman)
Dr. Sumio Matsumoto
Mr. Junichi Honda

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lo Tai On

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor

LEGAL ADVISORS

CFN Lawyers in association with Broad & Bright
Broad & Bright Law Firm
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Taiji Matsumura (resigned on 11 March 2020)
Mr. Xi Xiaotong (resigned on 11 March 2020)

Mr. Takeshi Shigemi

Mr. Gen Matsunobu

Mr. Akifumi Aiba (resigned on 11 March 2021)
Mr. Yutaka Komori (@ppointed on 11 March 2020)
Mr. Ying Li Feng (resigned on 11 March 2021)
Mr. Katsunori Hiroi

Mr. Takeshi Kikunaga

Mr. Tse Chi Ping Roy

Mr. Zhao Xiongda

Ms. Tang Yuen Man Amy

Ms. Wong Wai Fong Blanche

REGISTERED OFFICE

21-23 Dai Shing Street
Tai Po Industrial Estate
Tai Po

New Territories

Hong Kong

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

11-13 Dai Shun Street
Tai Po Industrial Estate
Tai Po

New Territories

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Mizuho Bank, Ltd.
MUFG Bank, Ltd.

SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

CONTACT INFORMATION

Website: www.nissingroup.com.hk
Investor Relations Email: ir@nissinfoods.com.hk
Media Relations Email: pr@nissinfoods.com.hk

STOCK CODE
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Dr. Sumio Matsumoto
AN TS

Independent Non-executive

Director

Nakano

RREFSETHER

Independent Non-executive

B IEITES \ A Director

BIIFATES

Mr. Junichi Honda
RLE— %4

Independent Non-executive
Director

BYIFATES

Mr. Kiyotaka Ando, aged 41, is Executive Director, Chairman of
the Board and Chief Executive Officer. He is responsible for strategic
planning and managing the overall business and operations of the
Group. Mr. Ando joined the Group in March 2009 and has been
a director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Ando
obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics from Keio University in

Japan in March 2004. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Ando worked in

Mitsubishi Corporation from April 2004 to December 2007. In January
2008, Mr. Ando joined Nissin Foods Holdings Co., Ltd. (“Nissin Japan”)
and its subsidiaries (“Nissin Japan Group”) as the deputy general
manager of marketing division and is currently a managing officer and
chief representative, East Asia of Nissin Japan, and a director of six
subsidiaries of Nissin Japan (both are non-executive in nature).

Professor Lynne Yukie

Mr. Toshiaki Sakai
IRHFIE KL

Independent Non-executive

Director -*-
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Mr. Toshimichi Fujinawa, aged 61, is Executive Director. He is a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company and is responsible
for overseeing and managing overall research and development
functions of the Group. Before joining the Group, Mr. Fujinawa
joined Nissin Japan in 1982 with his last position being the executive
officer and deputy head of NISSIN Global Innovation Center of Nissin
Japan. Between April 2008 and March 2014, Mr. Fujinawa served as
deputy managing director of research and development division of
the Company. Mr. Fujinawa has extensive experience in the fields of
research and development related to food products. He obtained a
Bachelor of Agriculture degree from Obihiro University of Agriculture
and Veterinary Medicine in Japan in March 1982.

Mr. Shinji Tatsutani, aged 56, is Executive Director, and Chief
Financial Officer of the Group. He is responsible for overseeing and
managing overall finance functions of the Group. Mr. Tatsutani
obtained a Bachelor of Economics degree from Osaka Prefecture
University in Japan in March 1987. Mr. Tatsutani has over 29 years of
experience in finance and accounting. Mr. Tatsutani joined Nissin Japan
in April 1987 and worked in accounting division until November 1996.
From November 1996 to March 2002, Mr. Tatsutani was assigned
to Guangdong Shunde Nissin Food Co., Ltd.. From March 2002 to
March 2008, Mr. Tatsutani was re-assigned to Nissin Japan with his
last position being manager in finance division. In March 2008, after
re-joining the Group, Mr. Tatsutani has been a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company and is also a director of Nissin Shanghai
Food Safety Institute.

Mr. Kazuo Kawasaka, aged 56, is Executive Director. He is a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company and is responsible for overseeing
and managing operations of sales of “NISSIN (H;&)" brand products in
the PRC. Before joining the Group, Mr. Kawasaka joined Nissin Japan
in 1988 with his last position being the assistant general manager in
the marketing department of Nissin Japan. Between 2007 and 2015,
Mr. Kawasaka has been a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group
for overseeing the sales and marketing functions in the PRC. Mr.
Kawasaka has extensive experience in the fields of sales, marketing
and management. He obtained a Bachelor of Business Administration
degree from Ritsumeikan University in Japan in March 1988.
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Mr. Munehiko Ono, aged 53, is Executive Director, and Chief
Production Officer of the Group. He is responsible for overseeing
and managing overall production functions of the Group. Mr. Ono
obtained a Bachelor of Agriculture degree from Tokyo University of
Agriculture in Japan in March 1991. Before joining the Group, Mr. Ono
joined Nissin Japan in April 1991 with his last position being deputy
general manager. Between March 2007 and July 2011, Mr. Ono was
assigned as the Company’s director and plant manager. Mr. Ono re-
joined the Group since January 2014 and has been a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company.

Dr. Sumio Matsumoto, aged 73, is Independent Non-executive
Director appointed by the Company on 21 November 2017. Dr.
Matsumoto obtained a Bachelor degree of Medicine from the School
of Medicine of Keio University in Japan in March 1973 and further
obtained a Doctor of Medicine degree from the same University in
October 1981. From 1973 to 1984, Dr. Matsumoto worked in Keio
University with his last position being teaching assistant of the School
of Medicine. From 1980 to 1982, Dr. Matsumoto was employed by
National Hospital Organization Kanagawa Hospital as surgeon. From
1982 to 2005, Dr. Matsumoto worked in Fujita Health University with
his last position being the President of the Banbuntane Hotokukai
Hospital of Fujita Health University. After his departure from Fujita
Health University, Dr. Matsumoto worked in Tokyo Medical Center of
the National Hospital Organization between 2005 and 2014, with his
last position being the President.

Dr. Matsumoto is currently a member of the Promotion of New Strategy
Expert Committee, an expert member of the Japanese Government
Procurement Review Board, a member of the Next-generation
Information and Communication Technology Council and an advisor of
Ministry of Health, Labor and Welfare.
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Mr. Junichi Honda, aged 74, is Independent Non-executive Director
appointed by the Company on 21 November 2017. Mr. Honda
obtained a Bachelor of Commerce degree from the Faculty of Business
and Commerce of Keio University in Japan in March 1970 and obtained
a Master degree majoring in management and accountancy from the
Graduate School of Business and Commerce of the same University in
March 1974. Mr. Honda was qualified as a Certified Public Accountant
in Japan in 1980. He has over 38 years of experience in finance and
accounting. In July 1974, Mr. Honda joined Chuo Kaikei Jimusho Audit
Firm as an accountant. From October 1983 to March 1987, Mr. Honda
worked as an accountant in Deutsche Treuhand Gesellschaft Audit Firm.
From April 1987 to December 2011, Mr. Honda worked in Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu with his last position being a partner.

Mr. Honda served as guest professor of the Graduate School of
International Accounting of Chuo University, teaching international
accounting course from April 2002 to March 2007. From April 2010
to March 2012, Mr. Honda served as a part time instructor of the
Graduate School of Management of Tamagawa University. From August
2015 to July 2016, Mr. Honda served as an examiner of the disciplinary
board of the Japanese Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is
currently a director of Hattori Gakuen, Incorporated School Institute.

Professor Lynne Yukie Nakano, aged 56, is Independent Non-
executive Director appointed by the Company on 21 November 2017.
Professor Nakano obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree from Carleton
College in 1987, a Master of Philosophy degree from Yale University in
the United States in 1990 and a Doctor of Philosophy degree in 1998
from the same University. Since August 1995, Professor Nakano has
been working in The Chinese University of Hong Kong and is currently
a professor at the department of Japanese studies.

Mr. Toshiaki Sakai, aged 46, is Independent Non-executive Director
appointed by the Company on 1 April 2020. He is currently an
associate professor of Physical Education of Keio University Institute in
Japan, a director of Japan Tennis Association and a deputy director of
Keio University Athletic Association in Japan. Mr. Sakai has extensive
experience in the sport coaching and management, specializing in
tennis. Mr. Sakai is a director of Kabushikikaisha Egg Ball (k=X &4t T
Y778 —)L), a limited liability company incorporated in Japan, which
is principally engaged in tennis coaching business. Mr. Sakai obtained
a Bachelor’s degree in political science from the Faculty of Law of Keio
University in Japan in March 1997, a Master’s degree in sports science
from Waseda University in Japan in March 2007 and a Doctoral’s
degree from Keio University Graduate School of Media and Governance
from Keio University in Japan in February 2014.

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED AERMAERARA
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Takeshi Shigemi, aged 58, joined the Group in March 2014 and is
currently director in Nissin Foods (H.K.) Management Co., Ltd, in charge
of administration, public relations and business planning functions.
In March 2014 he was first appointed as senior executive officer for
sales in southern China of the Group, responsible for overseeing and
managing overall sales in southern China of the Group. From April
2017 to March 2018, Mr. Shigemi was responsible for overseeing
and managing overall sales in eastern China of the Group and his title
was changed to senior executive officer for sales in eastern China. He
graduated from the Chinese language curriculum of Kyoto Sangyo
University in Japan in March 1985. He has nearly 26 years of experience
in sales and marketing. From April 1985 to August 2013, Mr. Shigemi
worked in Panasonic Corporation (previously known as Matsushita
Electric Industrial Co., Ltd), with his last position being head of the
marketing division. From August 2013 to March 2014, Mr. Shigemi was
the manager of the marketing division of Nissin Japan.

Mr. Gen Matsunobu, aged 50, joined the Group in March 2010 and is
currently general manager of marketing for mainland China, responsible
for overseeing and managing product planning and marketing of the
Group. Mr. Matsunobu graduated from the Department of Biochemical
Science and Technology, Faculty of Agriculture, Kagoshima University
in Japan in March 1994 and further obtained a Master of Agriculture
degree from the same University in March 1996. From April 1996 to
March 2010, Mr. Matsunobu worked in Nissin Japan, with his last
position being a supervisor in the marketing division.

Mr. Yutaka Komori, aged 57, joined the Group in October 2019 and
was appointed as Chairman of Shanghai Eastpeak Trading Co. Ltd. from
March 2021. Mr. Komori was appointed as senior executive officer for
sales in northern China of the Group from March 2020 to March 2021
responsible for overseeing and managing overall sales in northern China
region. Mr. Komori was the deputy head of northern China Business
from October 2019 to March 2020. Mr. Komori obtained a Bachelor
of Law degree from Waseda University in Japan in March 1986. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Komori worked in Mitsubishi Corporation
from April 1986 to September 2019, with his last position being the
general manager of overseas marketing group of Mitsubishi Shokuhin,
a subsidiary of Mitsubishi Corporation.

SREEE

SEEEPKE 0 585 0 B2014F3 B UARMARN
AEE - BEABRR (BB EEBERAFE
FBETHR AHEARRFEEREER - H
014F 3B ET AT EEERHER RN
T BEEBRERASENERNBEHES
% 2017F4A 2201838  EEXLAEBEE
BREBASENRERNBEEEST - KRB
AERBESIRNITE « HR1985F3ARER
HARBMEXASHEHEER  EHEREHES
EH A 26F 8% - 198545 2013484 -
& S £ BLB A Panasonic Corporation (RTFBIA T
BREERA L) ARBBBAZHEEE -
201398 AE2014F3 7 » EEEAAETBHERAR
IS EPAEIE -

MEZ AL  505% © B2010F3 A UREBNA
£ RATRMEEHITRLE  BEEER
EEAEEERERCEIREHEEN NELE
R1994F3 AR ENBAERERERE A
BRI ERL . B 1996F3 AR B ZR B ERE
BT - 1996F4 AF20105E3 7 - MR ALE
RBEBERR EEEBEAZHBEE -

NERMEE - 575% 0 H2019F 10 AIAARER -

2021 F3AREZA AL EREESHERAAE
ERK 202038 F 202143 » /\REA AARE
EdtRacs BaEEBREERNELREENE
BESHEE =TS © 2019510 A E20204F3 A » /it
AT ERERIBEIE o NRAAEN198653 A
FHARHEBRBERSEZEL2M - INAKRE
B 281 1986F4 A Z=2019F9A » /NRICETL R
RE=ZRBEHRASH  EREREAE=ZRH (=
ZRENRA S L 2B RR) EBINE P 4aAETE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 | —ZE T F &R



BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT EEE E R SR E RIS

Mr. Katsunori Hiroi, aged 47, is the chairman and managing director
of Zhuhai Golden Coast Winner Food Products Limited and a director
of Winner Food Products Limited, responsible for overseeing and
managing overall business and operational matters. Mr. Hiroi obtained
a Bachelor of Arts in International Relations from Ritsumeikan University
in Japan in March 1996. Mr. Hiroi joined Nissin Japan in April 1996 and
worked in various roles in marketing and sales function until March
2013. He joined the Group in March 2013 and was assigned as a
director of the Company until May 2015. From May 2015 to September
2019, he was the deputy managing director of Nissin Foods (Thailand)
Co., Ltd.. He rejoined the Group in September 2019.

Mr. Takeshi Kikunaga, aged 48, joined the Group in March 2014 and
is currently deputy managing director in Nissin Foods (H.K.) Company
Limited, responsible for overseeing the sales functions in Hong Kong.
He joined Nissin Japan in April 1997 and performed various sales and
marketing positions in Nissin Japan until March 2014. Mr. Kikunaga
obtained a Bachelor of Engineering degree from Aoyama Gakuin
University in Japan in March 1997.

Mr. Tse Chi Ping Roy, aged 60, joined the Group in January 2008 and
is currently Deputy Managing Director in Nissin Foods HK, responsible
for overseeing and managing the sales functions of Nissin Foods HK.
Mr. Tse obtained an Honours Diploma in Business Management from
the Hong Kong Baptist University (previously known as Hong Kong
Baptist College) in November 1985 and obtained a Master of Business
Administration degree from the Open University of Hong Kong in June
2002. Before joining the Group, Mr. Tse worked as the key account
manager in sales department in A.S. Watson & Company Limited. He
has accumulated 34 years of experience in sales and marketing having
previously worked under sales department in various paper companies
and trading companies.

Mr. Zhao Xiongda, aged 51, joined the Group in February 2001.
He is currently the general manager for sales in western China of the
Group, responsible for overseeing and managing overall sales. Mr. Zhao
obtained a Bachelor of Engineering degree in enterprise management
from Shanghai University of Engineering Science in July 1991. Before
joining the Group, Mr. Zhao worked for Pepsi Cola, US Campbell’s and
other food manufacturing companies. He has extensive experience in
food sales and marketing.

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED AERMAERARA
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Ms. Tang Yuen Man Amy, aged 55, joined the Group since
September 2003. She is currently the general manager of quality
management department, responsible for overseeing and managing
overall quality management matters of the Group. Ms. Tang obtained
Bachelor of Science degree and Master of Quality Management degree
from Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 1992 and 1998 respectively.
Ms. Tang was responsible for lab testing and quality management work
of edible oil factory and refinery under Hop Hing Group during 1988-
2003 before she joined the Group.

Ms. Wong Wai Fong Blanche, aged 49, joined the Group in
May 2018. She is currently the general manager of public relations
department, responsible for overseeing corporate affairs, media
relations, customer care centre, community relations, and internal
communication of the Group. Ms. Wong obtained a Bachelor of Social
Sciences in Communication (Journalism) degree from the Hong Kong
Baptist University in 1994 and a Master of International and Public
Affairs degree from the University of Hong Kong in 2005. She started
her career as a court reporter and then spent five years in the marketing
of U.S. produce in the PRC and Hong Kong. She began serving as an
in-house public relations professional since 2004. Prior to joining the
Group, she was the vice president, Group Strategic Marketing and
Communications of DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited from June 2010 to
February 2017, and served as the secretary-general of Social Enterprise
Summit from February 2017 to May 2018.
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The Company is committed to the maintenance of good corporate
governance practices, with reference to the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange. The Board is of the opinion that
during the year, the Company had complied with the code provisions as
set out in the CG Code except for the following deviation:

Pursuant to Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. Mr. Kiyotaka Ando is currently the
Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer, responsible for
strategic planning and managing of the Group’s overall business and
operations. Mr. Ando has been responsible for overall management
of the Group since 2009. The Board believes that the current structure
enables the Company to make and implement business decision swiftly
and effectively which promotes the Group’s development in line with
other strategies and business direction. The Board considers that the
balance of power and authority, accountability and independent
decision-making under the present arrangement will not be impaired
because of the diverse background and experience of the independent
non-executive directors. Further, the Audit Committee, which consists
exclusively of independent non-executive directors, has free and
direct access to the Company’s external auditors and independent
professional advisers when it considers necessary.

In order to maintain good corporate governance, the Board will
regularly review the need to appoint different individuals to perform the
roles of chairman and chief executive officer separately.

DIRECTORS" SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"”) set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct for dealing in securities
of the Company by the Directors. All Directors have confirmed, upon
specific enquiries made by the Company that they have complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code during the year.
To ensure Directors’ dealings in the securities of the Company (the
“Securities”) are conducted in accordance with the Model Code, each
Director is required to notify the Chairman of the Board in writing and
obtain a written acknowledgement from the Chairman or designated
director prior to any dealings in the Securities. Relevant employees
of the Company are also bound by the Model Code, which prohibits
them to deal in the Securities at any time when they possess inside
information.
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THE BOARD

Board Composition

During the year and up to the date of this annual report, the Board
comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Kiyotaka Ando (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Toshimichi Fujinawa

Mr. Shinji Tatsutani

Mr. Kazuo Kawasaka

Mr. Munehiko Ono

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Sumio Matsumoto

Mr. Junichi Honda

Professor Lynne Yukie Nakano

Mr. Toshiaki Sakai (appointed on 1 April 2020)

The biographies of all Directors are set out in the section headed
“Board of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.
The Company publishes and maintains on its website and on the
Stock Exchange’s website an updated list of the Directors identifying
their roles and functions. The Chairman is responsible for formulating
business strategies and providing leadership to the Board, ensuring
effective running of the Board, including that all appropriate issues are
discussed by the Board in a timely manner. The Chairman ensures that
all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at the Board Meetings
and receive adequate, complete and reliable information. The Chairman
also encourages each of the Directors to participate actively in and to
make a full contribution to the Board’s affairs so that the Board acts in
the best interest of the Company.

During the year, the Board at all times has met the requirement of
Rules 3.10 and 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least three independent non-executive directors with at least one
independent non-executive director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial management expertise.
The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
from each of the Independent Non-executive Directors. The Nomination
Committee has assessed their independence based on the guidelines
in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and the Company
considered them to be independent.
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The Independent Non-executive Directors come from diverse business,
varied background and experience. Through the participation in the
Board Meetings and various Committee Meetings, the Independent
Non-executive Directors bring in independent judgment, extensive
experience and valuable contribution to the Board. The Board believes
that the composition of Executive Directors and Independent Non-
executive Directors is reasonable and adequate to provide sufficient
balances that protect the interests of the shareholders and the Group as
a whole.

THE BOARD AND MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for the overall management of the Group. It
oversees the Group's businesses, strategic decisions, internal control,
risk management and performances. The management team is
delegated with the authority and responsibility by the Board for the
daily management of the Group. The delegated functions and work
tasks are periodically reviewed. Major corporate matters that are
specifically delegated by the Board to the management including: (1)
the preparation of interim and annual reports and announcements
for the Board’s approval before publishing; (2) implementation of
adequate risk management and internal control systems; and (3)
compliance with relevant statutory and regulatory requirements and
rules and regulations. It is the responsibility of the Board to determine
the appropriate corporate governance practices applicable to the
Company’s circumstances and to ensure processes and procedures are
in place to achieve the Company’s corporate governance objectives.
There is a procedure agreed by the Board to ensure the Directors, upon
reasonable request, to seek the independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstance, at the Company's expenses.

The Board has maintained the necessary balance of skills and experience
appropriate for the business requirements and objectives of the Group
and for the exercise of independent judgement. The Directors with
various professional qualifications, experience and related financial
management expertise have contributed to the effective direction of
the Company and provided adequate checks and balances to safeguard
the interests of both the Group and the shareholders. Hence, the Board
believes that the current Board composition satisfies with the corporate
governance requirements with regard to the balance of expertise, skills
and experience as well as the ongoing development and management
of its business activities.
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The Board meets regularly to discuss and formulate the overall strategy
as well as the operation and financial performance of the Group. The
Directors may participate either in person or through electronic means
of communications. The Directors are given an opportunity to include
matters for discussion in the agenda. At least 14 days’ notice prior to
the date of regular Board Meeting is given to the Directors and the
agenda together with Board papers are normally sent to them at least
three days before the intended date of a Board Meeting. Draft minutes
of each Board meeting are circulated to all Directors for their comment
before being tabled at the next Board Meeting for approval. All minutes
are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for inspection by any
Director.

Pursuant to Code Provision A.1.1 of the CG Code, the Board should
meet regularly and board meetings should be held as least four times a
year. The Board convened six meetings during the year.

To the best knowledge of the Board, the Directors do not have any
material financial, business, family or other relationships among
members of the Board. Should a Director has a potential conflict of
interest in a matter being considered at the Board Meeting, he or she
will abstain from voting and the Independent Non-executive Directors
will be present on dealing with such conflict of interest issues.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy of the Company (the
“Board Diversity Policy”) which specifies the objective and approach
to achieve and maintain diversity on the Board in order to enhance
the effectiveness of the Board. The Board Diversity Policy provides that
the Company should endeavour to ensure that the Board members
have the appropriate balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives that are required to support the execution of its business
strategy.

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Company seeks to achieve
Board diversity through the consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to professional experience, skills, knowledge,
gender, age, cultural and education background, ethnicity and length
of service. The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity
Policy from time to time to ensure its continued effectiveness and will
disclose in the corporate governance report about the implementation
of the Board Diversity Policy on annual basis.
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EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The emoluments of the members of the directors and senior
management by band for the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out

EETRSAREEEME
HE20200F 12 B3 BILFEE  EENahE
BABZBEESHEEINNT

below:
Number of Personnel
Emoluments B < A
Nil to HK$2,000,000 ZZ 2,000,000 &L 17
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,000,001 /&7TZ 3,000,000 7T 3
HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,000,001 /&JTE 4,000,000 BT
HK$7,000,001 to HK$8,000,000 7,000,001 /&7TE 8,000,000 /& 7T 1

Further particulars regarding Directors’ emoluments and the five highest
paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16
to the Listing Rules are set out in Notes 12 and 13 to the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company. The term of the service contract of each of Mr.
Kiyotaka Ando, Mr. Shinji Tatsutani and Mr. Munehiko Ono is from
11 December 2020 to 30 June 2023; whereas the term of service
agreement of each of Mr. Toshimichi Fujinawa and Mr. Kazuo
Kawasaka is from 3 July 2018 to 2 July 2021.

Each of Dr. Sumio Matsumoto, Mr. Junichi Honda and Professor Lynne
Yukie Nakano has respectively entered into a letter of appointment with
the Company for the period from 11 December 2020 to 30 June 2023.
Mr. Toshiaki Sakai has entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company for the period from 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2023.

Their service agreements and letters of appointment are subject to
the termination in accordance with the respective terms and may be
renewed in accordance with the articles of association of the Company
(the “Articles of Association”) and applicable Listing Rules. Pursuant to
the Articles of Association, all directors are required to retire from office
by rotation at annual general meeting.

In compliance with Code Provision A.4.2 of the CG Code, all directors
appointed to fill a casual vacancy should be subject to election by the
shareholders at the first general meeting after their appointment. By
virtue of Article 112 of the Articles of Association, the directors may
appoint a person who is willing to act to be a director, either to fill a
vacancy or as an additional director, provided that the appointment
does not cause the number of directors to exceed any number fixed
as the maximum number of directors. A director so appointed shall
hold office only until the next annual general meeting and shall then
be eligible for re-election, but shall not be taken into account in
determining the directors who are to retire by rotation at the meeting.
All directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years.
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Pursuant to Article 107 of the Articles of Association, at each annual
general meeting, one-third of the directors (including the managing
director) or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, the
number which is nearest to and is at least one-third, shall retire from
office by rotation. A retiring director shall be eligible for re-election.
Accordingly, Mr. Shinji Tatsutani, Dr. Sumio Matsumoto and Mr. Junichi
Honda will retire by rotation and being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS" INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Upon appointment of director(s), each new director receives an
induction package covering business operations, policy and procedures
of the Company as well as the general, statutory and regulatory
obligations of being a director to ensure that he/she is sufficiently aware
of his/her responsibilities under the Listing Rules and other relevant
regulatory requirements.

The Directors, on an ongoing basis, will receive updates on the relevant
laws, rules and regulations. The Company encourages the Directors to
enrol in a wide range of professional development courses and seminars
relating to the Listing Rules, Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”), and
corporate governance practices so that they can continuously acquire
their relevant knowledge and skills. Pursuant to Code Provision A.6.5 of
the CG Code, during the year, the Company has organized a seminar
conducted by qualified professionals and has provided updates on the
Group's business, operations, and financial information, as well as other
information and briefings from time to time to all Directors.

DIRECTORS" AND OFFICERS' LIABILITIES

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage on
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of any legal actions taken
against Directors and senior management arising out of corporate
activities. Such insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties as set out below:

1. develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations;
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2. review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

3. review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors; and

5. review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report under Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules.

During the year, the Board has performed the above duties.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees (the “Board Committees”)
and has delegated various responsibilities to the committees including
the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee. The Board Committees perform their distinct roles
in accordance with their respective terms of reference which are
available to shareholders on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange respectively. The Board Committees are provided with
sufficient resources to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable
request, are able to seek the independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

A Nomination Committee has been established by the Board on 21
November 2017 with specific terms of reference in compliance with
the CG Code. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee
are to review the Board composition size and structure, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment
of directors and succession planning for directors; and assessing the
independence of independent non-executive directors. The terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee are available on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange respectively.

The Nomination Committee comprises one Executive Director and two
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Kiyotaka Ando, Dr.
Sumio Matsumoto and Mr. Junichi Honda. Mr. Kiyotaka Ando is the
chairman of the Nomination Committee.

During the year, one Nomination Committee meeting was held to
review the structure, size and composition of the Board and have
concluded that members of the Board have possessed the expertise and
independence to carry out the Board’s functions and responsibilities
and assess the independence of Independent Non-executive Directors.
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The Board has adopted a nomination policy with effect from 1 January
2019. The nomination of candidate(s) is made in accordance with
certain selection criteria: (a) reputation for integrity; (b) accomplishment
and experience; (c) commitment in respect of available time and
relevant interest; and (d) diversity in all aspects including but not limited
to professional experiences, business perspectives, skills, knowledge,
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity and
length of service, in assessing and selecting proposed candidates
for directorship. The relevant procedures are set out in nomination
policy for the Nomination Committee to follow subject to provisions
in the Articles of Association and applicable Listing Rules. The Board
recognizes the need for appointment or re-election of directors, the
following nomination procedures should be followed:

(@  The Nomination Committee shall review the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board at least annually and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy.

(b)  The Nomination Committee shall identify individuals suitably
qualified to become Board members and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships.

() The Nomination Committee shall assess the independence of
independent non-executive directors.

(d)  The Nomination Committee shall make recommendations to
the Board on the appointment or re-election of directors and
succession planning for directors.

(e)  Where the Board proposes a resolution to elect an individual as
an independent non-executive director at the general meeting,
the Nomination Committee should set out in the circular to
shareholders and/or explanatory statement accompanying the
notice of the relevant general meeting.

(f)  The Board shall have the final decision on all matters in respect
of the recommendation of candidates to stand for election or re-
election at any general meeting.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A Remuneration Committee has been established by the Board on 21
November 2017 with specific terms of reference in compliance with
Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and the CG Code and the majority of
the members of the Remuneration Committee are Independent Non-
executive Directors. The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee
include making recommendations to the Board on the policy and
structure for all Directors’ remuneration, reviewing and approving the
management’s remuneration proposals with reference to the Board’s
corporate goals and objectives and establishing transparent procedures
for developing such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that
no Director or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/
her own remuneration. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange respectively.

Each of the Directors will receive a fee which is subject to an annual
adjustment at a rate to be reviewed by the Remuneration Committee
and be determined at the discretion of the Board.

The Remuneration Committee comprises one Executive Director and
two Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Kiyotaka Ando,
Dr. Sumio Matsumoto and Mr. Junichi Honda. Mr. Junichi Honda is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

During the year, one Remuneration Committee meeting was held to
review and make recommendations to the Board on the policy and
structure for directors’ and senior management’s remuneration.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

An Audit Committee has been established by the Board on 21
November 2017 with specific terms of reference in compliance with
Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the CG Code. The primary duties of
the Audit Committee include the review and supervision of the Group’s
financial reporting system, risk management and internal control
systems, review of the Group’s financial information, overseeing the
relationship with external auditor of the Company (including but not
limited to making recommendation to the Board on appointment and/
or removal of external auditor, approving the remuneration and terms
of engagement of that external auditor, reviewing and monitoring the
external auditor’s independence and objectivity and the effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable standards), and
overseeing the corporate governance and compliance matters. The
terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange respectively.
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The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Dr. Sumio Matsumoto, Mr. Junichi Honda and
Professor Lynne Yukie Nakano. Mr. Junichi Honda is the chairman of
the Audit Committee.

During the year, four Audit Committee meetings were held to review
the Group’s financial results including the annual results for the year
ended 31 December 2019 and the interim results for the six months
ended 30 June 2020 before their submission to the Board and
monitored the integrity of such financial statements.

The Audit Committee has also reviewed the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and considers
them to be effective and adequate.

BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS
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The attendance records of each Director at the Board meetings, EEERNAFELRESSSH T8 HER
committee meetings and annual general meeting during the year are REFEFRE 28 E& 5T -
set out below:
Meetings attended/held
BHiE/BIT28%
Audit  Remuneration Nomination Annual
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
=g BREE" YFMEEg REEE® AR
Directors E= - 23 23 eF BERE
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Kiyotaka Ando ZHERELE 6/6 - i 1 1
Mr. Toshimichi Fujinawa BENmLE 6/6 - - - 17
Mr. Shinji Tatsutani RABBERLE 6/6 - - - il
Mr. Kazuo Kawasaka JNRAESLE 6/6 - - - i
Mr. Munehiko Ono NERESSE 6/6 - - - 11
Independent BUHHTEE
Non-executive Directors
Dr. Sumio Matsumoto VNATS 6/6 4/4 11 171 1
Mr. Junichi Honda REE—RE 6/6 4/4 m”m 11 11
Professor Lynne Yukie Nakano ~ F 8 =T #% 6/6 4/4 - - 1
Mr. Toshiaki Sakai "ot BN 5/5 - - - 11

Note:  Mr. Toshiaki Sakai has been appointed as Independent Non-executive

Director with effect from 1 April 2020.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AuDIT

The Board has entire responsibility to ensure the integrity of the
Group's accounting, financial reporting and the effective systems of risk
management and internal control are in place.

Financial Reporting

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of the Group’s position and prospects in
annual report, interim report, inside information and other disclosures
required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements. In
addition, the Board, supporting by the finance functions of the Group, is
responsible for overseeing the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements which shall give a true and fair view of the Group's financial
position, financial performance and cash flows.

The Directors ensure that all applicable accounting standards have
been followed to prepare the financial statements with appropriate
accounting policies, consistently applied and supported by reasonable
and prudent judgments and estimates and ensure the financial
statements in compliance with the requirements of the Companies
Ordinance and the Listing Rules.

The management has provided sufficient explanation and information
of the Group’s financial, operational performance as well as business
development and also with management accounts and monthly updates
to the Board to enable the Board to make an informed assessment of
the Group's performance, financial position and Group’s prospects
to enable the Board and each Director to discharge their duties. The
Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern.

The Group recognises that the independence of an external auditor
is a fundamental governance principle. External auditor provides the
Board and shareholders an objective assurance on whether the financial
statements fairly represent the financial position and performance of
the Group in all material aspects.

The working scope and reporting responsibilities of the external auditor,

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, are set out on pages 75 to 80 in the
Independent Auditor’s Report.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

The Group has formulated and adopted the risk management policy in
providing direction in identifying, evaluating and managing significant
risks. The main features of the risk management processes comprise 5
core stages: (a) risk identification, (b) risk assessment and prioritisation,
(c) risk response, (d) risk monitoring and (e) risk reporting.

The appropriate risk mitigation plans are determined based on the
following risk responses:

- Acceptance: Risks are considered immaterial and acceptable
based on Group’s risk appetite and therefore no action is
considered necessary.

- Reduction: Risks cannot be considered immaterial, actions such as
controls have to be taken to reduce the impact and vulnerability
to an acceptable level.

- Sharing: Risks cannot be considered immaterial and the Group
itself cannot effectively reduce the risks to an acceptably low
level, therefore a portion of the risks has to be transferred to or
shared with other parties by insurance, outsourcing, etc.

- Avoidance: Risks are so significant that there is no measure
both internally and externally to reduce the risk to an acceptable
level, or involve unreasonably high cost to reduce the risk to
an acceptable level. Therefore, activities giving rise to the risks
should be avoided.

The Group has adopted the COSO ERM Framework, the “Top-Down”
approach, in establishing its risk management framework, which
consists of the Board, the Audit Committee, the Risk Management
Taskforce and various departments within the Group.

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. The
Board determines the nature and extent of risks that shall be taken
in achieving the Group’s business objectives, and has the overall
responsibility for monitoring the design, implementation and the overall
effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems.

The role of Audit Committee is to assist the Board to oversee financial
reporting, risk management and internal control systems of the
Group and conduct independent annual review on the adequacy and
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems.
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The Risk Management Taskforce, which consists of key management
staff, is to assist the Board and the Audit Committee in overseeing
the risk management and internal control systems and ensures that
sufficient resources are allocated to maintain the adequacy and
effectiveness of such systems within the Group in order to reduce the
risks or potential risks to acceptable levels when achieving the Group’s
objectives.

Each department is responsible for identifying, assessing and managing
risks within its operation, ensuring that appropriate internal controls for
effective risk management are implemented and any significant internal
control deficiency is reported to the Risk Management Taskforce timely
for a prompt mitigation action.

At least on an annual basis, the Risk Management Taskforce identifies
risks that would adversely affect the achievement of the Group's
objectives, assesses and prioritises the identified risks according to
a set of standard criteria. Risk mitigation plans and risk owners are
then established for those risks considered to be significant. A risk
management and internal control report is submitted to the Audit
Committee and the Board at least once a year.

In addition, the Group has established the internal audit department to
assist the Board and the Audit Committee to evaluate the Group's risk
management processes and internal controls through internal audits.
Deficiencies in the design and implementation of internal controls are
identified and recommendations are proposed to the management for
improvement. Significant internal control deficiencies are reported to
the Audit Committee and the Board on a timely basis to ensure prompt
remediation actions are taken. Besides, the internal audit department
submits a yearly report to the Audit Committee and the Board that
summarizes the findings and recommendations made during the year.

During the year, the Board had performed annual review on the
effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal control
systems, as required by Code Provision C.2 of the CG Code, including
but not limited to the Group’s ability to cope with its business
transformation and changing external environment; the scope and
quality of management’s review on risk management and internal
control systems; result of internal audit work and consideration of
major investigation findings on risk management and internal control
audit and management’s responses to those findings; the extent and
frequency of communication with the Board in relation to result of risk
and internal control review; significant failures or weaknesses identified
and their related implications; and status of compliance with the Listing
Rules. The Board considered the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group to be effective and adequate in all material
respects.
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The risk management and internal control systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss. External independent professional
consultants will be engaged if the Board considers appropriate.

AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

The Company has in place a formal policy on engaging non-audit
services from its independent auditor to ensure that the independence
and objectivity of the external auditor would not be impaired by its
provision of any non-audit services to the Group.

During the year under review, the remuneration paid/payable to
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu is set out as follows:

Services rendered Friz AR 7%
Audit Services ZEARTS
Non-audit services IERZE RS
Total @5t

DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Board has implemented procedures and internal control for
handling and dissemination of inside information. The Company has
in place the inside information policy which sets down guidelines and
procedures for directors and certain employees who, because of their
office or position in the Company may from time to time encounter
inside information (as defined in the Securities and Future Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong (the “SFO")), to ensure that
they understand the principles underlying the obligations in order to
comply with the disclosure requirements so that inside information is
handled with prudence and disseminated to the public in equal and
timely manner. The Group discloses inside information to the public
as soon as reasonably practicable unless the information falls within
any of the safe harbours as provided in the SFO. The Group ensures
the information is kept strictly confidential before the information
is disclosed to the public, if the Group believes that the necessary
degree of confidentiality cannot be maintained or that confidentiality
may have been breached, the Group will immediately disclose the
information to the public. The Group is committed to ensure that
information contained in announcements are not false or misleading,
or false or misleading through omission of a material fact with a view
of presenting information in a clear and balanced way, which requires
equal disclosure of both positive and negative facts.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company’s secretarial functions are outsourced to external
services provider. Mr. Lo Tai On (“Mr. Lo") was appointed as the
Company Secretary in March 2016. Mr. Lo is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, with over 28 years of
experience in the field of company secretarial services. According to
Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Lo has taken no less than 15 hours of
the relevant professional training during the year ended 31 December
2020.

Mr. Takeshi Shigemi, director of Nissin Foods (H.K.) Management
Company Limited, who is responsible for overseeing and managing
overall business planning, public relations and administration and
compliance matters of the Company, is the primary contact person of
the Company with Mr. Lo.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has established shareholders’ communication policy to
ensure shareholders and the investment community to have equal and
timely access to balanced and understandable information and allow
shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed manner.

Information will be communicated to shareholders mainly through the
Company'’s financial reports, annual general meeting and other general
meetings as well as the published disclosures submitted to the Stock
Exchange’s and the Company's official websites.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convening an extraordinary general meeting by
shareholders

Pursuant to Article 55 of the Articles of Association, the Directors may,
whenever they think fit, convene an extraordinary general meeting,
and extraordinary general meetings shall also be convened on such
requisition, or in default, may be convened by such requisitionists,
as provided by the Companies Ordinance. If at any time there are
not within Hong Kong sufficient Directors capable of acting to
form a quorum, any Director or any two or more members of the
Company representing at least 10% of the total voting rights of all
members having a right to vote at general meetings, may convene an
extraordinary general meeting in the same manner as nearly as possible,
as that in which meetings may be convened by the Directors.

Pursuant to Section 567 of the Companies Ordinance, the directors
must call a meeting within 21 days after the date on which they
become subject to the requirement under Section 566 of the
Companies Ordinance and such meeting must be held on a date not
more than 28 days after the date of the notice convening the general
meeting.
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Putting forward proposals at a general meeting

Pursuant to the Companies Ordinance, shareholders representing not
less than one-fortieth of the total voting rights of all shareholders; or
not less than 50 shareholders holding shares in the Company may
make requisition in writing for proposing resolution or business to be
dealt with at the next general meeting. Shareholders should follow the
requirements and procedures as set out in the Companies Ordinance
for putting forward a proposal at a general meeting.

Voting by poll

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of shareholders
at a general meeting must be taken by poll.

Sending enquiries to the Board by shareholders

Shareholders are welcome to send their enquiries and concern to the
Board at the Company’s headquarters at 11-13 Dai Shun Street, Tai Po
Industrial Estate, Tai Po, New Territories, Hong Kong.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND CORPORATE COMMUNICATION

The management of the Company is committed to meet with
shareholders, institutional investors, research analysts and financial
media regularly and provide timely update on the financial and business
performance and recent development of the Company. Investors are
welcome to direct their enquiries to the Company’s Investor Relations
Department at ir@nissinfoods.com.hk. A dedicated Investor Relations
section is also available on the Company’s website (www.nissingroup.
com.hk). Information on the website is updated on a regular basis.

Investors and analysts briefings and one-on-one meetings, telephone
conferences, roadshows, media interviews, marketing activities for
investors and specialist industry forums will be conducted from time
to time in order to facilitate communication between the Company,
shareholders and the investment community. In 2020, the Company
has conducted more than 210 meetings (2019: 320 meetings) with
over 470 institutional investors (2019: 550 institutional investors) and
research analysts in Hong Kong and elsewhere. During the year, the
Company was covered by 14 investment banks (2019: 13 investment
banks) and security firms to encourage mutual communication to the
investment community.
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Major Investor Relations Events in Financial Year 2020

2020 HEEFTEREEBETH

2020 Event

2020 EED

Q1 DBSV Pulse of Asia 2020
F—=F DBSV Pulse of Asia 2020

Non-Deal Roadshows

B

Post-result Roadshows
ES L

Post-result Roadshows
HRERE
Post-result Roadshows
KERKE
Post-result Roadshows
HIEBKAE
Post-result Roadshows
FRERE
Post-result Roadshows
FERKE

Post-result Roadshows
ES 3
Post-result Roadshows
HIRERE

Q2 Daiwa Consumer & Gaming Conference 2020 (Virtual Meeting)

e

F-= Daiwa Consumer & Gaming Conference 2020 (& # & &%

CLSA China Consumer Staples Access Week
CLSA China Consumer Staples Access Week

CGS-CIMB HK/China Consumer Virtual Corporate Day
CGS-CIMB HK/China Consumer Virtual Corporate Day
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2020 Event

2020 F EED
Q3 Post-result Roadshows
F== FERKE

Post-result Roadshows

HIEBKAE
Post-result Roadshows
FRERE
Post-result Roadshows
FERKE
Post-result Roadshows
ESE 3
Post-result Roadshows
FRERE
Post-result Roadshows

REREE

ICBCI Consumer Corporate Day
THREBHEBTELER

Q4 Daiwa Investment Conference Hong Kong
gmzE BERNREGS

Non-Deal Roadshows

iz

Shareholders are also encouraged to access the corporate
communication posted on the Company’s website for better
understanding of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENT

The Company has published the Articles of Association on the respective
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. During the year,
there was no change in the Company’s constitutional document.

Organiser Location
Bk B
Morgan Stanley Hong Kong
FEAR + 717 e
Haitong Hong Kong
s3] B
Daiwa Hong Kong
AH BB
Nomura Hong Kong
ESgN] e
CGS-CIMB Hong Kong
R - 2E S B

DBS Hong Kong
ER BB

First Shanghai Hong Kong
FE—LF s
ICBCI Hong Kong
THREIRR s
Daiwa Hong Kong
AH BB
Guoyuan Hong Kong
BT s

RRBTBEPRAEZH N AR RBIL 2 %
R BREIRA T BALRF] o

HEEREXH

ARRERBR AT RAR R ML TS EAHERR
AR FA - ARRHEBEEXH L EED) o

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 | —ZE T F &R



The Directors present this annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is principally engaged in the manufacture and sales of
instant noodles and is the vehicle holding interest of its subsidiaries,
whereas the Group is engaged in manufacturing and sales of noodles,
retort foods, frozen foods, beverage products and snacks, vegetable
products, and provision of publicity services in Hong Kong and China.
There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal
activities during the year ended 31 December 2020. Analysis of the
principal activities of the subsidiaries of the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2020 is set out in Note 40 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 81 of this annual report.

DIVIDEND

The Company considers stable and sustainable returns to the
shareholders to be its goal and endeavours to maintain a dividend
policy to achieve such goal.

The Board has adopted a dividend policy with effect from 1 January
2019, which provides the guiding principles and procedures for making
decisions on dividend payment. In deciding whether to propose
dividends, and in determining the dividend amount, the Board shall
take into account, inter alia: (i) the Group’s unappropriated profits/
earnings and the impact on the Group’s long-term earning capacity;
(i) the Group's results of operations, earnings performance, cashflows,
financial condition, future prospects, statutory and regulatory
restrictions on the payment of dividends; and (iii) any other factors that
the Board considers relevant.

The payment of dividend by the Company is also subject to any
restrictions under the Articles of Association. The dividend policy will
be reviewed periodically and when necessary in light of changes in
circumstances and regulatory requirements. There is no assurance that
a dividend will be proposed or declared in any specific periods.
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The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of 14.05 HK
cents per share in cash to the shareholders for the year ended 31
December 2020, which will not be subject to any withholding tax
in Hong Kong. The final dividend is subject to the approval of the
Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on
4 June 2021. The final dividend will be distributed on 29 June 2021 to
the shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company on 17 June 2021.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Detailed business review of the Group during the year as required
by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance, including indication of
likely future developments in the Group’s business and analysis of the
Group's performance using financial key performance indicators are
set out in the sections headed Chairman’s Statement, Management
Discussion and Analysis and Five-year Financial Summary of this annual
report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

A number of risks and uncertainties facing by the Group may affect its
performance, business operations or future prospects. Some of which
are inherent to the specific circumstances of the Group and some are
from the external threats or challenges. Major risks are summarised
below.

Occurrence of contingent events

Occurrence of any natural disaster or outbreak of contagious diseases
such as COVID-19 pandemic could adversely affect the Group’s business
and operations.

The Group identified COVID-19 as one of the top risk factors. In
response to the risks arising from COVID-19, the Group formed the
emergency committee (“Committee”) to take lead in implementing
all necessary precautionary measures, monitoring the situations and
development and adapting to the changing landscape.

The Group considers employees’ health as a top priority. The
Committee implemented different safety measures and maintained a
daily communication with employees, including update on latest local
situation of COVID-19 and pandemic precautionary measures. The
Group will continue to ensure the implementation of all safety measures
required by the HKSAR government.

To enhance pandemic precautionary measures, the IT-support of the
Group was strengthened and upgraded to enable the viability and
effectiveness of the business operations. Crisis management protocol,
remote working practice, business continuity plan, and call-out trees
were tailor-made for different business operations.
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The Group will continue to closely monitor the latest situation of
COVID-19, and take prompt action when necessary.

Food Safety Risk

The Group’s success depends on its branding and reputation, and
consumers’ recognition and their trust in its products. Food safety is the
Group's lifeblood. Food safety incident may result in a serious damage
to its reputation and loss of consumers’ trust in its products. The
profitability of the Group may be impacted as a result.

As a manufacturer of products intended for human consumption, the
Group places high emphasis on food safety and quality management
to ensure health and safety of its customers. All of the food production
plants of the Group have acquired the 1SO22000 Food Safety
Management System accreditation and are also guided by the Internal
Management Manual. Furthermore, the food safety management
system of the production plant for frozen food products in Hong Kong
has been upgraded and accredited with FSSC 22000 in early March
2019. Across different stages in its production process, the Group has
put in place quality control procedures for raw materials and finished
goods which are monitored by the food safety teams of the Group. In
the event that quality issues arose after sales of products, the Group
runs the tracking system to address such issues and would follow its
product recall control procedures, if necessary.

The Group also conducts on-site inspections which cover manufacturing
processes and hygiene management of raw material suppliers and
contract manufacturers, confirming the procurement criteria and
providing guidance to the suppliers and contract manufacturers for
improvement.

In addition to maintain quality control at the production plants, Food
Safety Evaluation & Research Institute Co., Ltd. located in Shanghai,
the PRC, which the Group owns 5% stake and is accredited by the PRC
National Accreditation Service for Conformity Assessment with 1SO/
IEC 17025, is supporting the Group to prevent food contamination and
ensure quality and safety of raw materials and finished goods through
the provision of food safety tests on its products and production
facilities.

Moreover, the Group pays close attention to various food safety

incidents of other food producers so as to establish a preventive
measure, if necessary.
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Labour Supply Risk

Due to keen competition in the labour markets in Hong Kong and
the PRC, the ability to retain experienced and competent production
workers is one of the key success factors for the Group. Ample control
over turnover rate will not only minimise training and recruitment costs,
but also reduce the impact on business expansion plans.

Employees are the most valuable assets of the Group. As part of the
measures to mitigate the labour supply risk, the Group will continue to
enhance production automation in order to improve efficiencies and
reduce reliance on manual labour. The Group will also continue putting
efforts to improve the working conditions of production sites and to
launch engagement programs so as to increase employees’ loyalty.

Business Competition Risk

There is an increasing number of competitors and products, both
local and foreign brands, targeting different customer segments. The
Company may face challenges in the market, which in turn, may impact
on its profitability and return on investment.

The Group's success partly depends on its ability to anticipate, identify
and react to changes in consumers’ tastes, preferences, perceptions,
income, lifestyle and health awareness and to offer, in a timely manner,
new products that appeal to the customers. Its ability to continue to
distinguish its products from its competitors is also one of the keys to
success.

To suit different customers’ preferences, the Group has been
developing a collection of non-fried instant noodle products which offer
a low fat and calorie option to the public. It has also started to produce
granola products which are popular among the customers. In addition,
it has also diversified into the distribution of Japanese-made vegetable
and fruit beverage products in both Hong Kong and the PRC.

The Group continues to enhance its brand recognition and awareness
among young generation through multi-faceted marketing strategies
targeting younger generations and collaborates with renowned food
shops to develop new flavored products with stylish designs.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

0]

(i)

(iii)

Relationship with Customers

The Group places strong emphasis on establishing and
maintaining strong and stable business relationships with
its customers through its commitment to offer safe, tasty,
differentiated and trendy products. It also stays connected with
customers through channels like the Company’s homepage,
promotions, marketing materials and incentives, and social media
to keep abreast of the changing consumer preferences.

Relationship with Distributors

The Group has developed a strong distribution network which
in turn enables it to maintain a leading position in the market.
In order to maintain a long term and stable business relationship
with its distributors, the Group enters into distribution agreements
with its major distributors under which the distributors place
purchase order from time to time that typically set out the types,
prices and quantities of products to be purchased.

Relationship with Suppliers

The Group procures a majority of raw materials from independent
third-party domestic and overseas suppliers. It has different
suppliers for each type of raw materials for both Hong Kong and
the PRC operation to avoid over reliance on any single supplier.

Meanwhile, the Group procures a portion of raw materials such
as soup base, seasoning and condiments from Nissin Japan with
the belief that it has better quality control and some of the raw
materials are unique.

The Group also carefully selects its suppliers by evaluating
their overall track record, financial strengths, reliability,
competitiveness, stability of supply, quality control measures,
pricing as well as logistics arrangements. It also closely
communicates with and monitors its suppliers and requires
them to provide food safety certificates for their supply of raw
materials.
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(iv) Relationship with Employees

Employees are one of the greatest assets of the Group. As at
31 December 2020, the Group has a total of 3,500 employees
in Hong Kong and the PRC. For the purpose of sustainable
business development, the Group spares no efforts in recruiting
talented professionals. It also provides continuing education
and training programmes to employees so as to improve their
skills and develop their potentials. The Group believes that the
working environment and the supports and benefits provided to
the employees have contributed to maintaining good working
relationships.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM GLOBAL OFFERING

The shares of the Company (the “Shares”) were listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange on 11 December 2017 (the “Listing
Date”). The total proceeds from the Listing involving the issue
of 268,580,000 ordinary shares of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$950.8 million. During the year, the Group has
applied the net proceeds according to the plans disclosed in the section
headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus. We
have been and will continue exploring strategic partnerships and/or
acquisitions targets as part of our business development in Hong Kong
and the PRC. Details of the use of proceeds are set out in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

SIGNIFICANT TREASURY INVESTMENTS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group held unlisted structured notes in
an aggregate fair value of US$25.4 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$197.1 million) (“Structured Notes”) issued by a financial institution
in Hong Kong. The Structured Notes are interest-rate linked instrument
with enhanced interest rates which accrues interest based on accrual
interest rate, and can be extended and rolled over on a monthly basis
unless the Group exercises the right to redeem the Structured Notes
on maturity date. The Structured Notes carried interest ranging from
0.3% to 2.4% per annum during the year (2019: ranging from 2.3% to
3.6%), and represented approximately 3.80% of the total assets of the
Group as at 31 December 2020. The purchases of the Structured Notes
were funded by internal resources of the Group as a cash management
tool in order to utilise surplus fund to generate income and were
conducted in accordance with the Company’s established treasury
policy to enhance returns for its shareholders.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no significant investments of
individual fair value of 5% or above of the Group’s total assets during
the year.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group's sales to its five
largest customers accounted for 65.6% (2019: 69.8%) of the Group’s
total revenue and the largest customer accounted for 23.6% (2019:
25.5%) of the Group’s total revenue. The Group's five largest suppliers
accounted for 22.5% (2019: 20.8%) of the Group's total purchases
and the largest supplier accounted for 7.1% (2019: 7.2%) of the
Group’s total purchases.

None of the Directors, their respective associates, or any of the existing
shareholders who, to the best knowledge of the Directors owned 5.0%
or more of the issued share capital of the Company, has a beneficial
interest in any of the five largest suppliers or customers of the Group.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment at
a cost of HK$241.4 million, and property, plant and equipment with
carrying values of HK$8.2 million were disposed.

Details of these and other movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in Note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the Group's retirement benefit schemes are set out in Note
35 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company's listed securities during the year.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in Note 32 to
the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s distributable reserve at 31 December 2020 amounted
to approximately HK$573.0 million (2019: HK$546.2 million) which
represented retained profits of the Company as at that date.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this
annual report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Kiyotaka Ando

Mr. Toshimichi Fujinawa
Mr. Shinji Tatsutani

Mr. Kazuo Kawasaka
Mr. Munehiko Ono

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Sumio Matsumoto

Mr. Junichi Honda

Professor Lynne Yukie Nakano

Mr. Toshiaki Sakai (appointed on 1 April 2020)

Pursuant to Article 107 of the Articles of Association, at each annual
general meeting, one-third of the directors (including the managing
director) or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, the
number which is nearest to and is at least one-third, shall retire from
office by rotation at the annual general meeting. A retiring director shall
be eligible for re-election. Accordingly, Mr. Shinji Tatsutani, Dr. Sumio
Matsumoto and Mr. Junichi Honda will retire from office as Directors
by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, Independent Non-executive
Directors were appointed for specific term. All Directors are also
subject to the retirement by rotation in accordance with the Articles
of Association. None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the Independent
Non-executive Directors are independent.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of the associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (a)
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including any
interest or short positions which were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO) or (b) were required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to therein, or ()
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange,
pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:

Long position in the Shares

RRGBzHA

Name of Directors Capacity/Nature

BEEMA gt/ 14

Kiyotaka Ando Beneficial owner
LB BmEAA
Interest of spouse

A iBay

i

Toshimichi Fujinawa

BERERA

Shinji Tatsutani
RABEIR

Munehiko Ono
NERE

Kazuo Kawasaka

JISRAE

Beneficial owner
BEnEAA

Beneficial owner

BEDEAA

Beneficial owner

BaEEAA

Beneficial owner

BEDEAA
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Long position in the Shares of associated corporation

1,900 shares were held directly by him and 2,379 shares were held by an
JEA O/

employee share ownership association, namely /5 R mit £ B354 g, as
a nominee of Mr. Kazuo Kawasaka.

REESZERG ZHR
Name of associated Number of Shares Percentage
Name of Directors corporation Capacity/Nature held/interested of interest
EESE B EE R 15 HEE Fig ik B Rk (H 28 EmADLL
Kiyotaka Ando Nissin Japan Beneficial owner 10,0294 0.01%
LB E RBAXR EnEEA
Toshimichi Fujinawa Nissin Japan Beneficial owner 1,277° 0.00%
B A RBEAAR BB A
Shinji Tatsutani Nissin Japan Beneficial owner 1,780° 0.00%
RAER RBAXR EnEEA
Kazuo Kawasaka Nissin Japan Beneficial owner 4,2795 0.00%
JISRFN A& ER=E=FN EmEA A
Munehiko Ono Nissin Japan Beneficial owner 3,735° 0.00%
NEFRE RBAXR EnEAA
Notes: MH5T
1. These shares are held by Mr. Kiyotaka Ando directly in his personal name. 1. ZERNBLTHEERLENEAAGETERERS
5o
Mrs. Aina Ando is the spouse of Mr. Kiyotaka Ando. By virtue of the SFO, 2. Aina Ando X + R ZHEFE S AW EE - RiF
Mr. Kiyotaka Ando is deemed to be interested in all the shares in which BHELBEGD - REBRLEWEE BN Aina
Mrs. Aina Ando is interested or deemed to be interested under the SFO. Ando Z T HB R IIREEF LB KOIHER A
HEEENMERNPHEES
These shares are the shares granted by the Company pursuant to the 3. ZERD RARRRIBL S M IBSIREM T 33 A7
Share Award Scheme as set out in Note 33 to the consolidated financial AR BB BRI 2 IR -
statements.
Among 10,029 shares of Nissin Japan held by Mr. Kiyotaka Ando, 10,000 4. NEFEBREEERFHF 2 10,029 REARBBERG
shares were held directly by him and 29 shares were held by a director 710,000 MR X B R 0 29 IRAR (D
share ownership association, namely F/E&M% B#F1%E, as a nominee SEERBERBERBEERNE (EATHBRE
of Mr. Kiyotaka Ando. FEZRBNFFE -
These shares were held by an employee share ownership association, 5. ZEROHHEIFRHERERDBUEERFKS
namely BB R MIEZEEFHKE, as a nominee of the respective Director. (EREESEZREBNEFE -
Among 4,279 shares of Nissin Japan held by Mr. Kazuo Kawasaka, 6. RIBRMALEREE 24,279 B/ ARG -

1,900 [RARD ERIE B35 A 2,379 RIRHEBET
ERpe BERMIEEBRRE (FRJIIRM AL
EZRBNEE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 | —ZE T F &R



\

bl

DIRECTORS' REPORT =S 3RS

ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives
Interests in Securities” above, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS" INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors and their respective associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) has any competing interests directly or indirectly with the
business of the Group which require to be disclosed as defined in the
Listing Rules during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL AND OTHERS SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2020, so far as known to the Directors, the
following person (not being a Director or chief executive of the
Company) had interest or short position in the Shares or underlying
shares which fell to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange under the provision of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO or as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Long position in the Shares

Rkt 252

Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature
R ER & 78 1,/ &
Nissin Japan Beneficial owner
HERX BmEAA

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group's operations are carried out by the Company’s subsidiaries
in Hong Kong and the PRC while the Shares itself are listed on the
Stock Exchange. The Group's operations are regulated by Hong Kong
and the PRC laws. During the year ended 31 December 2020 and up
to the date of this annual report, the Company has complied with the
relevant laws and regulations that have significant impact in Hong Kong
and the PRC. In particular, as a food and beverage manufacturer, the
Group's operations are regulated by the food safety and environmental
protection laws and regulations in Hong Kong and the PRC. During the
year under review, the Group did not have any material non-compliance
with such laws and regulations.

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BERMABRAF

mERNREERE I

B EXEERBESTRABRES T 2 S —
A BEES - ARSI ERFDREFR
(AR AT AR 2R - HEEE
Y NE LB IN L PAPET L
B -

EERHERRBZER

FA BEEERFEZAZHEA(ERR LT
A MEAEEEFERIEERFARE LT
RAFUEATIRE 2 X5 A (T -

TEREMBERRES P ZER

20206 12 A31 8 HEEMA - TIATQE
FEEHARRNBRRITEA B) RGBT
FHEBEAREESFRAERME XV BE2 &3
DEMEN AR R B KBTI EMER AR
AR AR D BIRIEEH LB E 5755 336 §IR
FrEMeEREsRA

Number of Shares Percentage
held/interested of interest

Fig Pk B Rk #E A DL
752,024,000 70.00%

BT EERER
AEELEHEARARZEARFTREKN BRI
17 MARRBRGRBRFT LT - AEBMEIESZ
BEARPEVEEAE - BLE2020F 12 A 31 H
HEERHEEANFRAY  ARRBETREE
EKHPBREEAFE HEEERZER - BgmE
EARREREER AEEEEIEERPH
ZRELZERRRERIEERE - NEBEEE -
AEEVETNBREERGEEIEREEZE
jRo



EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Save for the share award scheme disclosed in Note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements, no equity-linked agreement (as
defined in section 6 of the Companies (Directors’ Report) Regulation
(Chapter 622D of the Laws of Hong Kong)) was entered into during the
year or subsisted at the end of the year.

NON-COMPETITION CONFIRMATION

Nissin Japan (the controlling shareholder of the Company) has entered
into a deed of non-competition in favour of the Company dated 21
November 2017 (the “Deed of Non-Competition”) pursuant to Nissin
Japan irrevocably undertaken, among other matters, not to, directly
or indirectly sell any of its instant noodles, frozen foods, snack and
confectionery products to Hong Kong, the PRC, Macau and Taiwan
(i.e. the HK Group Territory) which would or may compete with the
business of the Group. Details of the Deed of Non-Competition have
been set out in the section headed “Relationship with our Controlling
Shareholder” in the Prospectus of the Company dated 29 November
2017. The Company has received the confirmation from Nissin Japan
in respect of their compliance with the terms of the Deed of Non-
Competition.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” of this annual report, (i) no contract of significance was
entered into by, and/or subsisted between the Company or any of its
subsidiaries with the controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries
during the year; and (ii) there is no contract of significance in relation
to provision of services by the controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries to the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to
the Company'’s business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year under review.
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MEBARES

LATREER 2020 F 12 A 31 BIEEEARRAIME
NREE

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The following Directors have served on the Board of subsidiaries of the
Company as at 31 December 2020:

Place/Country

Name of Subsidiaries of Incorporation and Operation

b2

ME AR TE FEMAR S R A b BB Name of Directors EENE

Nissin Foods (H.K.) Company Limited Hong Kong Kiyotaka Ando ZHEaE
B/ERmM(EFE)BRATF BE Takeshi Kikunaga o fE
Tse Chi Ping, Roy A EF

Keiji lwakiri E=17)1= -

Nissin Foods (H.K.) Management Hong Kong Kiyotaka Ando ZEEEE

Company Limited BB Toshimichi Fujinawa A

BRMER)BEEEBRAT Shinji Tatsutani RBER

Munehiko Ono NEFRE

Takakazu Yamada IEE=

Takeshi Shigemi ZHEES

Motoyoshi Tachibana SEARFE

Yosuke Tsuchiya TEFE

Hiromichi Kimura VNREZELE

Nissin Koikeya Foods (China & HK) Hong Kong Kiyotaka Ando THEaE
Co., Limited B Takashi Koike N

(“Nissin Koikeya Foods") Naomichi Fujimaki BESiEE

BBEMHE (R« E#) BRAA] Keiji Iwakiri E=p0)) = -
(=ppiib =) Takeshi Kikunaga Bk hE

Hiromichi Kimura VA7
Winner Food Products Limited Hong Kong Lau Wing Leung Max 25k 52

K RmARAT BE Kiyotaka Ando THEBE

Shinji Tatsutani RAER

Munehiko Ono NERE

Katsunori Hiroi &35 8l

Toshimichi Fujinawa FERETIA

Yosuke Tsuchiya TEFEH

MC Marketing & Sales (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Kiyotaka Ando ZHERE

Limited BA Kazuhito Baba HGFA

BARZEBRAT Masamune Komori IR

Shinji Tatsutani RAER

Tetsuya Murata NHEZH
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Name of Subsidiaries

ME AR R

Kagome Nissin Foods (H.K.) Co.,

Limited

ARERBRA(FR)ERAA

ValleyFarm Holdings Limited

BRAZERARAT

Hong Kong Eastpeak Limited

BERIERRAF

Nissin Foods (China) Holding Co.,

Limited

RERM(FE)RERRAR

Zhejiang Nissin Foods Company

Limited
AIHERMABRAR

Guangdong Shunde Nissin Foods

Co. Ltd.

ERIEERBRABREA

el

Place/Country
of Incorporation and Operation
ERIPAVINE Sb: ik =T

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong

&5

PRC
i

PRC
i

PRC
i

Name of Directors

Kiyotaka Ando
Takeshi Kikunaga
Toshimichi Fujinawa
Keiji Iwakiri
Hiromichi Kimura
Yoshihide Watanabe
Norio lzutsu

Hideaki Tsuruda

Munehiko Ono

Ho King Yin Edwin
Toshimichi Fujinawa
Takeshi Kikunaga
Kozo Nagura

Kiyotaka Ando
Kazuo Kawasaka
Hiromichi Kimura

Kiyotaka Ando
Kazuo Kawasaka
Shinji Tatsutani
Gen Matsunobu
Akifumi Aiba
Yutaka Komori
Ying Li Feng
Katsunori Hiroi

Kiyotaka Ando
Kiyoshi Matsuura
Munehiko Ono
Shinji Tatsutani
Kazuo Kawasaka

Kiyotaka Ando
Munehiko Ono
Akifumi Aiba
Takayuki Yagi
Hirofumi Inoue
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Name of Subsidiaries

()= NCIEL

Zhuhai Golden Coast Winner Food
Products Limited
KEMEERKERMAERAR

Gangyongnan Food Products
(Shenzhen) Co. Ltd.
BxER M ORI BRAR

Dongguan Nissin Packaging Co. Ltd.
ZREREBRAR

Fujian Nissin Foods Co. Ltd.
BEAERMEBRAT

Zhuhai Nissin Packaging Company
Limited
WEREREERAT

Shanghai Eastpeak Trading Co. Ltd.*

LEREESHERAF]

*  For identification purpose only

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED

A

Place/Country
of Incorporation and Operation

i AVl

PRC
=

PRC
e

PRC
FE

PRC
h

PRC
q:

PRC
FE

Name of Directors

Katsunori Hiroi

Ho Ming Dong
Kiyotaka Ando
Shinji Tatsutani
Yosuke Tsuchiya
Shunsuke Teranishi
Munehiko Ono
Toshimichi Fujinawa
Liang Jin Ting

Quan Shi Bin

Akifumi Aiba
Shinji Tatsutani
Yosuke Tsuchiya
Hirokazu Nakao

Munehiko Ono
Susumu Hayashi
Kiyotaka Ando
Takakazu Yamada

Kiyotaka Ando

Fung Kam Shing Barry
Munehiko Ono

Shinji Tatsutani
Akifumi Aiba

Toshimichi Fujinawa
Kiyotaka Ando
Munehiko Ono
Yamada Takakazu
Atsushi Matsuura

Ying Li Feng
Kiyotaka Ando
Kazuo Kawasaka
Hiromichi Kimura
Liu Feng
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every directors shall be entitled
to the indemnity out of the assets of the Company against any liability
incurred by him/her in relation to the Company in defending any
proceedings, whether civil or criminal, to the extent permitted by the
Companies Ordinance. Such permitted indemnity provision was in force
during the year ended 31 December 2020 and remains in force at the
date of this annual report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the Directors of the Company is decided
by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
performance, operating results and comparable market statistics.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and to
the best knowledge of the Directors, the Board confirms that during
the year and up to the date of this annual report, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
HK$40 million.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

The Group has put in place policy to promote environmental protection.
In order to reduce environmental impacts at every stage of its business
activities, the Group adopts a wide range of policies to control pollutant
emissions, to encourage recycling of office supplies, to use water
saving facilities, and to ensure compliance with environmental laws and
regulations both in Hong Kong and the PRC.

Environment, social and governance report will be published to the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange respectively in July
2021 in the manner as required by Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS HEREXS
During the year, the Company has entered into the following FR - ARAIDE A T ERRNFRIFEE 2 B
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the iEZ S (ERR EMBRAE 14AF) o
Listing Rules required to be disclosed in this annual report.
Transaction
Transaction Agreement  Connected parties involved  Nature of Relationship Annual caps  amount in 2020
K20204F
ek R BET FELE FE R R TH
HK$million HK$million
BEBETL ABET
Technology and Nissin Japan Controlling Shareholder 24.0 17.0
Trademark Licencing
Agreement (Note D
Fdfo % B R AT A ek HEAR PERR AR R
GE2D)
Snacks Supply Nissin Koikeya Foods Non-wholly owned subsidiary 26.0 224
Agreement Nete2) owned as to 34.0% by Koike-
Ya, Inc. which is in turn owned
as to approximately 34.53% by
Controlling Shareholder
TRMAERRE 5 HEWEER M HBBE (RIERBERERLD
34.53% %) #EH34.0%
B ERENBAA
Snacks and Nissin Koikeya Foods Non-wholly owned subsidiary 50.0 40.6
Confectionery owned as to 34.0% by Koike-
Purchase Agreement Ya, Inc. which is in turn owned
(Note 3) as to approximately 34.53% by
Controlling Shareholder
ZRFEFRERZE  RAEHLERR HE (RIERRREBLD
(Hi3) 34.53% 15 ) HE34.0%
R EREWBAT
Master Raw Materials and Nissin Japan Controlling Shareholder 233.0 1684
Products Procurement
Agreement (Note4)
FEMH REMREAR BEAXR PERR AR
ERGED)
66 NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BERMABRAF



Transaction Agreement

R 5 s

Master Raw Materials
and Products Sale
Agreement o)

JRFTH R EE e SH 4R

Eg% (Bt3E5)

Master Quality Control
Support Service
Agreement (o)

HEEEERG AR

E% (Bitste)

Publicity Service Master
Agreement (Note?)

BB EIRS HE e)

MCHK Master
Procurement
Agreement Nowed)

BR=ZEBHE D Z

(Bi38)

MCHK Master Supply
Agreement Newe 9

BB —ERMHERE
(FfHE9)

Mitsubishi Master Supply
Agreement (Nete 10

=R ERNERZE

(FfzE10)

MS Master Procurement
Agreement (Nete 1

ZERMBRERE
(FifE11)

Research Service Master
Agreement (Nete 12

AR RIS s (2

Connected parties involved  Nature of Relationship

W2 TS

Nissin Japan

Food Safety Evaluation &
Research Institute Co,,
Ltd.

Food Safety Evaluation
& Research Institute
Co., Ltd.

Nissin Japan

HEBZR

Mitsubishi Corporation
(Hong Kong) Limited

EE=zmFe
BERRF]

Mitsubishi Corporation
(Hong Kong) Limited

EE=zmFe
BERAF]

Mitsubishi Corporation

—ERERAEL

Mitsubishi Shokuhin
Co, Ltd.

ZRMHRA

>

#t

Nissin Japan

HBRX

BREME

Controlling Shareholder

PR

Subsidiary of Controlling
Shareholder

PERAR 2 M B A A

Controlling Shareholder

PR

Subsidiary of a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary of
the Company

RNABINE QR 2 IEERARR
i) NG|

Subsidiary of a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary of
the Company

RNABINE QR 2 IEERARR
i) NG|

Non-controlling shareholder of a
subsidiary of the Company
RNABINE QR 2 FEERRAR R

Subsidiary of a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary of
the Company

RNABINE QR 2 IEERRAR R
pd 1) VNS!

Controlling shareholder

PR

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Annual caps

FEER
HK$million
AEBT

140.0

7.0

8.0

612.0

566.0

40.0

12.0

4.0

Transaction
amount in 2020
720204
IR
HK$million
BEAT

93.0

4.1

360.1

4759

189

55

2.7
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Notes:

The Company entered into the Technology and Trademark Licencing
Agreement with Nissin Japan on 21 November 2017, pursuant to which
Nissin Japan granted:

(i) a non-exclusive licence to the Group to use certain technology
and trademarks (the “Nissin Trademarks and Technology”) in our
business in Hong Kong, Macau, the PRC, Taiwan (i.e. the HK Group
Territory) and export of its products bearing and/or using the Nissin
Trademarks and Technology; and

(ii) a non-exclusive licence to the Group to use certain trademarks (the
“Nissin Koikeya Trademarks”) in distribution of products bearing
the Nissin Koikeya Trademarks in the HK Group Territory.

The term of the Technology and Trademark Licencing Agreement is
three years commencing from the Listing Date and shall be automatically
renewable for further terms of three years upon expiry subject to
the applicable requirements under the Listing Rules unless and until
terminated upon the breach of any undertakings in any material respect
by the Group or otherwise mutually terminated by the parties in writing at
least 90 days in advance.

On 7 November 2019, the Company has renewed the Technology
and Trademark Licencing Agreement for a further term of three years
commencing from 11 December 2020. For details of the transaction,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 7 November
2019.

On 21 November 2017, the Company has entered into a snacks supply
agreement (the “Snacks Supply Agreement”) with Nissin Koikeya Foods,
the connected subsidiary, pursuant to which the Company has agreed to
supply potato chips products to Nissin Koikeya Foods for its onward sales.
The term of the Snacks Supply Agreement is three years commencing
from 1 January 2017 and is renewable upon expiry for further terms of
three years subject to applicable requirements under the Listing Rules
unless otherwise agreed by the parties. The Snacks Supply Agreement
does not contain any provision which allows either the Company or Nissin
Koikeya Foods to terminate the agreement during its term. The Directors
consider that it would be more cost-efficient in the long run to produce
the potato chips products on its own and it would ensure a more stable
supply of quality products.

On 7 November 2019, the Company has renewed the Snacks Supply
Agreement for a further term of three years commencing from 1 January
2020. For details of the transaction, please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 7 November 2019.
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Nissin Foods HK has entered into an agreement (the “Snacks and
Confectionery Purchase Agreement”) with Nissin Koikeya Foods on
21 November 2017 to govern the sales and purchase of snacks and
confectionery. The term of the Snacks and Confectionery Purchase
Agreement is three years from 1 January 2017 and is renewable upon
expiry for further terms of three years subject to applicable requirements
under the Listing Rules unless otherwise agreed by the parties. The Snacks
and Confectionery Purchase Agreement does not contain any provision
which allows either Nissin Foods HK or Nissin Koikeya Foods to terminate
the agreement during its term. The transactions contemplated under the
Snacks and Confectionery Purchase Agreement are intra-group connected
transactions. Before the incorporation of Nissin Foods HK in August 2015,
the Company has been performing the sales function within the Group
and it has a long term and direct business relationship with its distributors
in Hong Kong, Macau and the PRC. After the incorporation of Nissin
Foods HK, it has taken up the sales function within the Group.

On 7 November 2019, the Company has renewed the Snacks and
Confectionary Purchase Agreement for a further term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2020. On 31 August 2020, the Group
adjusted the annual caps for 2020, 2021 and 2022 from HK$32.0 million,
HK$35.0 million and HK$HK$39.0 million to HK$50.0 million, HK$70.0
million and HK$98.0 million, respectively, in order to meet the business
growth of the snacks and confectionary of the Group. For details of the
transaction, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 7
November 2019 and 31 August 2020.

The Company has entered into an agreement (the “Master Raw
Materials and Products Procurement Agreement”) with Nissin Japan on
21 November 2017. The term of the Mater Raw Materials and Products
Procurement Agreement is three years commencing from 1 January
2017 and is renewable upon expiry for further terms of three years
subject to the applicable requirements under the Listing Rules unless
otherwise agreed by the parties. The Master Raw Materials and Products
Procurement Agreement does not contain any provision which allows
either the Company or Nissin Japan to terminate the agreement during
its term. The raw materials supplied under the Master Raw Materials
and Products Procurement Agreement include seasoning, oil, addictive,
flour, milk etc. The Company mainly sources such raw materials through
the Nissin Japan Group in order to gain access to the suppliers in Japan
more efficiently and to benefit from the lower procurement cost when
purchases are made together with the Nissin Japan Group at a larger
volume. While the Company is able to source the raw materials from
Independent Third Parties in Japan or elsewhere, and believes it would not
be as cost efficient when compared to the current arrangement to procure
through the Nissin Japan Group. The finished goods purchased under
the Master Raw Materials and Products Procurement Agreement mainly
include Japanese noodles products as well as confectionery products.
The Company considers that it is beneficial to the Group as a whole to
purchase the finished goods from the Nissin Japan Group for its onward
sale to distributors in Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan and the PRC whom it
has built a long term relationship with.

On 7 November 2019, the Company has renewed the Master Raw
Materials and Products Procurement Agreement for a further term of
three years commencing from 1 January 2020. On 5 June 2020, the
Group adjusted the annual caps for 2020, 2021 and 2022 from HK$144.0
million, HK$145.0 million and HK$HK$147.0 million to HK$233.0 million,
HK$272.0 million and HK$293.0 million, respectively, in order to meet the
business growth of instant food of the Group and maintain its effective
supply chain management. For details of the transaction, please refer to
the announcements of the Company dated 7 November 2019 and 8 April
2020 and the circular of the Company dated 5 May 2020.
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On 21 November 2017, the Company entered into a sale and purchase
agreement (the “Master Raw Materials and Products Sale Agreement”)
with Nissin Japan to govern the supply of raw materials and finished
goods by the Group to the Nissin Japan Group. The raw materials supplied
by the Group to the Nissin Japan Group include seasoning powder and
packaging materials and the finished goods supplied by the Group to the
Nissin Japan Group include instant noodles and potato chips products. The
term of the Master Raw Materials and Products Sale Agreement is three
years commencing from 1 January 2017 and is renewable upon expiry for
further terms of three years subject to the applicable requirements under
the Listing Rules unless otherwise agreed by the parties. The Master Raw
Materials and Products Sale Agreement does not contain any provision
which allows either the Company or Nissin Japan to terminate the
agreement during its term. For the sale of raw materials, the Group can
enjoy a lower purchasing cost by way of bulk purchases and the resale to
the Nissin Japan Group would enhance a better use of the raw materials.
For the sale of finished goods, the Company considers that the sale is
conducted in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group
and the terms of sale to the Nissin Japan Group are similar to those that
entered into with other distributors who are Independent Third Parties.

On 7 November 2019, the Company has renewed the Master Raw
Materials and Product Sale Agreement for a further term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2020. On 31 August 2020, the Group
adjusted the annual caps for 2020, 2021 and 2022 from HK$95.0
million, HK$115.0 million and HK$HK$140.0 million to HK$140.0 million,
HK$147.0 million and HK$154.0 million, respectively, in light with the
production capacity of the Group and expected demand of Nissin Japan
Group. For details of the transaction, please refer to the announcements
of the Company dated 7 November 2019 and 31 August 2020.

In order to govern the provision of food safety tests by the Nissin
Shanghai Food Safety Institute to the Group, the Company has entered
into a master quality control support service agreement (the “Master
Quality Control Support Service Agreement”) on 21 November 2017
with the Nissin Shanghai Food Safety Institute. While it can engage other
Independent Third Parties to conduct the food safety tests, the Company
believes that it is more cost-efficient to engage the Nissin Shanghai Food
Safety Institute to provide such services as it has good experience in the
food safety of instant foods products and it provides quality services.
Also, it can provide the service at a more favourable rate than other
Independent Third Parties providing similar service. The term of the Master
Quality Control Support Service Agreement is three years commencing
from 1 January 2017 and is renewable upon expiry for further terms
of three years subject to the applicable requirements under the Listing
Rules unless otherwise agreed by the parties. The Master Quality Control
Support Service Agreement does not contain any provision which allows
either the Company or Nissin Shanghai Food Safety Institute to terminate
the agreement during its term.

On 7 November 2019, the Company has renewed the Master Quality
Control Support Service Agreement for a further term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2020. For details of the transaction, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 7 November 2019.
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The Company has entered into a publicity service master agreement
(the “Publicity Service Master Agreement”) with Nissin Japan on 22
June 2018 to provide services to Nissin Japan in relation to publicity of
“Nissin” brand and public relation work for the purpose of enhancing the
worldwide presence of Nissin Japan and the brand recognition of “Nissin”.
Accordingly, the entering of this agreement will enable the Group to
better utilize its business resources not only to expand its source of income
but also help reinforcing the Nissin brand image. The term of the Publicity
Service Master Agreement is two years commencing from 22 June 2018.
The Company believes that the transactions contemplated under this
agreement are beneficial to the business growth and development of the
Group as a whole.

The Company has entered into a master procurement agreement (the
“MCHK Master Procurement Agreement”) with Mitsubishi Corporation
(Hong Kong) Limited (“MCHK") on 22 March 2018 pursuant to which
the Group has agreed to procure the procurement products from MCHK,
which include (i) finished goods under the brands of third parties including
mineral water and beverage products, sauce products and other products
and (ii) raw materials, which include flour, starch, seasoning and material
for packaging. Sourcing of such diversified products can expand the
portfolio of the products and the Company believes that the transactions
contemplated under this agreement are beneficial to the business growth
and development of the Group as a whole. The term of the MCHK Master
Procurement Agreement is from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2020,
renewable upon expiry for further three years subject to compliance with
applicable requirements under the Listing Rules.

On 6 November 2020, the Company has renewed the MCHK Master
Procurement Agreement for a further term of three years commencing
from 1 January 2021. For details of the transaction, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 6 November 2020.

The Company has entered into a master supply agreement (the “MCHK
Master Supply Agreement”) with MCHK on 22 March 2018 pursuant
to which the Group has agreed to sell the supply products to MCHK,
which include instant noodles, rice vermicelli products and potato chips
and provide incidental promotional service relating to the products sold.
The Company believes that the well-established and extensive sales and
distribution network of MCHK provides an effective sale channel for the
products of the Group and the transactions contemplated under this
agreement are beneficial to the business growth and development of the
Group as a whole. The term of the MCHK Master Supply Agreement is
from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2020, renewable upon expiry for
further three years subject to compliance with applicable requirements
under the Listing Rules.

On 21 March 2019, the Group adjusted the annual caps for 2019 and
2020 from HK$453,000,000 and HK$499,000,000 to HK$492,173,000
and HK$565,999,000, respectively, in light with the business development
and the progress in production capacity of the Group.

On 6 November 2020, the Company has renewed the MCHK Master
Supply Agreement for a further term of three years commencing from
1 January 2021. For details of the transaction, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 6 November 2020.
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The Company has entered into an agreement (the “Mitsubishi Master
Supply Agreement”) with Mitsubishi Corporation (“Mitsubishi”) on 21
March 2019, pursuant to which the Group has agreed to sell to Mitsubishi
the supply products, which include the food and beverage products.
The Company believes that the well-established and extensive sales and
distribution network of Mitsubishi provide an effective sale channel
for the products of the Group which in turn is expected to enhance
the overall sales revenue of the Group. Hence, it is believed that the
transactions contemplated under the Mitsubishi Master Supply Agreement
are beneficial to the business growth and development of the Group as
whole. The term of the Mitsubishi Master Supply Agreement is from 1
March 2019 to 31 December 2020, renewable upon expiry for further
three years subject to compliance with applicable requirements under the
Listing Rules.

On 31 August 2020, the Group adjusted the annual cap for 2020 from
HK$15.0 million to HK$40.0 million, in order to meet the business growth
of beverage products of the Group.

On 6 November 2020, the Company has renewed the Mitsubishi
Master Supply Agreement for a further term of three years commencing
from 1 January 2021. For details of the transaction, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 6 November 2020.

The Company has entered into an agreement (the “MS Master
Procurement Agreement”) with Mitsubishi Shokuhin Company Limited
(“Mitsubishi Shokuhin”) on 29 August 2019, pursuant to which the
Group has agreed to purchase from Mitsubishi Shokuhin the procurement
products, which comprise of finished goods under the brand of
third parties including snacks, confectionaries, sauce and condiment
products and other products. The Company believes that sourcing of
such diversified products can expand the portfolio of the products that
the Group can offer to its customers through its own well-established
distribution and sale channels already spread over Hong Kong and the PRC
which in turn is expected to enhance the overall income and profitability
of the Group. Hence, it is believed that the transactions contemplated
under the MS Master Procurement Agreement are beneficial to the
business growth and development of the Group as a whole. The term
of the MS Master Procurement Agreement is from 1 August 2019 to 31
December 2020, renewable upon expiry for further three years subject to
compliance with applicable requirements under the Listing Rules.

On 6 November 2020, the Company has renewed the MS Master
Procurement Agreement for a further term of three years commencing
from 1 January 2021. For details of the transaction, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 6 November 2020.
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12.  The Company has entered into an agreement (“the Research Service
Master Agreement”) with Nissin Japan on 19 March 2020. Pursuant to
the terms of the Research Service Master Agreement, the Group shall
provide research services to Nissin Japan which include, but not limited to,
researching raw materials, facilities and suppliers in the PRC to enhance
the research and development capability of Nissin Japan. The Company
believes that the entering of the agreement will enable the Group to
better utilize its existing business resources to expand its source of
income. Further, the provision of the research services will enhance the
overall research and development capability of Nissin Japan, which may in
turn benefit the Group as the Group is able to leverage on Nissin Japan's
research and development advancement. The term of the Research Service
Master Agreement is for three years commenced from the 1 April 2020
and shall be automatically renewed on the same terms and conditions for
further terms of three years upon its expiry subject to compliance with
applicable requirements under the Listing Rules unless otherwise agreed
between the parties.

For the year ended December 31, 2020, the Directors (including
Independent Non-executive Directors) have reviewed the aforesaid
continuing connected transactions of the Group and confirmed that
each of the transactions has been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) and was conducted on normal commercial terms or better; and

(i) and in accordance with the relevant agreement governing the
transactions on terms that were fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The auditor of the Company has been engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

The auditor of the Company has reviewed and issued an unqualified
letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed above in accordance with
rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, and confirmed to the Board that
nothing has come to its attention that causes it to believe that the
above continuing connected transactions:

(i) have not been approved by the Board;
(i) were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing

policies of the Group if the transactions involve the provision of
goods or services by the Group;

12. H202093A198 » ARGFIHEBE AR #E
([ RSHE]) - RIFBAERGE RO
¥ AEBERBEARNREAERE - B2EE
TIRAF TR BEE R R - 35 & R U
B85 B AN - ARBMERI S Z i
FEAREEEFHERREBERESER  UWRRIK
AR o teoh - IR AR TS #5158 A8 B AR
BESHEAE ) - MERAEBE A A RBEBAN
WEHES - B0 RBKEAEE R - BHER
a2 EHIH2020F4 A1 B A =4 - Mk
BIHH BATHESN - EAS R E m b AR B R
B EBER=F - WEET ETRANBERR
ITE °

HE20Q0F 12 A1 BILFE  EF(BEEL
NTER)EEN LA EEFEBRERS -
WHERSERSTY

() MAEEBEM—MEKBERET

(i) Rz

=
i
=

SESCS S

(i) RRBEREZFXHEEHERATEE
EVIRRETS - YR AR R AR AR

ARRIZBEERERET LS AEEMH
ERZEZIEAERE 3000 5[ E L HBERE
AHRBER UM ER A R2REBHASE 740
5B A LR R ATl ERE R 5 R 8D
i I AR R 2 B RER HIEH ]S

ADFRBEAE AR EIRAIE 14A.56 (565808
REBOFEBERHRE L —HUALBEE
FREHNRREER AL TNEERERY
SRS LS EAFERER S

() REEESHE

() (HEERER SR A AEEIRE RS AR
% EEEASEHEAEEEEREE
R

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 | —ZE T F &R



DIRECTORS' REPORT =S 3RS

(i) were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with
the relevant agreement governing the transactions; and

(iv)  have exceeded the caps previously disclosed in the announcement.

The Company confirms that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in
respect of the connected transactions set out above.

The Directors (including the independent Non-executive Directors), have
reviewed and confirmed that, except for the continuing connected
transactions as stated in the prior paragraphs, all other continuing
connected transactions entered by the Group are exempted under Rule
14A.73 of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, such transactions are exempt
from the reporting, annual review, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, the other related party transactions as
disclosed in Note 39 to the consolidated financial statements do not
constitute connected transactions required to be disclosed under the
Listing Rules.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu was appointed as independent auditor for
the year ended 31 December 2020. A resolution will be proposed to
the forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as independent auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Kiyotaka Ando
Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 March 2021
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To the Members of Nissin Foods Company Limited
HERMERAF
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Deloitte

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Nissin Foods
Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 81 to 211, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgement,
was of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. The matter was addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matter.
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How our audit addressed the key

Key audit matter

audit matter

Revenue recognition from sales of goods

We identified revenue
recognition from sales of
goods as a key audit matter
due to its significance to

the consolidated financial e

statements as a whole. The
Group's revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2020
in respect of sales of goods

amounted to approximately e

HK$3,511,872,000.

As disclosed in Note 5 to
the consolidated financial
statements, for sales of
goods (including noodles,
retort foods, frozen foods,
beverage products, snacks
and vegetable products),
revenue is recognised when

control of the goods has e

transferred. We focused
on this area because of
the Group transacts with a
large number of customers

in particular distributors e

spreading over different
locations in Hong Kong and
the People’s Republic of
China.

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED

Our procedures in relation to revenue
recognition from sales of goods
included:

Obtaining an understanding of
the revenue recognition processes
and testing the Group’'s key
controls over revenue recognition;

Inspecting sales contracts with
key customers, on a sample basis,
to understand the agreed trade
terms and assess whether the
related revenue was properly
recognised in accordance with
respective sales contracts and with
reference to the requirements
of the prevailing accounting
standards;

Confirming amounts of total
sales of goods for the year with
selected customers, on a sample
basis; and

Testing recorded sales transactions
on a sample basis against
corresponding goods delivery
notes, shipping documents
and acceptance confirmations
from customers that evidenced
control of the goods have been
transferred.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED WITH
GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
L% SRS

AUDITOR"S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.
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o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
L% SRS

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats
or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matter. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Chan, Alan.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

18 March 2021
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

HE2020F 12 A3 HILEFE

2020 2019
20205 20194
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
k3 FHET FAT
Revenue L ON 5 3,518,847 3,087,781
Cost of sales THE R (2,360,170) (2,074,351)
Gross profit EF 1,158,677 1,013,430
Other income HAb A 7 78,588 48,009
Selling and distribution costs $HE D EHR AR (471,483) (454,958)
Administrative expenses ITHRAX (243,203) (221,909)
Impairment losses recognised under expected &&= & E 1818 =18 N HER
credit loss model, net of reversal BUEEE - fIBRERE (2,585) 457
Other expenses H < (69,612) (26,488)
Other gains and losses HibWes k&8 8 (16,324) (5,839)
Finance costs BT AR 9 (116) (64)
Profit before taxation BRI a 433,942 352,638
Income tax expense FriSBif s 10 (101,378) (73,720)
Profit for the year F T 11 332,564 278,918
Other comprehensive income (expense) Ht2HEUE Bx)
Item that may be reclassified subsequently ~— EZ @B 7 EE B
to profit or loss: HE -
Exchange differences arising on translation — BEHEINEFRELZ
of foreign operations PE =58 137,672 (42,564)
Total comprehensive income for the year FAREP AL 470,236 236,354
Profit for the year attributable to: I TATEEERRT
Owners of the Company RAREER A 301,912 250,964
Non-controlling interests FEFE 1 A 30,652 27,954
332,564 278,918
Total comprehensive income for the year UTATEEFEAZE
attributable to: LN
Owners of the Company RARER A 431,720 210,859
Non-controlling interests FEVEHI M R 38,516 25,495
470,236 236,354
Earnings per share SRAF 15
— Basic (HK cents) — ER GBI 28.11 23.36
— Diluted (HK cents) — 58 (B 28.10 23.36
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At 31 December 2020
202012 B31H

Non-current Assets

Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets

Goodwill

Intangible assets

Interest in an associate

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Deferred tax assets

Loan receivable

Deposits paid for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment

Rental deposits

Current Assets

Inventories

Trade receivables

Other receivables, prepayments and deposits

Loan receivable
Amount due from ultimate holding company
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries
Tax recoverable
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Other financial assets
Time deposits with maturity over
three months
Bank balances and cash

Current Liabilities

Trade payables

Other payables and accruals

Amount due to ultimate holding company
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries

Lease liabilities

Tax liabilities

Deferred income

Net Current Assets

Total Assets less Current Liabilities

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED HER
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NOTES
(g

16
17
18
19
20

21
23
24

26

25
26

26
24
27
27

21
22

28
28

29
29
27
27
30

31

ﬁu

2020
20204
HK$'000
FExT

1,515,848
165,265
64,520
48,219
116

32,828
33,523
1,368

23,288
2,307

1,887,282

363,144
508,545

92,877
547
3,766
15,640

197,069

507,758
1,607,247

3,296,593

234,540
742,962
36,712
3,715
7,278
39,713
411

1,065,331
2,231,262

4,118,544

2019
20194
HK$'000
FHIT

1,365,671
145,621
40,082
25,040
116

33,239
20,977
1,916

6,050

1,638,712

326,593
421,056

73,187
547
5,760
3,269
93

397,819
156,630

105,003
1,505,261

2,995,218

213,944
586,317
31,355
5,327
1,660
19,561
1,063

859,227
2,135,991

3,774,703



2020 2019

20204 20194F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
MI5E FET FAET
Capital and Reserves ERRfEE
Share capital [N 32 2,941,441 2,941,441
Reserves [ 954,238 648,124
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ASA 1A A JE{G#E S 3,895,679 3,589,565
Non-controlling interests FEPE 1R 147,504 122,753
Total Equity ERERE 4,043,183 3,712,318
Non-current Liabilities ERBERE
Deferred tax liabilities REFIEEE 23 46,311 42,231
Lease liabilities HEaE 30 9,396 131
Deferred income FEIEIA 31 19,654 20,023
75,361 62,385
4,118,544 3,774,703
The consolidated financial statements on pages 81 to 211 were FENE2N B R B AESEMN202143

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 18 RA18B#E R BT ATREES
March 2021 and are signed on its behalf by:

KIYOTAKA ANDO SHINJI TATSUTANI
REERE RABER
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EF EF
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

HZE2020F 12 A3 HILFE
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[IUNS[]LIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE2020F 12 A31BIEFE

Notes:

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | HiEE

According to the articles of association and board resolution of subsidiaries
of the Company in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC"), 10% of the
profits after taxation, as determined under the PRC accounting rules
and regulations, were transferred to general reserve funds under “PRC
statutory reserve”. The transfers to such reserves must be made before
the distribution of a dividend to equity owners of those subsidiaries until
the aggregated amounts have reached 50% of their registered capitals.
These reserves should only be used for making up losses, capitalisation

into capital and expansion of production and operation.

Merger reserve represents the difference between the share capital
issued by the Company, and the aggregate of (1) the share capital of
Winner Food Products Limited (“Winner Food”) and (2) the retained
earnings of Winner Food, net of non-controlling interests, prior to the
original acquisition of Winner Food by Nissin Foods Holdings Co., Ltd., the
Company’s immediate and ultimate holding company, in 1989, arising
from group reorganisation on 1 January 2014.

On 22 December 2014, the Company further acquired 26% interest in
Winner Food from the non-controlling shareholder for a cash consideration
of HK$129,453,000. The difference between the cash consideration paid
and the carrying amount of the net assets attributable to the additional
interest in Winner Food acquired from the non-controlling shareholder
of HK$14,403,000 is recognised in “other reserve”. Upon completion of
this acquisition, Winner Food became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.
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OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before taxation

Adjustments for:
Amortisation of intangible assets
Depreciation of property, plant and

equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Equity-settled share-based payment

Fair value changes on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

Finance costs

Government grant related to acquisition
of assets

Impairment losses recognised in respect
of trade receivables, net of reversal

Interest income

Loss (gain) on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Operating cash flows before movement
in working capital

Decrease in inventories

(Increase) decrease in trade receivables

(Increase) decrease in other receivables,
prepayments and deposits

(Increase) decrease in amounts due from
fellow subsidiaries

Increase (decrease) in trade payables

Increase in other payables and accruals

Increase in amount due to ultimate holding

company
(Decrease) increase in amounts due to
fellow subsidiaries

Cash generated from operations
Income taxes paid

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F 12 A31HIEFE

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
433,942 352,638
5,714 3,231
22,649 19,438
8,200 3,736
2,754 230
411 (6,905)
116 64
(954) (1,813)
2,585 (457)
(24,615) (39,882)
112 (587)
450,914 329,693
98,354 82,812
(76,641) 26,488
(20,805) 12,935
(12,371) 5,696
15,300 (37,145)
130,883 85,621
4,845 7,561
(1,612) 889
588,867 514,550
(87,252) (55,062)
501,615 459,488
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CUNS[]LIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE2020F 12 A31 BIEFE

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Placement of time deposits with maturity
of more than three months
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Net cash outflow on acquisition of business/a
subsidiary
Advance to ultimate holding company
Government grant in related to acquisition
of assets refunded
Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Withdrawal of time deposits with
maturity of more than three months
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss
Proceeds from disposal of other financial
assets
Interest received
Government grant in related to
acquisition of assets received
Repayment from ultimate holding company
Loan repaid
Purchase of other financial assets
Purchase of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Contribution from non-controlling interests
Dividend paid to owners of the Company
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests
Repayments of lease liabilities
Share purchased from secondary

market under share award scheme
Interest paid on lease liabilities
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NOTE

n

36

2020
20204
HK$'000
FExT

(1,341,139)
(265,907)

(34,485)
(3.766)

(2,492)

432

938,383

203,246

156,630
21,795

1,195
5,928
547

(319,633)

5,870
(125,695)
(15,221)
(3,445)

(2,665)
(116)

2019
20194
HK$'000
FHIT

(105,003)
(208,933)

(62,160)
(5,760)

1,009

292,758

88,536

313,260
38,062

2,268

1,619

547
(156,630)

(392,332)

(192,759)

(102,060)
(19,817)
(825)

(64)



NET CASH USED IN FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATES
CHANGES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END
OF THE YEAR,
represented by bank balances and cash
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2020
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HK$°000
TR

(141,272)

40,710

61,276

1,505,261

1,607,247
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2019
20195
HK$'000
TAT

(122,766)

143,963

(23,409)

1,384,707

1,505,261

ZETFFR



90

GENERAL INFORMATION

Nissin Foods Company Limited (the “Company”) is a public
limited company incorporated in Hong Kong and its shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Its
immediate and ultimate holding company is Nissin Foods
Holdings Co., Ltd., a company incorporated in Japan with its
shares listed on the Tokyo Stock Exchange.

The addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are 21-23 Dai Shing Street, Tai Po
Industrial Estate, Tai Po, New Territories, Hong Kong, and 11-13
Dai Shun Street, Tai Po Industrial Estate, Tai Po, New Territories,
Hong Kong, respectively.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
"Group”) is principally engaged in the manufacturing and sales
of noodles, retort foods, frozen foods, beverage products, snacks
and vegetable products, and provision of research and publicity
services.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency of the
Company.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the Amendments to
References to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards
and the following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the
first time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2020 for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material

and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") (zantinuer)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (continued)

Except as described below, the application of the Amendments to
References to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards and
the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year had no material
impact on the Group's financial positions and performance for
the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8 Definition of Material

The Group has applied the Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS
8 for the first time in the current year. The amendments provide
a new definition of material that states “information is material
if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general
purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements, which provide financial information about a specific
reporting entity.” The amendments also clarify that materiality
depends on the nature or magnitude of information, either
individually or in combination with other information, in the
context of the financial statements taken as a whole.

The application of the amendments in the current year had no
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKFRS 3
Definition of a Business

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in the
current year. The amendments clarify that while businesses usually
have outputs, outputs are not required for an integrated set of
activities and assets to qualify as a business. To be considered a
business, an acquired set of activities and assets must include,
at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS ("HKFRSs”) (zantinues)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKFRS 3
Definition of a Business (continued)

The amendments remove the assessment of whether market
participants are capable of replacing any missing inputs or
processes and continuing to produce outputs. The amendments
also introduce additional guidance that helps to determine
whether a substantive process has been acquired.

In addition, the amendments introduce an optional concentration
test that permits a simplified assessment of whether an acquired
set of activities and assets is not a business. Under the optional
concentration test, the acquired set of activities and assets is not
a business if substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets
acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable asset or group
of similar assets. The gross assets under assessment exclude cash
and cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill resulting
from the effects of deferred tax liabilities. The election on
whether to apply the optional concentration test is available on
transaction-by-transaction basis.

The application of the amendments had no impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the current year as similar
conclusion would have been reached without applying the
optional concentration test.
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") (zantinues)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRS 17

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 9,

HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs

Insurance Contracts and the
related Amendments’

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions*

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2°

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)"

Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract?

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020

> Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") (zantinues)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

Except for the amendments to HKFRSs mentioned below,
the directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements in the
foreseeable future.

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 June 2020.

The amendment introduces a new practical expedient for lessees
to elect not to assess whether a Covid-19-related rent concession
is a lease modification. The practical expedient only applies
to rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the
Covid-19 that meets all of the following conditions:

o the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the same
as, or less than, the consideration for the lease immediately
preceding the change;

o any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and

o there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for changes
in lease payments resulting from rent concessions the same way
it would account for the changes applying HKFRS 16 Leases if
the changes are not a lease modification. Forgiveness or waiver
of lease payments are accounted for as variable lease payments.
The related lease liabilities are adjusted to reflect the amounts
forgiven or waived with a corresponding adjustment recognised
in the profit or loss in the period in which the event occurs.

The application is not expected to have impact on the Group’s
financial position and performance as the Group does not intend
to apply the practical expedient.
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") (zantinues)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

The amendments:

o update a reference in HKFRS 3 Business Combinations so
that it refers to the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 issued in June 2018 (the “Conceptual
Framework”) instead of Framework for the Preparation
and Presentation of Financial Statements (replaced by the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2010 issued
in October 2010);

o add a requirement that, for transactions and other events
within the scope of HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets or HK(IFRIC) — Int 21
Levies, an acquirer applies HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC) — Int
21 instead of the Conceptual Framework to identify the
liabilities it has assumed in a business combination; and

o add an explicit statement that an acquirer does not
recognise contingent assets acquired in a business
combination.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position and performance of
the Group.

2.

EREEMBHREEN(F
e R H s R AL KIS ET

ERME R RERZH T REETEE
BARS SRR ()
BB B G ERFE 3 (BT ) =
HEZE A9

AEBRTA

. BBV BIRS EREIFHER
SR - B A R 2018%6
ABEMAH2018FHBRERSAESR
(MESIEZRD HRM - MIERREE
P A TS R AER A IR I (AR 20104F
10 BBMREY [2010F BT I R & E o1
2B AY)

o NITIEME - MEABEFHERIE3T
i i%EF&&%ﬁﬁi%‘\}%
B HEREZEEREE 21 RHUE
HENNZ ZREMEFNET - BB
HERBEAGTEAFEITRAFEM
BhEnBZ EeRBE215R M IR
SHEZR LAE&%JEF%FAWQJ%%T"
MBIE

o RM—IEMERE - AWK TE R
BR—BEBAMRFREY R EE
EE o

fERARIERT ST e HAEBHM BN R
REENEATE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 | —ZE T FF3}

i



96

NUTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

|||IT|

Sl R

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE2020F 12 A31BIEFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") (zantinues)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

The amendments provide clarification and additional guidance
on the assessment of right to defer settlement for at least twelve
months from reporting date for classification of liabilities as
current or non-current, which:

o specify that the classification of liabilities as current or non-
current should be based on rights that are in existence
at the end of the reporting period. Specifically, the
amendments clarify that:

(i)  the classification should not be affected by
management intentions or expectations to settle the
liability within 12 months; and

(i) if the right is conditional on the compliance with
covenants, the right exists if the conditions are met
at the end of the reporting period, even if the lender
does not test compliance until a later date; and

o clarify that if a liability has terms that could, at the option
of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the transfer
of the entity’s own equity instruments, these terms do
not affect its classification as current or non-current only
if the entity recognises the option separately as an equity
instrument applying HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation.

In addition, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 was revised as a
consequence of the Amendments to HKAS 1 to align the
corresponding wordings with no change in conclusion.

Based on the Group’s outstanding liabilities as at 31 December
2020, the application of the amendments will not result in
reclassification of the Group’s liabilities.
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") (zantinues)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

The annual improvements make amendments to the following
standards.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The amendment clarifies that for the purpose of assessing
whether modification of terms of original financial liability
constitutes substantial modification under the “10 per cent”
test, a borrower includes only fees paid or received between the
borrower and the lender, including fees paid or received by either
the borrower or the lender on the other’s behalf.

HKFRS 16 Leases

The amendment to lllustrative Example 13 accompanying HKFRS
16 removes from the example the illustration of reimbursement
relating to leasehold improvements by the lessor in order to
remove any potential confusion.

HKAS 41 Agriculture

The amendment ensures consistency with the requirements in
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement by removing the requirement
in paragraph 22 of HKAS 41 to exclude taxation cash flows when
measuring the fair value of a biological asset using a present
value technique.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position and performance of
the Group.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with the HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For
the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements, information is considered material if such
information is reasonably expected to influence decisions
made by primary users. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end
of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment, leasing transactions that are accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 16, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zontinued)

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (continued)

For financial instruments which are transacted at fair value
and a valuation technique that unobservable inputs is
to be used to measure fair value in subsequent periods,
the valuation technique is calibrated so that at initial
recognition the results of the valuation technique equals
the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zontinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control listed
above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Company gains control until the
date when the Company ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with the Group’s accounting policies.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3.
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zontinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their holders
to a proportionate share of net assets of the relevant
subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
Optional concentration test

Effective from 1 January 2020, the Group can elect to
apply an optional concentration test, on a transaction-by-
transaction basis, that permits a simplified assessment of
whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a
business. The concentration test is met if substantially all of
the fair value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated
in a single identifiable asset or group of similar identifiable
assets. The gross assets under assessment exclude cash
and cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill
resulting from the effects of deferred tax liabilities. If the
concentration test is met, the set of activities and assets is
determined not to be a business and no further assessment
is needed.

Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price first
to financial assets/financial liabilities at the respective fair
values, the remaining balance of the purchase price is then
allocated to the other identifiable assets and liabilities on
the basis of their relative fair values at the date of purchase.
Such a transaction does not give rise to goodwill or bargain
purchase gain.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zontinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by
the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Except for certain recognition exemptions, the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the
definitions of an asset and a liability in the Framework for
the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements
(replaced by the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting issued in October 2010).

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee
Benefits respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-
based payment arrangements of the Group entered
into to replace share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree are measured in accordance with
HKFRS 2 at the acquisition date (see the accounting
policy below);

. assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that standard; and
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3.
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zontinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

GEMBHREREERE
EEHK &)

32 FESTHEEGE

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

o lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as
defined in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were
new leases at the acquisition date, except for leases
for which (a) the lease term ends within 12 months
of the acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset
is of low value. Right-of-use assets are recognised
and measured at the same amount as the relevant
lease liabilities, adjusted to reflect favourable or
unfavourable terms of the lease when compared
with market terms.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
(if any) over the net amount of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date.
If, after re-assessment, the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as
a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of
liquidation are initially measured at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value.

REEHXEENE (A

ES =y dC ]

o MERBERMNSBKEENK(ER
REEVBREENE165)
MR ERRLE - BB
BHERNKWBEPAHES
T (a)TH B YT B HAE 1 218 A
WAEER + () HAEEBIEE
BERRSN - E AR EIR AR
HEABEARNSBRER NG
B UEHABRUARRETRS
B 2 THEM B AT

PGSR

AEDEMEERE  RBBHRE
MIEER TS R E T B
FARBEHRBENAHE @B B
#8 F0ER M P M5B T BRI B B K PR
ERERYE A BN FELOTE
HEFRHEE - PTRE R BRI E E M
FrAdE B ER IR R RSB S R
HEAE  RREBHREMIERE
SATE R RRET B ERA KR
SN FE@E) RN - BE
HEBD RN EEERAHREREK

2

=z

/|

o

H

BIEREA RS BENERFEREEA
BRZLAIDEHRBINB AR EEF
ER SRR R - VTR R
DMEUEERAIERIEEFENDE
REFLLOIH A FEAE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 | —ZE-ZTH &R



104

NUTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

|||IT|

Sl R

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE2020F 12 A31BIEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zontinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units (or
group of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, which represent the
lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an operating
segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable
amount is less than its carrying amount, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or
group of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or any
of the cash-generating unit within the group of cash-
generating units, the attributable amount of goodwill is
included in the determination of the amount of profit or
loss on disposal. When the Group disposes of an operation
within the cash-generating unit (or a cash-generating unit
within a group of cash-generating units), the amount
of goodwill disposed of is measured on the basis of the
relative values of the operation (or the cash-generating
unit) disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating
unit (or the group of cash-generating units) retained.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3.
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zontinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associate are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. The financial
statements of associate used for equity accounting
purposes are prepared using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Group for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances. Under the equity method, an
investment in an associate is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the
profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate. Changes in net assets of the associate other than
profit or loss and other comprehensive income are not
accounted for unless such changes resulted in changes in
ownership interest held by the Group. When the Group's
share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group's interest
in that associate, the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zontinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Investment in an associate (continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate may be impaired. When
any objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of
the investment is tested for impairment in accordance with
HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs
of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised is not allocated to any asset, including
goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that
the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate are recognised in the consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interest in the
associate that are not related to the Group.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

|u

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL . HGEMBMREEEERTE

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES /zantinues) EE2FHK®
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 32 FEETBRE

Revenue from contracts with customers KEEFEAHA (&

(continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised W&Fa T ER—I8R%E - Fmkik

over time by reference to the progress towards complete TSR — RIS AEE - ik

satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one AEREE—BREAND TXIERERE
of the following criteria is met: B EREEHETT -

e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes o RAKLEBELOR - B RER
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as S FEA AR R E QIR
the Group performs; Aas

. the Group's performance creates or enhances . REEMBEHNEENRA—A
an asset that the customer controls as the Group BE MZBEERAISER
performs; or AR PRSI Bk

e the Group's performance does not create an asset o AEEMNBAOWRELHRE
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group EEERAENEE  BXE
has an enforceable right to payment for performance B 5B TN ENMNRA
completed to date. B RER BRI TEER o

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when B WARSEEREPESHEED

the customer obtains control of the distinct good or S ARTS OO PR IR R A S — P BT R o

service.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zontinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

Over time revenue recognition. measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on output
method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis of
direct measurements of the value of the goods or services
transferred to customers to date relative to the remaining
goods or services promised under the contract, that best
depict the Group’s performance in transferring control of
goods or services.

As a practical expedient, if the Group has a right to
consideration in an amount that corresponds directly
with the value of the Group’s performance completed to
date (i.e. service contracts in which the Group bills a fixed
amount for each month of service provided), the Group
recognises revenue in an amount to which the Group has
the right to invoice.

\Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable consideration, such
as sales rebate, the Group estimates the amount of
consideration to which it will be entitled using either (a)
the expected value method or (b) the most likely amount,
depending on which method better predicts the amount of
consideration to which the Group will be entitled.

The estimated amount of variable consideration is
included in the transaction price only to the extent that
it is highly probable that such an inclusion will not result
in a significant revenue reversal in the future when the
uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. ..VT = SUBMERREEERTE
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zontinued) EEFBER®)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 32 FEETHBRE

Revenue from contracts with customers KEEFEHKA (&
(continued)
Variable consideration (continued) & B (&

At the end of each reporting period, the Group updates
the estimated transaction price (including updating
its assessment of whether an estimate of variable
consideration is constrained) to represent faithfully the
circumstances present at the end of the reporting period
and the changes in circumstances during the reporting
period.

Refund liabilities

The Group recognises a refund liability if the Group expects
to refund some or all of the consideration received from
customers.

Sale with a right of return/exchange

For a sale of products with a right of return/exchange
for dissimilar products, the Group recognises all of the
following:

(@  revenue for the transferred products in the amount
of consideration to which the Group expects to
be entitled (therefore, revenue would not be
recognised for the products expected to be returned/
exchanged);

(b)  arefund liability/contract liability; and
(¢ an asset (and corresponding adjustment to cost of

sales) for its right to recover products from customers
and are presented as right to refunded goods assets.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zontinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date
of initial application or arising from business combinations,
the Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease
based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception or
modification date, as appropriate. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract
are subsequently changed. As a practical expedient, leases
with similar characteristics are accounted on a portfolio
basis when the Group reasonably expects that the effects
on the consolidated financial statements would not differ
materially from individual leases within the portfolio.

The Group as a lessee
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price
of the non-lease components.

Non-lease components are separated from lease
component and are accounted for by applying other
applicable standards.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of staff quarters that have a lease term
of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do
not contain a purchase option. Lease payments on short-
term leases are recognised as expense on a straight-line
basis or another systematic basis over the lease term.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zontinued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)
Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease

liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

° any indirect costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimated costs to be incurred by the Group in

dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end
of the lease term are depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE2020F 12 A31BIEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zontinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to
fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional
lease payments and included in the cost of right-of-use
assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the present
value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease
is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at
the commencement date;

° amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

o the exercise prices of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

. payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. ..VT = SUBMERREEERTE
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zontinued) EEFBER®)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 32 FEETBRE

Leases (continued) HE (&
The Group as a lessee (continued) FEEFIERABA (B2
Lease liabilities (continued) HEREE)

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index
or a rate are not included in the measurement of lease
liabilities and right-of-use assets, and are recognised as
expense in the period in which the event or condition that
triggers the payment occurs.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted
by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured
by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the date of reassessment; or

o the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the
initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.

TEIRE B R ZHEN R

TRt AHERBREREEEE
3 8 B A5 RO S 4 SR A H ER RO HA
MAER R -

REm B #E - BERERERNSIE
EMHEENFELAR -

HHRATER  AEBEEHE
HEAELHABEREEEER
HERERE) -

. EBAREDRIEREES
AT T B - R IR
T EAMESEEEAERE
H T B RO S STRE R B
AR 6 3T 7 O 4 3R 70 B8 7 A
R

e HEMNRREFTHSETSHAE
rMSEHSEHMHRE
EUBERT  HEEEAES
BIE R A BRI R BE IR EIERT
HENFMERTE

AEBEGAMBANEFTHEER
BEERERNHER 25 -

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 | —ZE T FF3}

113



114

NUTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

|||IT|

Sl R

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE2020F 12 A31BIEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zontinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

° the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

o the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified contract
contains a lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price
of the non-lease components.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3.
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zontinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation
and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end
of each reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

I

FRENSEEEE 2 ABHwERR - A
ZEBIEEEEINEE (ONE) 1T
ZRGTIEX P BEE R 2 ERE
R REMEHR - LINESIEZE
MIEEE B ZERENRE - 15
BEHEMZ A TESRIEELHE R
ErATEEANBRTERENR
& o INEIRB LKA E 2R
IEET%E%ﬂ@ﬁ

EXBEEHERERIABENREMR
EEZEREZRRELRNE RS

REJEEMBHRRME - AEBZ
EBEENBEREREHRZEE
BESAKE 25 (BET) -
WARFEBRE B2 FHEX
BE - HEHRETRPAHBREAERS
AIRRSN - HLBER T HRARZEHZ
[ExmE - EXERWA REME
ERANTER - YR BRERHEERET
e Rt (RN IR bl 1t e (W
R -

R BN EBIEEABEAEEZ
HE MR BEABRTIERZEINE
BeBEERBBRE  WIENSHRE
HIRZBRITEREITIRE - EAVE
HEEREM 2R EANER

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 | —ZE-ZTH &R



116

NUTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

|||IT|

Sl R

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE2020F 12 A31BIEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zontinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational
basis over the useful life of the related assets.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they become receivable. Such
grants are presented under “other income”.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. ..VT = SUBMERREEERTE
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zontinued) EEFBER®)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 32 FEETBERE

Employee benefits
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
plans are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)
after deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term
employee benefits are measured at the present value of
the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made
by the Group in respect of services provided by employees
up to the reporting date. Any changes in the liabilities’
carrying amounts resulting from service cost, interest and
remeasurements are recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zontinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Share-based payments
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share awards granted to employees (including directors of
the Company)

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are
measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the
grant date.

The fair value of equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into
consideration all non-market vesting conditions is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based
on the Group's estimate of equity instruments that will
eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity
(share award reserve). At the end of each reporting period,
the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity
instruments expected to vest based on assessment of all
relevant non-market vesting conditions. The impact of
the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects
the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to
the share award reserve. For the share awards that vest
immediately at the date of grant, the fair value of the share
awards granted is expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When shares awards are vested, the amount previously
recognised in share award reserve and the amount
accumulated in shares held for share award scheme will be
transferred to retained profits.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3.
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zontinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before
taxation because of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
an associate, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zontinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 requirements to the leasing transaction as a whole.
Temporary differences relating to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities are assessed on a net basis. Excess of
depreciation on right-of-use assets over the lease payments
for the principal portion of lease liabilities resulting in net
deductible temporary differences.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3.
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zontinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

..vT = S MRmUEERE

K =] n'l-l-E ® /“+\
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Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from
the initial accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the business
combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are
held for use in production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes (other than construction
in progress as described below). Property, plant and
equipment are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production
or for its own use purposes are carried at cost, any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include any costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy. Depreciation of these assets, on the
same basis as other property assets, commences when the
assets are ready for their intended use.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zontinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests
of properties which includes both leasehold land and
building elements, the entire consideration is allocated
between the leasehold land and the building elements in
proportion to the relative fair values at initial recognition.
To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can
be made reliably, interest in leasehold land is presented

s “right-of-use assets” in the consolidated statement
of financial position. When the consideration cannot be
allocated reliably between non-lease building element
and undivided interest in the underlying leasehold land,
the entire properties are classified as property, plant and
equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets other than construction in progress less their residual
values over their estimated useful life, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful life, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3.
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zontinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

..vT = S MRmUEERE
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32 FESTHEEGE

Intangible assets
Intangible asset acquired separately

An intangible asset with finite useful life that is acquired
separately and carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation
for intangible assets is recognised on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful life. The estimated useful life
and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is
regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite useful life
are reported at costs less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as
intangible assets that are acquired separately.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of
an intangible asset, measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zontinued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets other
than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, and intangible assets with finite useful
life to determine whether there is any indication that
these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit
when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
established, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be established. The
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit or group of cash-generating units to which the
corporate asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying
amount of the relevant cash-generating unit or group of
cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.
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32 FESTHEEGE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3.
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zontinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets other
than goodwill (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating
unit, the Group compares the carrying amount of a group
of cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts
of the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
allocated to that group of cash-generating units, with
the recoverable amount of the group of cash-generating
units. In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit or the group of cash-generating units.
The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below the
highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable),
its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount
of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other
assets of the unit or the group of cash-generating units. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit
or a group of cash-generating units) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-
generating unit or a group of cash-generating units) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zontinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined on a
first-in, first-out method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking
into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows (where the
effect of the time value of money is material).

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. an & SR REHEEERT
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zamtinuer) EEgtHER®)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 32 FEETBRGE
Financial instruments (continued) 2HTAE)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from
contract with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets at FVTPL
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. an & Eji’%#ﬁ%czﬁ HEERT
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zamtinuer) EEgtHER®)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 32 FEETHBERGE)
Financial instruments (continued) 2HTAE)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that initial recognition of a financial asset
the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value of an equity investment in other
comprehensive income if that equity investment is neither
held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised
by an acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS 3
applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

. on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zontinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (continued)

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial

asset that are required to be measured at the amortised

cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates
or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

0

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to
the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except
for financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired (see below). For financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk
on the credit-impaired financial instrument improves
so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning
of the reporting period following the determination
that the asset is no longer credit-impaired.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zontinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (continued)

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or
designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period, with any fair
value gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The
net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes
any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset
and is included in the “other gains and losses” line
item.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets
(including trade receivables, other receivables, loan
receivable, amounts due from ultimate holding company
and fellow subsidiaries, other financial assets, time deposits
with maturity over three months, and bank balances) which
are subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9. The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL . HGEMBMREEEERTE
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zontinued) EEFBER®)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 32 FEETBERE

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m
ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessments are
done based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of
future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables and amounts due from fellow subsidiaries
which are in trade nature. The ECL on these assets are
assessed individually for debtors with significant balances
and collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate
groupings. The amounts due from subsidiaries which are in
trade nature are assessed individually.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is
based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a
default occurring since initial recognition.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zontinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

0

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’s external (if
available) or internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit default
swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BIER@ABMR AR

3. wn%ﬁﬁ%%%ﬁﬁﬁf
3t =] n-I-IESI Eﬁ \/5)

32 FESHBE®RE)

2HTAE)

EREEE)

TREERE#E)

(i) = B JE S AR N

R GEERBEE B JHBE

RARAIEIE ey - AEE L
ReMTARNBREHPHIRE
HWEKREZ ST AR
BRABRHIRENNEE -
AR AEEEEREE1E
FEBENEEREMEER
BIER SRR BALE Y
Z KAk S BRI IS R RTIE
&R} o

LER  FEEERREEX
RSB B & E B NI E R -

o ERTANMNBIB) LA
BIEEFRNERLIAH
BXRBIL

. = ERBREINRT ISR
MERBIL - PIIEER
EREIEM - BEFEANIGE
EEOHIE

o  TEHINEIEMHABITH
B R AEABE AR T &
FIESVE ﬁ?ﬁ%&%&?—%‘ﬂjﬁ/ﬂ

o  EBRARLBEENEERX
FEHIERRIL

. EEEHABTREHE
EBVEE N KR T P (E TS
N TR
MBI s FE B AT FI#
& o



3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zontinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

0

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information
that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at
the reporting date. A debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk if (i) it has a low risk of
default, (ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to
meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the
near term and (jii) adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but will
not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to
fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations. The Group
considers a debt instrument to have low credit risk
when it has an internal or external credit rating
of ‘investment grade’ as per globally understood
definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk and revises them
as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable
of identifying significant increase in credit risk before
the amount becomes past due.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zontinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
(i)  Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.

(i) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset
is credit-impaired includes observable data about the
following events:

(@)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
the borrower;

(b)  a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zontinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Credit-impaired financial assets (continued)

(¢)  the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

(e)  the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is
in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the
case of trade receivables, when the amounts are
over one year past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group's recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in
profit or loss.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zontinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined
with the respective risks of default occurring as the
weights. The Group uses a practical expedient in
estimating ECL on trade receivables using a provision
matrix taking into consideration historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at
the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables are
considered on a collective basis taking into
consideration past due information and relevant
credit information such as forward looking
macroeconomic information.

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BIER@ABMR AR

. GAMBHRENEERT
EEFER#®)
32 FEETEBEE)
ZMTAGE)
THEE(E)
CREEREE)

(v)

BEHEEERNTERER
BHEEBERNTERENR
R CENBRX(AEFEEED
IR RIEE) KB (R R HY
BB - BB R B OBKRE
TYERRBAIE I ERAMESL
BUBRRTE - REE B BB
REEAERERMESE - I
TOIR B RE R QS A R A
MERE ° NGB A &R
A E S RRSRNERER
iR YEEBEEEBERL
B YR TBERAESHE
A ENET S EATIE (L B R W
HE o

—&mE  BHEEERAXR
SERBAOERNMEALN
B e mAEBEF WE
RenBZEMER  XIZY)
b5 e SR B T T A B PR R R BA
IH o

AT BB 2 B
BRI B R R AR
EHR (BT BB E AR
BEAEREE -



3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zontinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

. Past-due status;

o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each group continue to
share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised cost
of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade
receivables where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.
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€

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zontinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade payables, other payables
and amounts due to ultimate holding company and fellow
subsidiaries) are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

]38 NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BIER@ABMR AR

..vT N EUHRREEBEERTE
3t =] n-I-IESIBE(Z;)

32 FESFHEE®E)

LHETAE)

THEE (&)

BRIEEREMBEE
EEEERSREZANERNE R
S ﬁﬁtﬂ%ﬁﬁﬂé%%&ﬁ%%ﬁ%
ZRREOERRERER TS &
B AEBHSRIEERZENE
E °

R LRERIREB N A EZ 2 RE
EfR - BEREERD W RERRE
B2 ZBNBEANER -

A B EE
DRRER S

B MERTADRES ’]?HFZW
RETHABRESTAZERD
RE A ESES

E>|r
H
m

EABRACHBREMEAER
Fﬁ?ﬂﬁ%ﬁéﬁnﬂ{ﬂ 49 g
R)EE7T 2w T A Ty FTUR AT
T8 (F0PBr B BT TROR) TR ©

an BN o

3“} D) )ﬂﬂfii} E\I

WEEKAY Rz 2R BI(E
TRAEBRREESEMNFOR - HEft
eI TRIA N FE A B AR I B A AR AR AR
DA B E B A R RIR) E R AR
RERF AL B HK AT E -



BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zontinued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are
described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies
The following is the critical judgement, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the directors of the Company
have made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (zantinuec)

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies
(continued)
Control over the charitable fund

During the year ended 31 December 2020, a charitable fund
was established by the Group (the “Fund”), and HK$40,000,000
was donated by the Group to the Fund. The directors and senior
management of the Company were nominated as members of
the advisory committee which advise and make recommendations
to the financial institution on all prospective charitable donations.

The directors of the Company assessed whether the Group has
control over the Fund based on whether the Group has the
variable returns from the relevant activities of the Fund. In making
the judgement, the directors of the Company considered the
Group's ability to direct the usage of donations and the possibility
of economic benefit flowing back to the Group. After assessment,
the directors of the Company concluded that the Group does not
have variable returns from the relevant activities of the Fund and
therefore the Group does not have control over the Fund.

Donations of HK$40,000,000 was recognised in profit or loss
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that may have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets within
the next financial year.

Amortisation of intangible assets

Amortisation of intangible assets is calculated based on the
expected useful life of the intangible assets. Adjustments may
need to be made to the carrying amounts of the intangible assets
and their amortisation should there be a material change in the
expected useful life of intangible assets.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (zantinuec)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Amortisation of intangible assets (continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amounts of trademarks
and customer relationship of the Group are HK$26,087,000
and HK$22,132,000 (2019: HK$25,040,000 and nil) (net of
accumulated amortisation and impairment loss of HK$51,957,000
and HK$2,273,000 (2019: HK$48,379,000 and nil)) respectively.
Details of the trademarks and customer relationship are disclosed
in Note 19.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (or group
of cash-generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated,
which is the higher of the value in use or fair value less costs
of disposal. The value in use calculation requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit (or a group of cash-generating units) and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, or
change in facts and circumstances which results in downward
revision of future cash flows or upward revision of discount
rate, a material impairment loss or further impairment loss may
arise. Furthermore, the estimated cash flows and discount rate
are subject to higher degree of estimation uncertainties in the
current year due to uncertainty on how the Covid-19 pandemic
may progress and evolve and volatility in financial markets,
including potential disruptions of the Group’s manufacturing and
wholesales operations.

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of goodwill
is HK$64,520,000 (2019: HK$40,082,000). Details of the
recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in Note 18.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (zantinuec)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Fair value measurement of financial instruments

As at 31 December 2020, certain of the Group’s financial assets
are measured at fair value with fair value being determined based
on significant unobservable inputs using valuation techniques.
Judgement and estimation are required in establishing the
relevant valuation techniques and the relevant inputs thereof.
Whilst the Group considers these valuations are the best estimates,
the ongoing Covid-19 pandemic has resulted in greater market
volatility and may cause further disruptions to the investees'/issuer’
businesses, which have led to higher degree of uncertainties
in respect of the valuations in the current year. Changes in
assumptions relating to these factors could result in material
adjustments to the fair value of these instruments. See Note 38(c)
for further disclosures.

Provision of ECL for trade receivables and amounts
due from fellow subsidiaries in trade nature

Trade receivables with significant balances and amounts
due from fellow subsidiaries in trade nature are assessed for
ECL individually. In addition, for trade receivables which are
individually insignificant or when the Group does not have
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort to measure ECL on individual basis, collective
assessment is performed by grouping debtors based on the
Group's internal credit ratings.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. Due to
greater financial uncertainty triggered by the Covid-19 pandemic,
the Group has increased the expected loss rates in the current
year as there is higher risk that a prolonged pandemic could led
to increased credit default rates. The information about the ECL
and the Group'’s trade receivables and amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries in trade nature are disclosed in Notes 38(b), 26 and
27 respectively.
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b.  REVENUE . A

a) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with (a) REEFEHWANSIF
customers
31 December 2020 31 December 2019
20206128318 2019124318
HK PRC HK PRC
Operations Operations Operations ~ Operations
(as defined (as defined (as defined  (as defined
in Note 6) in Note 6) Total = inNote6) inNoteb) Total

BRER  PEER BEEH  PEEHK
(E&R (E&BR (FER (TER

HizE6) HizE6) @t HizEe) HE6) st
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHR TEx TAT TAL TAR

Types of goods and R AR A

services
Sales of goods WERHS, 1415665 2,096,207 3,511,872 | 1299250 1,778993 3,078,252
Others Hith 2,742 4,233 6,975 505 9,024 9,529
Total Bt 1,418,407 2,100,440 3,518,847 @ 1,299,764 1,783,017 3,087,781
Timing of revenue WABREE

recognition
A point in time EEE% 1,415,665 2,100,440 3,516,105 @ 1,299,764 1,781,139 3,080,903
Qver time —BEEA 2,742 - 2,742 - 6,878 6,878
Total st 1,418,407 2,100,440 3,518,847 @ 1,299,764 1,788,017 3,087,781
Note: Others mainly include revenue from sales of scrap noodle Mk - At Fr EZaEEERARRHRIFENEE

and provision of research and publicity services. LA o
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b.

REVENUE (zontinued)

b)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers

Sales of goods (revenue recognised at one point
in time)

For sales of goods (including noodles, retort foods, frozen
foods, beverage products, snacks and vegetable products),
revenue is recognised when control of the goods has
transferred, being when (i) the goods have been loaded on
board for export sales; or (ii) the goods have been delivered
to the customers’ specific location for local sales and the
Group received acceptance confirmations from customers.
Upon the relevant goods are loaded on board for export
sales or delivered to the customers’ specific location for
local sales, the customers have full discretion over the
manner of distribution and price to sell the goods, and
have the primary responsibility for selling the goods and
bearing the risks of obsolescence and loss in relation to
the goods. The normal credit term is 30 to 60 days upon
invoice issued.

The amount of consideration the Group receives and
revenue the Group recognises varies with changes in sales
rebates the Group offers to the customers. The Group
estimates the sales rebates based on analysis of historical
experience, and adjusts for the most likely amount of
consideration to be received. Revenue from these sales is
recognised based on the price specified in the contract,
net of the estimated rebates which is estimated based on
experience. Revenue is only recognised to the extent that it
is highly probable that a significant reversal will not occur.
A refund liability (included in other payables and accruals) is
recognised for expected rebates to customers in relation to
sales made at the end of the reporting period. No element
of financing is deemed present as the sales rebates are
payable on demand from customers.

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED AERMAERARA

mimsE E/\\EDDE’H %U%E}%@
YEmMEEMEDOHEE _JZH)

MERXRFNERFEFEMEEE HH
CMAEEEEER P BRIHER
Hq R o MBS mE R ME
HOBERERINERFHEMIE
EiHER  BRPA 2RENBERAT
BERARAREREE  WEESEER®
ZEEEERERMEREBRZR
B o —REEHAETLERE30E60
g

AEEWE M E S R EAREEER
B W 2R BE E AN R B (R B P HR A0 85
ELREHMAMED - REBRIE
iﬂ?ﬂ‘ci<‘<.%ﬁﬁ’] DMTEFTSHE RIS - Wt

BRI ESRIFHAR - &
ﬁﬁﬁ’%ﬁﬁ{ﬁﬁ’\]”&mﬂ?ﬁ%é\%’ﬁuEHE’\J

ERTE - LHIBRMEEEE - ARG
At ERBIR R - ERRAF T

FHREABEE - SRR
LRI E HARAEL R HE RN
AP TR @B RERERRE T

GFtARMENFEREFEMR) - i
RIFEEBIRE P BRI - Bt

BRAYTFERETE -



b.

REVENUE (zantinueq)

b) Performance obligations for contracts with
customers (continued)

Sales of goods (revenue recognised at one point
in time) (continued)

Under the Group’s standard contract terms, customers
have a right to exchange for expiry products without
limitation of time period. The Group uses its accumulated
historical experience to estimate the number of exchange
on portfolio level using the expected value method.
Revenue is recognised for sales which are considered
highly probable that a significant reversal in the cumulative
revenue recognise will not occur. Based on accumulated
experience, the management considers the amount of
goods returned as immaterial due to large volume of
revenue with low value of each good sold. Therefore, the
probability of significant reversal in revenue in relation to
sales return in the future is remote.

Provision of research and publicity services (revenue
recognised over time)

Revenue from provision of research and publicity
services are recognised over time because the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group’s performance as the Group
performs.

With the provision of research and publicity services are at
period of one year or less, as permitted under HKFRS 15,
the transaction price allocation to the unsatisfied contracts is
not disclosed.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is organised into operating business units according
to the major place of operations of the relevant group entities.
The Group determines its operating segments based on these
business units by reference to their respective major place of
operations, for the purpose of reporting to the chief operating
decision maker, i.e. the managing director of the Company.
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6.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (zontinued)

Specifically, the Group’s operating and reportable segments

under HKFRS 8 Operating Segments are as follows:

J HK Operations: Manufacturing and sales of noodles, frozen

foods and other products in Hong Kong and overseas, and

provision of research and publicity services

o PRC Operations: Manufacturing and sales of noodles,

frozen foods and other products in the PRC, and provision

of publicity services

There are no aggregation of individual operating segments to
derive the reportable segment.

Segment revenue and results

Segment information about these operating and reportable

segments is presented below:

For the year ended 31 December 2020

Revenue

Segment revenue from external
customers

Inter-segment revenue

Segment revenue

Result
Segment results

Unallocated income
Unallocated other gains and losses
Interest income
Donation charged to profit or loss
Fair value changes on financial
assets at FVTPL
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Consolidated profit before taxation

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED

KA
RENFEP 2D FRA

TN LON
DA

GEiES

A BBA
AnE R E RER
MBYA
RBEINER 2B
BROVHES ARG
RHEED
HENE  BELREZER

SEREE

FRBRHATEH

HERMAEBRRAR

HK
Operations

BRER
HK$"000
TER

1,418,407
205,252

1,623,659

165,490

BERms AREREBNBRELERES
SREEDEIE N EERARED T
. BEBER  REBREBINEERIEE
M R REm R EMER - PAREE
AR N B RS
. BT - P B A E RIS
RREmMEEMER  UREHES
RS
A B (2 E o B A OH R AT RS #B D -
DEWBAREE
BRAZEEENRAIRED 2D EBEHZF
mn
BLFE2020F 12531 H L FE
Reportable
PRC segments
Operations total  Elimination Total
S
HEEH A 8 A3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TET TR
2,100,440 3,518,847 - 3,518,847
180,030 385,282 (385,282) -
2,280,470 3,904,129 (385,282) 3,518,847
247,122 412,612 - 412,612
53,039
(15,801)
24,615
(40,000)
(411)
(112)
433,942



6.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (zamtinues)

Segment revenue and results (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

HK
Operations
BEER
HK$'000
FHET
Revenue /0N
Segment revenue from external  REINFEF 25 BYRA
customers 1,299,764
Inter-segment revenue A EWA 157,819
Segment revenue AEBA 1,457,583
Result ES
Segment results DEEE 99,974
Unallocated income RAEBA
Unallocated other gains and losses A EFZ R EHEE
Interest income FEYA
Fair value changes on finandial RATESF A ERNERERE
assets at FVTPL ATEEE)

Gain on disposal of property, HEWE « BE kG s
plant and equipment

Consolidated profit before taxation 44 B Al

Inter-segment revenue is charged at prevailing market rates.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same
as the Group’s accounting policies described in Note 3. Segment
results represent the profit earned by each segment without
allocation of certain other income, net exchange gain or loss,
donation charged to profit or loss, interest income, fair value
changes on financial assets at FVTPL, and (loss) gain on disposal
of property, plant and equipment. This is measure reported to
the chief operating decision maker for the purpose of resource
allocation and performance assessment.

6. SEER
DEBN RS (4

B E2019F 12531 HILFEE
Reportable
PRC segments
Operations total Elimination Total
ARE
SIEES Aast i Ait

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAL

1,788,017 3,087,781 - 3,087,781
172,811 330,630 (330,630) -

1,960,828 3,418,411 (330,630) 3,087,781

210,558 310,532 - 310,532

8,063
(13,331)
39,882

6,905

587
352,638

B BB AIRIR T 5 B R ULER -

BEN S BT BR A 3P AL E g
SHIRERARR o D BPEAEIE R D BTN
Mo B RO BCE T EMUA - R
SERFE - st ABRENER - FEEA -
BAHEFABRENEREERD J?TE“@J :
RHEEME - BE L&z (BER) W -

TR E R B R RILFHA ) B EREK %
WEZAHEIRE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE2020F 12 A31 BIEFE

6.  SEGMENT INFORMATION zantinves) 6. DEER @
Segment assets and liabilities PHWEERAE
No segment assets and liabilities are presented as the information AR ERE RS IR FRIRT R EELE
is not regularly reported to the chief operating decision maker REETHEZREMAER - I&tl[ﬂ:—gﬂ’ﬁ
for the purpose of resource allocation and assessment of HEERBE - At - E2DHBRA KRS
performance. Therefore, only segment revenue and segment e

results are presented.

Other segment information Hithn E&E R
Amounts included in the measure of segment results: STENEEET ANSE
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BLZ2020F 12831 HILFE
HK PRC
Operations Operations Total
BBEL B st
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHET THExT FTHExT
Amortisation of intangible assets I EERE 3,231 2,483 5,714
Depreciation of property, ¥ - BE RERETE
plant and equipment 12,214 10,435 22,649
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ {FREEEITE 1,258 6,942 8,200
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BZE2019F 12531 HIFFE
HK PRC
Operations Operations Total
Y e #Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FAT
Amortisation of intangible assets B E R 3,231 - 3,231
Depreciation of property, M - BERREITE
plant and equipment 7,559 11,879 19,438
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ {FAEEENE 1,726 2,010 3,736

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED AERMAERARA



SEGMENT INFORMATION (zantinues)

6. PEER @

Geographical information WEER
The Group's revenue from external customers is mainly derived REERBINBEP ZIMAZERBLURE
from customers located in Hong Kong (location of domicile), 78 (FrfEs) ~ B R EfhiE 2 B P U -
the PRC and others, which is determined based on the location TIBERE ZFIEMET + AEBZIERE)
of customers, while the Group’s non-current assets are located BEMPNEBRTE - DiRBZSEAE M
in Hong Kong and the PRC, which is determined based on the BUBREEERSEEZSEE 2ME (10
geographical location of these assets or place of group entities HRA)ETE
that hold such assets, where appropriate.
2020 2019
2020F 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
External revenue: HNERUA
Hong Kong BB 1,214,766 1,189,414
The PRC H 2,100,440 1,788,017
Others (Canada, Australia, United States of — Efhith& (In&E A ~ M - EE -
America, Taiwan, Macau, etc.) AELEPE) 203,641 110,350
3,518,847 3,087,781
2020 2019
2020F 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Non-current assets (Note): EmeEE (s -
Hong Kong B 606,540 604,152
The PRC H 1,210,716 978,428
1,817,256 1,582,580
Note: Non-current assets excluded financial assets at FVTPL, deferred tax Wit SERBEETBIERAFEFABEZS

assets, loan receivable and rental deposits.

BMAE  BERAEE  BEEFRLEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE2020F 12 A31BIEFE

€

6.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (zontinued) 6.

Information about major customers

TERVE ()
EREEEF 2 HH

THREARE ZWAREZE2020% %2019
F12A318 L& FEEME A LB LU A
B8 10% :

Revenue from customers of the respective year ended 31
December 2020 and 2019, individually contributing over 10% of
the total revenue of the Group are as follows:

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Customer A’ EEA 830,796 786,140
Customer B2 =FB? 589,047 512,262
Customer C2 BERPC 475,403 426,267
! From the PRC operations ! REPEEBEE
2 From both HK and the PRC operations 2 REBEBRPBIEGEE
OTHER INCOME Hipyg N
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Government grant related to acquisition of A RJUWREEEZE 2 BT REEL
assets (Note 31) (FFEE31) 954 1,813
Government grant related to expenses B RS 2 BT EEL
recognised (Note) (FF3E) 47,804
Interest income from bank deposits RITF A BURA 19,988 31,734
Interest income from financial assets at BRATHES ARG
fair value through profit or loss SREENFSMA 4,627 8,148
Miscellaneous income FEEWA 3,352 3,343
Other scrap materials sales HAbBEEMRIEE 1,863 2,971
78,588 48,009
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recognised MiEE : i E 202012 A31HLEER - AEE

government grants of HK$43,685,000 in respect of Covid-19-
related subsidies in Hong Kong under Employment Support
Scheme provided by the Hong Kong government. The remaining

B EBECovid- 191 R BE HERBUN 7 B
43,685,000 7T, + EEBBTR AR
¥ T2 o R B EH4,119,000
government grants of HK$4,119,000 represents other subsidies BT BT IR M B E b iRy o

provided by the PRC government.

150 NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BERMABRAF



10.

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

Exchange loss, net

Fair value changes on financial assets
at FVTPL

(Loss) gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

FINANCE COSTS

Interest on lease liabilities

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Current tax:
Hong Kong Profits Tax
PRC Enterprise Income Tax
PRC Withholding tax

(Over)underprovision in prior years:
Hong Kong Profits Tax
PRC Enterprise Income Tax

Deferred tax (note 23)

U 3 B 1R SRR

BAHEFABRSNESREE

ATERE

HEME  BELREZ

(B518) Weas

HERBEHNE

BIEATAIR
BAMEH
RIS
I TR0

H il & R 518

2020
20205
HK$°000
FiT

(15,801)

(411)

(112)

(16,324)
B 95 B AR

2020
202045
HK$°000
FiT

116
Pt 45 Bt Bl 32

2020
20205
HK$'000
FET

24,986
79,869
2,110

106,965

AESE (BRRR) BT R

BAMEH
FEIEMEH

EIERIR (FfaE23)

(278)
1,426

1,148

108,113
(6,735)

101,378
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2019
20194
HK$'000
FHTT

(13,331)
6,905

587
(5,839)

2019
20194
HK$'000
FHTT

64

2019
20194
HK$'000
FET

16,262
47,868
1,900

66,030

(276)
1,556

1,280

67,310
6,410

73,720

191
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10.

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED RERMAER

INCOME TAX EXPENSE cantinues)

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed
The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill")
which introduced the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The
Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted on
the following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime,
the first HK$2,000,000 of profits of the qualifying group entity
will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2,000,000 will be
taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for
the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed
at a flat rate of 16.5%.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law") and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate
of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

The EIT Law requires withholding tax to be levied on distribution
of profits earned by the PRC entities for profits generated after 1
January 2008 at rate of 5% for Hong Kong resident companies,
which are the beneficial owners of the dividend received.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled from the

profit before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

Profit before taxation

Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 16.5% IZAMFTSRIFIR16.5%5+E 2 Fi1A

ek @)

R2018F3A21H » HBEEALBIH2017
FRHRB U] (B75) GHER([EHE
K] HS|AMRBIFIGHESE - KHIE
FH2018F3 F28B B EK AEEITHNEH
FIEER - RERBHIFEHREGE - 4&
REEREENE2H 88 Ta M Ei%E8.25%
MR - MBE2E8 8B Tt Bz
16.5% KT L BT o DA MG TSI E
BIEERZ EBEBRE A B EIR X
16.5% I ANTHIA ©

REBHEEEMETE(REMBEIED &
EEMBTOEBIIED - PEMERRMIE
FEZHER25% °

EMSRERTE PRERRASERERD

¥ (BERBRBERER A) BEETHILZ R

2008¢1 A1BBEEZ HFIEL SRS IR
© JBIRS % B AN TEIOR ©

FAMSHAX EFaEE M EMEEEA
RPZGEBADENEIRNT

Tax effect of expenses not deductible for
tax purpose

Tax effect of income not taxable for tax
purpose

Utilisation of tax losses previously not
recognised

Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries
operating in the PRC

Underprovision in prior years

Withholding tax attributable to undistributed
profits of the PRC subsidiaries

Income tax at concessionary rate

Others

Income tax expense for the year

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
R A% AR A 433,942 352,638
71,600 58,185
AP L 2 B8
15,430 4,555
BEERBAZFRIEHE
(13,870) (5,756)
R ERIAR DR BIBETE
(4,128) (5,400)
AR B AR 2 i/ A B R B =
a7 27,654 17,655
EFFERETR 1,148 1,280
AP B B8 8 R ARAS 70 B i 1| FE (S
TEHE 2,767 2,410
REBEBRTERNTEH (165) (165)
Efth 942 956
FAMBEHRY 101,378 73,720



11.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Profit for the year has been arrived at

after charging:

Amortisation of intangible assets

Auditors’ remuneration

FREFE R -

BV EE#E
Gl

Cost of inventories recognised as an expense MR AR S 2 FERA
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment7% - BiE LR EITE

Less: Amount capitalised in inventories and
included in cost of sales upon sales

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Total depreciation

Donation charged to profit or loss (Note iii)
Expenses relating to short-terms lease
Research and development expenditure

Staff costs (Note i)

Directors’ emoluments (Note 12)

— fees
— other emoluments

— equity-settled share-based payment

Other staff costs excluding directors’
emoluments (Notes i and ii)
Equity-settled share-based payment

Total staff costs

Less: Amount capitalised in inventories and
included in cost of sales upon sales

Less: Amount included as research and
development expenditure as shown in above

B BIFERFTE AR 2 FOR
(R ERFIAHERA)

EREEENE

e e

s AIB SR 3R (BT i)

EANHHEEZAX

HEHEZ

8 TR (B 550D

EEME (eE12)
—8%
—Hibf s

FHN

— AR R A E DARR D AR A

=
A

TeEREEME 2 K8 TRA

(Pff i R2iil)

UARE2s A5 B DARR (0 AR R

BETIRA
B BIF ERITE AR 2 IR
(HERIIAHERA)

B BN SRR B B S 2 FROR

S2L
7S

1

#

2020
20204
HK$'000
FET

5,714
5,921
2,360,170
144,447
(121,798)

22,649
8,200

30,849
40,000

2,239
29,300

850
16,154

2,009

19,013

584,395
745

604,153
(282,059)

(17,539)
304,555
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2019
20194
HK$'000
FAT

3,231
5,676
2,074,351
137,936
(118,498)

19,438
3,736

23,174

4,801
26,488

733
14,340

15,073

557,997
230

573,300

(277,623)

(15,052)

280,625

—E_TFFER
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE2020F 12 A31BIEFE

11. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (cantinues) 1.

Notes:

Contributions to retirement benefit scheme included in other
staff costs for the year ended 31 December 2020 amounted to
HK$33,597,000 (2019: HK$58,198,000).

ii. In addition to the employee benefits expense presented above,
the Group also provides other non-monetary benefits (such as
staff quarters and motor vehicles to employees). Depreciation of
right-of-use assets in relation to these non-monetary benefits is
amounted to HK$513,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020
(2019: HK$390,000).

iii. Donation made to a charitable fund amounted to HK$40,000,000
(2019: nil) during the year ended 31 December 2020.

FWiEF @

BisE:

HZE2020F12A831HIEFE  JIAH
ftb B TR AR B IR RIE FIGH B R A
33,597,000 7T (20194F : 58,198,000/%
JT) °

i. B EilEEEMFAIIN - AEBEITRESE
HMIEEEHE(BEEIBEERAET
BT) #HZE2020612A31HIEE - B
RS EBFENERELSENER
513,000/ 7T (20194F : 390,000/8 7T) °

ii. HE2020F12A31AILFE - REASHEIE

YEH 938 7X 540,000,000/ 7T (20194 -
1®) o

12.  DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS 12 EERFEHNITEME
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ExT FAET
Directors’ fees (Note i) E o ACIED) 850 733
Other emoluments: (Note ii) Epi< - (T

Basic salaries and allowances HAR & NMoERL 16,154 14,340
Discretionary bonus BIETEAL - -
Equity-settled share-based payment LA 45 B LA B AT R 2,009 -
19,013 15,073

Notes: M

The directors’ fees were mainly for their services as directors of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

ii The other emoluments were mainly for their services in connection

with the management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group.

The emoluments paid or payable to the directors and chief
executive of the Company are set out below:

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BERMABRAF
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12.  DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS (cantinues)
For the year ended 31 December 2020

A) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Kiyotaka Ando (Note)
Mr. Toshimichi Fujinawa
Mr. Shinji Tatsutani
Mr. Kazuo Kawasaka
Mr. Munehiko Ono

B) INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS
Dr. Sumio Matsumoto
Mr. Junichi Honda
Professor Lynne Yukie Nakano
Mr. Toshiaki Sakai
(appointed on 1 April 2020)

A HITEE
RRRERE ()
BEMNATE
RREREE
JIBRAAE 54
NERESE

B) BUFHITES

VNP S b
REE—%4
PHETHE
PRI (182020%
4R1REZRA)

Directors’
fees

Este
HKS'000
TiEgn

225
225
225
175

850

Basic
salaries and
allowances

Efge
RRR
HK$'000
TRR

5585
3,271
2,301
2,482
2,515

16,154

EEREREVITEME @
HZ2020F12831HLFE
Other emoluments
HitEe
Retirement Equity-
benefits settled
Discretionary scheme  share-based
bonus contributions payment Total
NEREE
RUER DRG R
Bl GEMR ERAX @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR ThR FHR FhR
- - 1421 7,006
- - 198 3,469
- - 130 2,431
- - 130 2,612
- - 130 2,645
- - - 225
- - - 225
- - - 225
- - - 175
- - 2,009 19,013
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12. DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS (Zantinued)

For the year ended 31 December 2019

A) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS A BITES
Mr. Kiyotaka Ando (Note) ZRRRRLAE ()
Mr. Toshimichi Fujinawa BETBEE
Mr. Shinji Tatsutani RAERTHE
Mr. Kazuo Kawasaka JIRRA R E
Mr. Munehiko Ono NEREEE
B) NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR B) 3FRITES
Mr. Tong Ching Hsi EMREE

(resigned on 1 September 2019)

C) INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE ~ C) By IEH{TES

DIRECTORS
Dr. Sumio Matsumoto AR EL
Mr. Junichi Honda AEE—%&
Professor Lynne Yukie Nakano REETHR

(R201959 A 1HEHT)

Directors'
fees

Ezhg
HK$'000
TETL

200
200
200

733

Note: Mr. Kiyotaka Ando is the Executive Director, Chairman of the Board

and Chief Executive of the Group.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief

executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the

year.

13.  FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year
included five directors (2019: five directors), details of whose

remuneration are set out in Note 12.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors or the
five highest paid individuals (including directors and employees)
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during both years.
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2. EERERATEME @

BZ2019F12A31HILFE
Other emoluments
Hiofe

Retirement

Basic benefits

salariesand  Discretionary scheme
allowances bonus  contributions Total

5 Ee RIIEH
REED BEra FTEIfR it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THTL TATL TATL THEL

5,402 - - 5402
2,883 - - 2,883
1,901 - - 1,901
2,047 - - 2,047
2,107 - - 2,107
- - - 133

- - - 200

- - - 200

- - - 200
14,340 - - 15,073

M ZEEREERAKERTES EER
REFPITE

FA - BEFHEEREFEANT
EREEANE 2L -

TEREXRA

B IBESHES

FN - AEEREES T EERERLEES
(2019%F : ARES) FEZHEFED
AMIRE1 2955 o

RMEFE  AEERE M EAME TE
EXhERSHFAL(BEEERER) N
TERIIARE BRI AZR S B8 1) 22 B 2
TERBERAE(E -



14.

15.

DIVIDENDS

Dividends recognised as distribution
during the year:
2019 Final — 11.7 HK cents (2019: 2018
final dividend 9.5 HK cents) per share

14.

FARRD RS

20194 RHE — &A% 1. 77840

iz 2

(20194F : 2018F RHIL 2

—9.57811)

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend in

respect of the year ended 31 December 2020

of 14.05 HK cents

per ordinary share, in an aggregate amount of HK$150,942,000,

has been proposed by the directors of the Company and is
subject to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming

annual general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share

attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the

following data:

Earnings figures are calculated as follows:

Profit for the year attributable to owners of
the Company for the purpose of basic and
diluted earnings per share (HK$'000)

Number of shares

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purpose of basic earnings per share

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares in
respect of outstanding share awards

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of diluted
earnings per share

BNBBEDT

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT FET
125,695 102,060

RIBEERE - ARFEFTERENEE
202012 A31HIEFERBEEGRER
f%14.057%1l - A 2£150,942,000/8 7T *
BRI R FEE IR A F R g T Al 1

o

BRER

RRABEA NEIEGRER N EERN T E
RATBIEHE

RERES R BRATEAAT
8 AR EE PR (F57E)

B2 E
IEREARNMNE 2 Bk
I
FAARTTEERR LD BRI = 2
BEMHEN 2 BBk 8
IEREERNMNS 2 Bk
I E

2020 2019
20204 20194
301,912 250,964

1,074,085,719 1,074,144,370

210,031 156,600

1,074,295,750 1,074,300,970
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cost

At 1 January 2019
Additions

Disposals
Reclassification
Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2019
Additions

Disposals
Redlassification
Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2020

DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2019

Provided for the year

Eliminated upon disposals
Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2019
Provided for the year
Eliminated upon disposals
Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2020

CARRYING VALUES
At 31 December 2020

At 31 December 2019
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16.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

A
R019%1818
yixs

L&

EEip
B
20198128318

=3

72020128318
MERAE
#2019E1818
FERE
HERHH
ERRE
#2019F128318
FERE
HERHH
Bz
#2020F128318

FEE
#2020F128318

#2019F128318

I

Owned
properties
RENE
HK$'000

TEn

960,130
2,954

177,765
(13,402)

1,127,447
11,274

115,310
43,244

1,297,275

256,607
36,568

(3561)

289,614
42,944

7,888

340,446

956,829

837,833

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
amO H 5 SRR biisE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE2020F 12 A31BIEFE

Leasehold
improvements
BENEEE

HK$'000
TEL

19,635
1979

19338
@)

40905
188

3,65
156

44514

22,949

21,565

22,898

16. 3 > BRFE KRR

Machinery
and
equipment
BERRE
HK$'000
TER

830278
22,361
(4,024)
28,835
(11,730)

865,720
319711
(5739
16,509
36,686

951,153

398,771
82,358
(3679
(4441)

473,009
82,035
(4969
19,404

569,479

381,674

392,711

Furniture
and fixtures
FiLREE

HK$'000

TiEn

103,852
14,064
(704)
4,261
(1,754)

119,719
9,801
(679)
1,609
5188

135,638

60,247
13,572

(627)
(1,056)

72,136
12,79
(985)
4,992

88,942

46,69

47583

Motor
vehicles
at:
HK$'000
Tin

17,968
18
(856)

(374)

17,456
1,702
(1803)

516

17,87

12,548
2214
(856)
(136)

13,770
1,754
(1723
344

14,145

3,726

3,686

Construction
in progress
BT’
HK$'000
TERL

110,426
181,542

(230,199)
(809)

60,960
180,490

(136,693)
601

105,358

105,358

60,960

Total
)
HK$'000
Fhn

2,042,289
223618
(5,584)

(28,116)

2,232,207
21432
(8221)

86,391

2,551,809

742,960
137,936
(5,162)
(9,198)

866,536
144,447
(7677)
32,655

1,035,961

1,515,848

1,365,671



16.

11.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (zantinuec) 16.

The above items of property, plant and equipment, except

for construction in progress after taking into account of their

estimated residual values, are depreciated on a straight-line basis

at the following rates per annum:

Owned properties
Leasehold improvements

Machinery and equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020
Carrying amounts

As at 31 December 2019
Carrying amounts

For the year ended 31
December 2020

Depreciation charge

Exchange realignment

For the year ended 31
December 2019
Depreciation charge

3% - 5%
Over the shorter of the terms of
the leases or 20%

9% —30%
14% - 20%
18% —30%
17.
Leasehold
lands
FE i
HK$'000
FHET
720205128318
BRMEE 148,303
720195128318
BREE 143,827
#HZE2020F12A831H
ILEE
WEER (4,084)
PE 5 FHEE 8,560
HZ2019F12H831H
LLEE
WeEER (2,308)

M > BB R &)

BERTISN  FiWE - BB RREES
5T AR SR B D BRI T
FERIEE
RSRYES 3%ZE5%
HEMERE LI EFHE20%
(CARRE & %)
e MR 9%%30%
RMREE 14%%20%
AE 18%£230%
EHEEE
Leased Motor
properties vehicles Total
HEWE qE Rt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAxT FAET FAET
16,962 - 165,265
1,736 58 145,621
(4,058) (58) (8,200)
956 - 9,516
(1,367) 61) (3,736)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE2020F 12 A31BIEFE

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (cantinuec)

Expense relating to short-term leases BHREBHEENHAS
Total cash outflow for leases BREERS R
Additions to right-of-use assets (Note) FREEERNE M)

Note: Included in additions to right-of-use assets amounted of
HK$60,025,000 during the year ended 31 December 2019 were
the acquisition of a leasehold land in the PRC through acquisition
of a subsidiary (Note 36).

For both years, the Group leases office premises, staff quarters
and motor vehicles for its operations. Lease contracts are entered
into for fixed terms of one to three years (2019: one to three
years), but may have extension and termination options. Lease
terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain different
terms and conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing
the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period for which the
contract is enforceable.

In addition, the Group owns several industrial buildings where
its manufacturing facilities are primarily located. The Group is
the registered owner of these property interests, including the
underlying leasehold lands. Lump sum payments were made
upfront to acquire these property interests. The leasehold land
components of these owned properties are presented separately
only if the payments made can be allocated reliably.

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BERMABRAF

7. EHEEE®

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT FHET
2,239 4,801
5,800 65,715
18,328 61,487

WRE - HE2019F12A318ILFE © st ARERE
B ERNSA60,025000487T « HA
BIEBBNE R E A RUE BN
BT E 13 (F5E36) °

ZISE@WMWE SMNEYHE  BIES
RSB AR &8 - FIEA YN HIREE FH
—E=FQ019F : —E=F)FL - MfEA]
BB MR IE - FAE T EERER L
7 WBRETRAMERRIEE - RETAN

MG T HEERNRER - AEEER
ARMTEEWETE A R A58 HIERT TR/ -

BESN - ANEEEA B BN ERERE
AN TERT - ARERZEMERRNE
MEEA - BIEEEEEL - RUIEZE
YRR - —EBNFERNIXN - ZFER
YENTHE T30 BRI FRBE AT SE D BLhS
FITEF



11.

18.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (zantinuer)

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for staff
quarters and motor vehicles. As at 31 December 2020 and 2019,
the portfolio of short-term leases is similar to the portfolio of
short-term leases to which the short-term lease expense disclosed
above.

Restrictions or covenants on leases

In addition, lease liabilities of HK$16,674,000 are recognised with
related right-of-use assets of HK$16,962,000 as at 31 December
2020 (2019: lease liabilities of HK$1,791,000 and related right-
of-use assets of HK$1,794,000). The lease agreements do not
impose any covenants other than the security interests in the
leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not

be used as security for borrowing purposes.

GOODWILL

Guangdong
Shunde Nissin
Foods Co., Ltd
ERIEERE
RBARAT
HK$'000
FH7
AT COST AND CARRYING VALUES AR K ERE(E
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 72201914318 »
2019 and 1 January 2020 2019512H318
%2020%1A1R 8,414
Arising from acquisition of WEEBEL
business (Note 36) (FfizE36) -
Exchange realignment N E -
At 31 December 2020 #2020F 128318 8,414

1. ER#EEE®
AEBTEHREIES MAEF G A
#49 o PA20204F X 20194 12 A31H - s HIFE
EHAHE A EENEBAEERAE8E
Lo
HENRFIMEE
AN - 20206128318 B ERA
EB81E16,674,000/8 T & H BB F A #E
&7E16,962,0008 0 (20194 : fHEA
E1,791,0008 C R ERBEAEEE
1,794,000/ 7T) - HERZEBRLHAAZTEN
HEEEPERERINTIEINER 25 -
HEBETSREEERER -
18. S
Eastpeak
MC Marketing Trading
& Sales (Shanghai)
(Hong Kong) Company
Limited Limited Total
EibEE LEREES
BRATF BRAF a@st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THEx THET
31,668 - 40,082
- 22,515 22,515
- 1,923 1,923
31,668 24,438 64,520
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18.

GOODWILL (zantinued)

The basis of the recoverable amounts of the above CGUs and
their major underlying assumptions are summarised as below:

Guangdong Shunde Nissin Foods Co., Ltd

The recoverable amount of this CGU has been determined based
on value in use calculation. The Group performed impairment
review for the goodwill of Guangdong Shunde Nissin Foods
Co., Ltd based on the cash flow forecast derived from the most
recent financial budgets and estimated future cash flows for the
following five years as approved by the management and using
a pre-tax discount rate of 7.7% (2019: 7.7%) per annum. The
cash flows beyond five-year are extrapolated using a 1.0% (2019:
1.0%) per annum growth rate. Key assumptions for the value in
use calculation, are those regarding the discount rates, growth
rates and expected changes to selling prices and cost during
forecasted periods. Management estimates discount rates that
reflect current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the CGUs. The growth rates are based
on industry growth forecasts. Changes in selling prices and direct
costs are based on past practices and expectations of future
changes in the market. Management believes that any reasonably
possible change of these assumptions would not cause the
aggregate carrying amount of this CGU to exceed its aggregate
recoverable amount.
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—_
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A ERGELBEM 2 FIROGREERHE
T2EBRRZMEET

I

ERIEEBERRERAT
ReEsEN 2 AIREGRETERFERER
FATEER c ASBERBRSREERYER
IEERERMBRAT ZEEETRER
5 HIBAIDERERERE 2 Sen b %78
HURARAFHRERE  FRZEF
FRAITIRE 57.7% (20194F  7.7%) - {BiB
AFEZEHRESREAIA1.0% (20194 ¢
1.0%) 2 FIEREHE - FRABEHERE
ZEERBVBFEBITERE  HEREUER
TEREAEEE KA 2 TBREE) - B2
B8 2 TR R R T 5 ¥ &R
BEZHERRSEEEMN ZIFTRERR 12
REDENTERRBAGE - HEERE
B AN 2 2B B E R LA TS 1B ) B R AT
B ERLIEL - BBERA  ZEBR
AR e B BN SIS IR EE
B ZRMBERAE OB EEE -



18.

GOODWILL (zamtinuen)
MC Marketing & Sales (Hong Kong) Limited

The recoverable amount of this CGU has been determined
based on a value in use calculation. At 31 December 2020,
the recoverable amount of this CGU is determined taking into
account the valuation performed by management, based on
the cash flows forecasts derived from the most recent financial
budgets for the next five years and a pre-tax discount rate of
15.0% (2019: 15.0%) per annum which reflects current market
assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the CGU. The cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using a steady 2.0% (2019: 3.0%) per annum
growth rate. This growth rate does not exceed the average long-
term growth rate for the relevant industry. Other key assumptions
and key parameters for the value in use calculation include
budgeted sales and expected changes to selling prices and cost,
which are determined based on management’s expectations
for the market development and market growth forecasts.
Management believes that any reasonably possible change in any
of these assumptions would not cause the aggregate carrying
amount of this CGU to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount
of this unit.

Eastpeak Trading (Shanghai) Company Limited

The recoverable amount of this CGU has been determined
based on a value in use calculation. At 31 December 2020,
the recoverable amount of this CGU is determined taking into
account the valuation performed by management, based on
the cash flows forecasts derived from the most recent financial
budgets for the next five years and a pre-tax discount rate of
11.0% per annum which reflects current market assessment of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU. The
cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using
a steady 3.0% per annum growth rate. This growth rate does
not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the relevant
industry. Other key assumptions and key parameters for the
value in use calculation include budgeted sales and gross margin
and expected changes to selling prices and cost, which are
determined based on management’s expectations for the market
development and market growth forecasts. Management believes
that any reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions
would not cause the aggregate carrying amount of this CGU to
exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of this unit.

=209,

BEREZARAT
ZHeELBM 2 TRESEEREAE
BErtEmMET - R2020F128318 » %R
SEABMZANESREETNEREE
B2 HEMBTE - ZEEDERKEAFZ
O BBEEELE 2R RERAREF
15.0% (20194F : 15.0%) Z T ATHTIR X ()2
BT B RIS B EEE 2 HE REE
SEEBNZFERR) MEL - BBRF
ZEEREAETEZ2.0% (20194 : 3.0%)
FIREREE o IIEREWARBBEMITE
R ER - FRABEHECHME
ERELREZLHIEEEHERULEE
BEREAZ TEHEH) - JHETFAEEJE&W%
BREMMSERTEN 2 AMEE - BEE
RE M—rfﬁ”*“ZEHAﬁ!éT%ZEME%ﬁ
EZESEL BN FEAEBRIRE
BLEE o

EBREEZHRATR
FZREEEBMN 2 JRESREDENMEAE
BEfEmET - W2020F128318 » %18
SEEEN ZARE SRS REEEE
2 EEMEE  ZAEESERRRAFZ
E—iﬁﬁﬁ%?ﬁgﬁiziﬁu//m%iﬁiﬂu&¢
11.0% 2 MAmRE(RKT BRImSHE
MBTF‘EH??%ZHH&EZEEiFi 2 FFTE
)ﬂﬁﬂﬂﬂ iﬂﬂiziﬁé/m@iﬁﬁﬁi
Z3.o%¢i2§$$ﬁﬁ U3 R 200 R B

ﬁf‘ﬂ”%i?fﬂﬁﬁﬂiﬁw EREEHE
ZHMTERREIEZ2UBEREHER

&%f'ﬁl«x&ﬁﬁ’i{f&ﬁﬂKZi‘EHﬂ“@J T5
RIBEIE B ST ISR LM IGIE RN Z 18
HMERE - BEEERA  ZEBRZENE
IET“"“%M%T?&EXSZEEi%iﬁuzBE
BEBATRERASE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE2020F 12 A31BIEFE

164

assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the following

BERATFHNERREE

periods:
Trademarks 10-12 years iz 10-124F
Customer relationship 13 years ZPEBIER 134

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | HI&

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19, BEREE
Customer
Trademarks relationship Total
BE EFB#% st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHET
CosT BAR

At 1 January 2019 and 20191 418 &

31 December 2019 20194F12A31H 73,419 73,419
Acquisition of business (Note 36) U g 7% (M97E36) 4,261 22,488 26,749
Exchange realignment PE W% 364 1,917 2,281
At 31 December 2020 7202012 831H 78,044 24,405 102,449
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT #3842 E
At 1 January 2019 20191 H1H 45,148 - 45,148
Amortisation for the year F N 3,231 - 3,231
At 31 December 2019 72019412 H31H 48,379 48,379
Amortisation for the year F R 3,560 2,154 5,714
Exchange realignment b 3, B 18 119 137
At 31 December 2020 7202012 H31H 51,957 2,273 54,230
CARRYING VALUES BRE{E
At 31 December 2020 72020912 H31H 26,087 22,132 48,219
At 31 December 2019 2019912 A31H 25,040 - 25,040
The above intangible assets have finite useful life. Such intangible titEEEEEEEAHEH - ZEET



20.

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 0. REFZE AR ZHES
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Cost of investment in an unlisted company ~ RIEEM AR ZEERA 120 120
Exchange realignment I 4, T 5 (4) 4)
116 116
Particulars of the associate of the Group are as follows: REEBENBFFBNAT
Proportion of ownership
interest held by the Group
AEBFSRERELH
Name of associate Place of incorporation 2020 2019  Principal activities
BenRER SRR 5 20205 20195 EBEE
TR EAREEBRAR PRC 25% 25%  Designing, producing an
HE publishing advertisements
Rt BERBHES
The followings are the summarised financial information of the AT BBt AR EERBEE :
associate:
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
The Group’s share of result of the associate ~ ZNE= @D (REt & A B %4 - -
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s ~ AREEREE A RER 2
interest in an associate FREEEEE 116 116
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE2020F 12 A31BIEFE

21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS 21.

i3

4

ot

Financial assets designated at FVTPL: EBERAFEFABREN
SWMEE
Listed equity investment in Hong Kong (Note i) &5 _E TR IR E (50
Unlisted equity investments (Note ii) IE iR & (B i)
Club debenture (Note iii) g ATES (ki
Financial asset mandatorily BEIRAFEFABRTE
measured at FVTPL: WEREE :
Structured notes (Note iv) IR B EEiv)
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MERABMEL 22T
Current assets mEVEE
Non-current assets EMENEE
Notes:

The above listed equity investment represents ordinary shares of an
entity listed in Hong Kong. This investment is not held for trading,
instead, it is held for long-term strategic purposes. The directors
of the Company have elected to designate this investment as at
FVTPL.

ii. The unlisted equity investments include an amount of
HK$3,240,000 (2019: HK$2,950,000) which represents investment
in 5% unlisted equity issued by a private entity established in
the PRC. This investee is principally engaged in the testing and
inspection of the safety and quality of food products manufacturing
and sales of instant food. The remaining HK$15,075,000 (2019:
HK$20,689,000) represents investment in 26.68% unlisted equity
issued by a private entity in India, which is engaged in processing
and export of frozen-dried seafood, spices and herbs.

The directors of the Company have elected to designate these
investments as FVTPL.
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GEX

AFEFNEZEME

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT FHET
14,241 9,328
18,315 23,639
272 272
32,828 33,239
197,069 397,819
229,897 431,058
197,069 397,819
32,828 33,239
229,897 431,058

Lt ETHREREEREELTERENE
B - ZAWIRFEE - ERFHER
HEWIMERE - ARAEFDBEERTEZ
RE R ATER A B -

I E M AR B £24E3,240,0007 7T (2019
% 12,950,000 7T) + R FREIKZ 2
FTIABRBEITZ5%IELEMBAP 2/
B -ZRETENFTRATEZEENH
REBAREERMHENRRER - BT
15,075,000/ 7 (20194F : 20,689,000/8
T0) IR — N EFLAE iR E17.226.68%
FEMRAPZIRE  ZAFTRENIR
HARREEH BRNEE -

AAREFCRBEEZSRERRAY
{BFT AR



21.

22.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

iii. Club debenture is stated at fair value which is determined by
reference to market price.

iv. The structured notes of US$25,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$197,069,000) (2019: US$51,074,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$397,819,000) are issued by
a financial institution in Hong Kong. The structured notes are
interest-rate linked instruments with enhanced interest rates which
accrue on a daily basis and will be automatically extended every
month by an additional month unless the Group exercises the right
to redeem the instruments on maturity date. Thus, it is not held
solely for payment for principal and interest and therefore, it is
measured at FVTPL.

Details of the fair value measurement of financial assets at FVTPL
are set out in Note 38(c).

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group purchased
certificates of deposits of US$20,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$156,630,000)) from the financial institution with a maturity
date on 20 January 2020 and carried at fixed interest rate at 3.3%
per annum. No certificates of deposit remain outstanding as at
31 December 2020.

The certificate of deposits met the contractual cash flow that
are solely payments for principal and interest and therefore, is
classified as other financial assets at amortised cost under current
assets in the consolidated statement of financial position at the
end of the reporting period.

Detail of impairment assessment of other financial assets are set
out in Note 38(b).

21.

22.

BRATEFNEZNEME
- 369,

s - (8

ii. BREHFDRATEER  AFEDZE
MEEE °

iv.  25,000,0003% T (16& 7 49197,069,0007%
JL) (20194 : 51,074,0003 7t (FHE R4
397,819,000/ 7T) MBI RIEHR —HE
OB ET c ZEBCREAFEH
HITE  EFRZRATEIRS @ BRIELSE
EREERTEER T ANER - TEG
BREBHERIEAR - At - EWEEAR
REMAAERFEMmEE - Bit - EUA
FEEF AR

BAFEFABENEREENATEFE
BRI HIFE38() °

Hit Em&EE

BHZE2019%F12A31BILEE - AEER
S EMEERE S 20,000,000k 7T (FEERL
156,630,000 7)) WFHE - HHB A
2020F1 H20H - BEFFEAR33% o 1N
2020%F12A318 » WEFREEALR °

FRENTAEHNRSREBERINAER IR
BEASHE - At EDBSRERS
BUBIMRRREYEETR MR KA E
WEMSREE -

HemMEERENGHFBHNME
38(b) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE2020F 12 A31BIEFE

23.  DEFERRED TAXATION 3. EEHIE
For the purpose of presentation of the consolidated statement REJEGEEMBARRE - & TRERIBEEE
of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities REECHEE - WAV E2HRE M
have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax HHRERIB AR ERETT 2 DT

balances for financial reporting purposes:

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Deferred tax assets RIERIRE EE (33,523) (20,977)
Deferred tax liabilities RIEHIEAE 46,311 42,231
12,788 21,254
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets LT ASR RN EEEHRATIERIIERIE
recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior BELREERES
years:
Undistributed
Accelerated earnings
tax of the PRC
depreciation Tax losses  subsidiaries Others Total
HEMEAR
MEBEHE BEER  RKOEERA Hit st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T TR TR
(Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 3)
CiE3)) (fH2) ((iE%)
At 1 January 2019 R2019%1A18 36,993 (8,890) 5,158 (18,790) 14,471
Charged (credited) to profit or loss ~ PMEZEFHG GHA) 5,873 2,391 510 (2,364) 6,410
Exchange realignment E3aEGE (524) 29 (204) 1,072 373
At 31 December 2019 72019F12A31H 42,342 (6,470) 5,464 (20,082) 21,254
(Credited) charged to profit or loss Bz 1B GEA) (3,716) 6,470 657 (10,146) (6,735)
Exchange realignment R AR 717 - 151 (2,599) (1,731)
At 31 December 2020 2020512318 39,343 - 6,272 (32,827) 12,788
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23.  DEFERRED TAXATION (zantinues)

Notes:

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had unused tax losses of
approximately HK$64,233,000 available for offset against future
profits. Deferred tax asset HK$39,212,000 had been recognised
in respect of such losses as at 31 December 2019. No deferred
tax asset in respect of the remaining tax losses of approximately
HK$25,021,000 has been recognised due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams. The Group has no unused tax losses as at 31
December 2020.

Included in unrecognised tax losses as at 31 December, 2019 were
losses of HK$24,371,000 that will expire as follows:

2022
2023

20224
20234

The remaining unrecognised tax loss as at 31 December 2019 will
be carried forward indefinitely.

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation
has been provided for in the consolidated financial statements
in respect of temporary differences attributable to undistributed
profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to approximately
HK$125,440,000 (2019: HK$109,000,000).

Amount mainly represents deductible temporary differences
arising from provision for retirement benefits, accrued salaries and
promotion expenses.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has other deductible
temporary differences of approximately HK$139,575,000 (2019:
HK$92,405,000) available for offset against future profits. A
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of approximately
HK$132,339,000 (2019: HK$85,169,000) of such deductible
temporary differences. No deferred tax assets in respect of the
remaining temporary differences of approximately HK$7,236,000
(2019: HK$7,236,000) has been recognised due to unpredictability
of future profits stream.

23.

EEFIE )

SRR

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

72019512 A31H » AEEREFA 2 HIAE
E51849/564,233,000/87C + A (K HE R 2
SEA e FA20194F12A318 » Btk
839,212,000/ TTRERI T E FE o WAL
ISR B85 184925,021,000/% ST HERIE T
I E + Ty R E A TE A R 0% FI 3R
JR ° FA2020% 128318 AEBWEXRS
A EERE -

2019912 A31 B Z RIERTIEEIE A1
FALAT B BRfE % < B51824,371,000 7T

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FT
- 7,388

- 16,983

- 24,371

201912 A31 B Z MR T ARERBIAE 18
TR R At o

RIBEHR BB ZEMEEE - KR2008F1 A1
BiE - Lot BIM B A & BELZ & A
FRZBREHEHREINR - E5F
BB A Bl R 9 Bl v A B B RS M RE A
125,440,000/8 7T (20194 : 109,000,000
BT RERE SRR P EHRIBEESIE ©

ZEBEEBRARKER - BT RE
FHEER SR AL 2 TR E £ 2
B o

RBEHRAR  AEEBEEMATHRE
B2 %8139,575,000# 7T (20194 ¢
92,405,000 7T) AT K S5 KR AR T ©
22 RIFE#7132,339,000/ 7T (20194 -
85,169,000 7T) A #0515 | = B RE R
RIERITEEE - WERFIGREREEREL
7,236,0005% 7T (20194F : 7,236,000/ 7T)
HRELERIBEE - I YRR SRR
25 SRR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
amO H 5 SRR biisE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE2020F 12 A31BIEFE

24.  LOAN RECEIVABLE 24,

The loan receivable is interest-free, repayable by quarterly
instalments within ten years (from July 2014 with last payment by
2024) and the repayments are guaranteed by the shareholders of
the borrower.

Details of impairment assessment of loan receivable are set out in

Note 38(b).
25  INVENTORIES 25.
Raw materials BEHR
Work in progress fE2m
Finished goods X

26.  TRADE RECEIVABLES/OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND  26.

DEPOSITS

Trade receivables

Trade receivables — sales of goods S REBERR— HE RN @
Less: allowance for credit losses B EEEERE

At 1 January 2019, trade receivables from contracts with
customers amounted to HK$449,932,000.
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L E =N

EWEFARBER  ARTFARN(H2014
F7R#EEF  BE2024FHEER

BRI RED
HEN  MABERTIBETBIRER -

_m'm NSSN

H

e E FORE R IE BN M 5E38(b) ©

4
F&

2020 2019

20204 20194

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

125,330 88,014

43,617 47,023

194,197 191,556

363,144 326,593

& 5 FEW RS, H i FEU X
5 BAREARES

B 5 EWERR
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
512,009 421,935
(3.464) (879)
508,545 421,056

R2019F 118 » REHETFNAENES
JEURER 7% 55449,932,000/8 7T °



26.

TRADE RECEIVABLES/OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND
DEPOSITS (zontinued)

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables, net of
allowance for credit losses, presented based on the invoice date,
which approximates the respective revenue recognition dates at
the end of the reporting period.

0 to 30 days 0&E30K
31 to 90 days 31290k
91 to 180 days 91E180K

As at 31 December 2020, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amount
of HK$88,448,000 (2019: HK$109,757,000) which are past
due as at the end of the reporting period. Out of the past due
balances, HK$1,346,000 (2019: HK$9,285,000) has been past
due 90 days or more and is not considered as in default as the
customers have good repayment history during the year and over
the past years, and these customers have strong financial capacity
as they are the subsidiaries of large listed corporate in Hong
Kong.

Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables are set out
in Note 38(b).

& 5 AR TR, H i FEU 3K
B BAREREE@®

DT B 4R AR 1 3 B 9 (SR AT
R AIEE) 2512 B 5 RUIGER (NG 2
SR ) 2 BRIA T

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT FHET
311,404 215,436
170,519 137,280
26,622 68,340
508,545 421,056

R2020F12A31H » AEEZE SRR
REHBIERA(EB R 288,448,000/8 7T
(20194F : 109,757,000/ 7T) 2 FEURER X -
HORERIRE IR B - Rm SRR -
1,346,000/ 7T (20194F : 9,285,000/8 )
EEH0ORSA L - ETRABEN - BB
BFRAFERBILFHER RITENRT
8% HRRERF ABBARE LT RARIRM
BRR) MRERFPHBLEEVRES -

B 5 RUWIR R 2 BERT (15 SN K
38(b) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
amO H 5 SRR biisE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE2020F 12 A31BIEFE

26.  TRADE RECEIVABLES/OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND 26, 5 5 FEUSBR X, H fth FEUL FX

DEPOSITS (cantinies) 5 BN RERERE #
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits HibEWFIE - AARERESE
The following is the analysis of other receivables, prepayments AN A s B H f FE YR SRR ~ TR 5RIE
and deposits at the end of the reporting period: Rige 2o
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHTT
Other receivables HoAth FEMGRIE 23,095 25,296
Prepayments TERTFIR 21,043 7,995
Prepaid value added tax and other taxes TEIGER R H AR IE 33,363 27,453
Rental deposits HEZe 4,545 2,148
Utilities and other deposits KERHMES 13,138 10,295
95,184 73,187
Analysed as: DR
Current BNEA 92,877 73,187
Non-current SERNEA 2,307 -
95,184 73,187
Details of impairment assessment of other receivables are set out H fb pE Uk BE 2R R E B (& S IB SN K 5
in Note 38(b). 38(b) ©
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21.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM (T0) ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY/
FELLOW SUBSIDIARIES

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables from
related companies (which are unsecured, interest-free and with
credit terms ranging from 30 to 40 days) presented based on
the invoice date, which approximate the respective revenue
recognition dates at the end of the reporting period.

Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries:

0 to 30 days
31 to 90 days

0Z30K
31290

At 31 December 2020, included in the Group's trade receivables
with fellow subsidiaries are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of HK$631,000 (2019: HK$1,598,000) which are past
due as at the reporting period. No balances are past due over 90
days or more at 31 December 2020 and 2019.

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables to related
companies (which are unsecured, interest-free and with credit
terms ranging from 30 to 40 days) presented based on the
invoice date at the end of the reporting period.

Amount due to ultimate holding company:

0 to 30 days 0&30K
31 to 90 days 31290k
91 to 180 days 91E 180K
Over 180 days HBIE180K

21.

FEU (FE1T) B4R N Rl
[5) % Bt /B 2 Bl 5K 1R

AT RRIRERRIZEE B8 (RS WARE
REHAE) 27 ZBERRE 5 RUIRR
(REER - 2R RABF30E40KREEH)
ZERER T

FE U5 B 2 B 2 RIFRR
2020 2019
2020 2019%
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHET TAT
15,009 1,671
631 1,598
15,640 3,269

M2020%12A31H » AEEK G R EM
BRrlzEB o RIERBIERAELEA
631,000/ 7T (20194 : 1,598,000/ 7T) 2
FEUERF - BREAFIERREHARE @E - I
2020F 12 A31H M2019%F » #f st arm
BIBIORIA L o

AT ARREHRZERAH2I ZBER

AEZENER (BEER - 28 KAE30
FAORZIEEH) Z BRI DT -

BNRKERARRE

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
16,735 14,293
9,109 7,737
3,828 3,300
7,040 6,025
36,712 31,355
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
amO H 5 SRR biisE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE2020F 12 A31BIEFE

21. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (T0) ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY/ 21.

FELLOW SUBSIDIARIES (antinued)

Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries:

0 to 30 days 0F30K
31 to 90 days 31290k

Other than disclosed in above, the remaining amount is in non-
trade nature, unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

Details of impairment assessment of amounts due from ultimate
holding company and fellow subsidiaries are set out in Note
38(b).

28.  TIME DEPOSITS OVER THREE MONTHS, AND BANK BALANCES 28.

AND CASH

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range from
0.01% to 3.40% (2019: 0.01% to 3.50%) per annum.

The time deposits over three months carry fixed interest rate
ranging from 0.21% to 2.39% (2019: 1.95% to 2.36%) per

annum.

Details of impairment assessment of time deposits over three
months and bank balances are set out in Note 38(b).
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FEU (FE1T) B4R N Rl
[5) % B B/~ B =R IR (4

ENERMEARKE

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
3,715 5,284

- 43

3,715 5,327

B EXFTIREEE 2N RBRRARIFE ST
g BEA RENERBELEEE -

U S AS PR AR 2 ) K B 2 Y B A B SRIE 2Rk
ERHEFHIEHNIRE38(D) °

ZE AU EEBERRIRT
EBRREERE

RITASRIZ0.01% E3.40% (20194 -
0.01%%3.50%) < i FEFEL A °

@A EFEBEFERIZE0.21%E2.39%
(20194F : 1.95% % 2.36%) 2 [& T F 5=
B o

— (BB LB R MR T a8 2 B RS
FEHAKIEE3S(b) °



29.

TRADE PAYABLES/OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 29.

Trade payables

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

0 to 30 days 0&30K
31 to 90 days 31E90K
91 to 180 days 912180
Over 180 days 180K LA

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 60 days.

Other payables and accruals

The following is the analysis of other payables and accruals at the
end of the reporting period:

Accruals for promotion and EEREEHREZETEA
advertising expenses

Construction payables FETEEEERIE

Dividend payable FERT AR 2

Staff costs and welfare payables 8 TRk AN I S 1@ F

Value added tax and other tax payables FERTIRER R E M FHIE

Refund liabilities (Note) R[E& & (D)

Other payables and accruals H b e A K ERTE

Note: The refund liabilities arose from outstanding rebates in relation to
the goods sold to certain customers.

EHEMRRH

it 1 4+ 3K

2019
2019%
HK$'000
TAT

118,059
94,597
1,279

9

HREER
5 ENRR
AT ARBERRZEZAHEI 2 EHE
MERFERE DT -
2020
20204
HK$'000
THET
159,010
69,783
3,737
2,010
234,540

213,944

RBEEmZ FHEREHAR60X -

Hip e RIBARETER

AN RREREMEMNREREHER

2

2020
20204
HK$'000
FET

294,633
11,928
18,608

110,877
11,383

151,512

144,021

742,962

2019
20194
HK$'000
FAT

240,572
19,927
15,174

103,609
10,915
94,214

101,906

586,317

M - RERERRAETEFPHEEERNRE

fEH -
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NUTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
|||IT| B\ij ﬁiﬂ% Hﬂ UI

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE2020F 12 A31BIEFE

30.  LEASE LIABILITIES . HEERE
2020 2019
20205 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
Lease liabilities payable: EREEEE:
Within one year —F A 7,278 1,660
Within a period of more than one year —F LA BT BB
but not exceeding two years 6,439 131
Within a period of more than two years MELA BT BRRT
but not exceeding five years 2,957 -
16,674 1,791
Less: Amount due for settlement with 12 B mBBEETARI2MEA
months shown under current liabilities FIHAR B A B FRIE (7,278) (1,660)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months IEREIEEE AR 1218 A%
shown under non-current liabilities FIHAR B A E SR IE 9,396 131
The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to BERREES BN INETFIEEERFIEN
lease liabilities range from 1.39% to 4.75% (2019: from 2.72% F1.39%%54.75% (20194 : N F2.72% =
10 4.75%). 4.75%)
Lease obligations that are denominated in currencies of the HERENREEETE 2 INEEEIIE -

functional currencies of the relevant group entities.
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31.

DEFERRED INCOME

The following is the movement in deferred income in the current

and prior years.

At the beginning of the year

Government grant received in relation to
acquisition of assets (Note)

Government grant refunded in relation to
acquisition of assets in previous years

Amortisation in the current year

Exchange realignment

At end of the year

Analysed as:
Current
Non-current

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group received

3. IEEUWN

40
FUREE B P BUR R RS (BT RE)

SREFRIEE ERTERIER TR

RNEEHH
B 54

Fi
DT

VinE2)
FERE

government subsidy of HK$1,195,000 (2019: HK$2,268,000)
for the acquisition of machinery in the PRC. The amount has

been treated as deferred income. The amount is amortised and

transferred to income over the useful life of the relevant asset.

AT RAFE R BEFERTERAZ

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
21,086 21,100
1,195 2,268
(2,492) -
(954) (1,813)
1,230 (469)
20,065 21,086
411 1,063
19,654 20,023
20,065 21,086

M3E : EE2020F12 A31AILFE - AEERD

A B U B M 1S BT £ B1,195,00078 70
(2019%F : 2,268,000/87T) ° Z&HR A
FERMARE - 2o EREEEAEERT
R R ERERA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
amO H 5 SRR biisE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE2020F 12 A31BIEFE

32.  SHARE CAPITAL 2. A
Number of Share
shares capital
& B AR
HK$'000
THET
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAR
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019 and 201951 H18 * 20194
31 December 2020 12 H31H %2020 12 A31H 1,074,319,480 2,941,441
Details of the shares held under the share award scheme (Note AT BIRIEM G133 (0 2R Er 21358 2 ik
33) are set out below: MEIS -
Average
purchase Number of Value of
price shares held shares
FriE
FIIEEE REE REEE
HK$ HK$'000
BT THET
At 1 January 2019 and M2019F1A1H R
31 December 2019 2019412 A31H 4 175,110 678
Shares purchased from secondary BAn SEEETEIE T &
market under share award scheme £ =MHEERNRRG 6.8 392,000 2,665
Shares vested under share award RIRAR D BB 212 B AR D
scheme 6.0 (525,000) (3,156)
At 31 December 2020 202012 A31H 4.4 42,110 187
33.  SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 8. UBRHABEBRAERLS
On 7 March 2016, a share award scheme (the “Share M2016E3H7H + AARQ A4 P15 1EE)
Award Scheme”) was adopted by the Company. The Share 2| (R ERETE]) - R ERE 28
Award Scheme is valid and effective for a period of 10 years 20163 B7HBAMN - AH+F - BIERR
commencing from 7 March 2016. Pursuant to the rules of the R HEENET 2|2 A - REEEBRESE B
Share Award Scheme, the Group has set up a trust for the SRR G SR E RN E BRI E EER
purpose of administering the Share Award Scheme and holding 4 o

the awarded shares before they are vested.
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33.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS /zantinued)

On 25 May 2018, a total of 279,940 award shares (the “2018
Awarded Shares”) of the Company have been awarded to
certain selected employees (including but not limited to directors,
executives, officers and other employees, whether full-time or
part-time, of any members of the Group) at no consideration.

120,730 of the 2018 Awarded Shares shall vest on 11 June 2018
and the remaining 159,210 of the 2018 Awarded Shares shall
vest on 11 December 2020. During the respective vesting periods,
the selected employees must remain as a director or an employee
of the Company or its subsidiaries.

On 17 May 2020 and 11 December 2020, a total of 384,030
award shares (the “2020 Awarded Shares”) of the Company
have been awarded and vested to certain selected employees
(including but not limited to directors, executives, officers and
other employees, whether full-time or part-time, of any members
of the Group) at no consideration.

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share
award held by employees during the year:

33.

Balance as at
1 January
Category of grantees  Date of grant Vesting period 2020
1#2020%
1A1A
ERAEE RLBH bl Fil 28R
Employees 25May 2018 From 25 May 2018 to 151,380
11 December 2020
[E& 2018554250 B201855A25H%
20205128118
Employees 17 May 2020 17 May 2020 -
[E& 200854178 2020254178
Employees 11 December 2020 11 December 2020 -
fE& 20205128118 20205124118
151,380

VAR 10 A B X5 #)

R2018F5H25H @ H£H279,940/% AN A A
HZEIAR D (12018 F R D)) E AT R(E
BRYETREFRE BREEIRRALZE
KB RARIZESE - 1THRAE - B E
REMES (TREEFER))

120,730/%20184F £/ A% (5 2 7201856 A
1MHESE - MR T159,2108%2018F S2EIL
PEF2020FE12 811 BERE - MIEHEE
BE - &GEERERENAERANGNEMBA
AlZES -

M202095 4178 %202012 8118 » #
384,030/ A R E2ENAK 1 ([20204F 22
BB DEUNERERTFAEBEBRE TEETE

BE (BRETRRASEEMKREARZ
EF TRAER SMBERHEMESRS (T

HEBEIR)) -

THRBBENEBHEOAR TR L
28

Number of shares awarded

RRROYE
Awarded Vested Cancelled  Balance as at
during the during during 31 December
year the year the year 2020
R2020%
12A31R
FRER FRER EREE &8
- (140,940) (10,440) -
276,910 (276,910) - -
107,120 (107,120) - -
384,030 (524,970) (10,440) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
amO H 5 SRR biisE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE2020F 12 A31BIEFE

33.  SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS fzantinued)

Category of grantees Date of grant Vesting period

ERABE piduf=l GBI

Employees 25May 2018 From 25 May 2018 to 11
December 2020

] 2018554250 201855 A25H%2020F
12A1AB

The estimated fair values of the 2018 Awarded Shares and
2020 Awarded Shares are HK$4.58 and HK$6.61 respectively
per share based on the market trading price of the share at the
grant date. The total fair value of the 2018 Awarded Shares and
2020 Awarded Shares are HK$1,282,000 and HK$2,538,000
respectively.

The Group recognised the total expense of HK$2,754,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: HK$230,000) in relation to
share award granted by the Company.

34.  CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

N, UBRHEEBRMRZ S @

Number of shares awarded

RERAEE
Balance as at Awarded Vested Balance as at
1 January during the during 31 December
2019 year the year 2019
120194 20194
1A18 12A318
2% FREE FRGE LEB
159,210 - (7,830) 151,380

RIEE L ARG 2 TiHKAZ(E - 20185 5
AR ) ]2 2020 SEENIR D 2 (st AT ED
R BEAR4. 588 T K%6.6178 7T ° 120184
RENAR D R 2020F BENR () 2 A FEBE
7R £1,282,000% 7T 522,538,000/ 7T ©

NEBREE2020F128318ILFE
RARBREZRNEHERAE LA
2,754,000 7T (20194 : 230,000767T) ©

M. BARKIE

2020 2019
20205 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHTT
Capital expenditure in respect of acquisition ~ FAUXIEWIZE - E KRBT
of property, plant and equipment BRRERE I mEREE 2
contracted for but not provided in the BRFAEZ
consolidated financial statements 20,651 82,317
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3b.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group participates in both defined contribution scheme
which is registered under the Occupational Retirement Schemes
Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”) and a Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) established under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance in December
2000. The assets of the schemes are held separately from those
of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees. Certain
employees who were members of the ORSO Scheme prior to
the establishment of the MPF Scheme remained with the ORSO
Scheme, whereas all new employees joining the Group on or
after 1 December 2000 are required to join the MPF Scheme.

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group contributes 5%
of relevant payroll costs to the Scheme, which contribution is
matched by the employee and capped at HK$1,500 per month.

The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly contributions from
both employees and the Group at 5% of the employees’ basic
salary. The pension costs charged to profit or loss represent
contributions paid or payable to these funds by the Group at
rates specified in the rules of these schemes.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of the state-managed retirement benefits scheme
operated by the PRC government. The Company’s PRC
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of
their employees’ payroll costs to the retirement benefits scheme
to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of HK$33,597,000
(2019: HK$58,198,000) represents contributions payable to these
plans by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the plans.

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, there were no forfeited
contributions which arose upon employees leaving the retirements
plan and which are available to reduce the contributions payable
in the future years.

3b.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
amO H 5 SRR biisE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE2020F 12 A31BIEFE

36.  ACQUISITION OF BUSINESS/A SUBSIDIARY 6. WEEHR WEAF

(@ On 23 January 2020, Eastpeak Trading (Shanghai)
Company Limited (“Eastpeak”) a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into the sales and
purchases agreement with K& RIER m(L8)BRAF
for the acquisition of its trademark, customers contracts
and employees at a consideration of Renminbi (“RMB")
45,000,000 (equivalent to HK$49,264,000). The acquisition
has been accounted for as a business using the acquisition
method. The acquisition has been completed on 1 April
2020.

Consideration transferred

Cash B
Other payables (Note) H o pEATROE (BH7E)

Acquisition-related costs amounting to HK$3,054,000 have
been excluded from the consideration transferred and have
been recognised as an expense in the period within the
"other expenses” line item in the condensed consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

Note: The remaining consideration payable is unsecured, interest-
free and repayable when all the payment conditions meet.

Assets recognised at the date of acquisition

Trademark (Note) P (B 3E)
Intangible assets (Note) mEE ()

Note: The trademark is mainly consisted of “Fg5R%242" while
the intangible assets are mainly consisted of customer
relationship.
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36. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESS/A SUBSIDIARY (cantinues)

(a

(continued)

Goodwill arising on acquisition:

HEAE

Consideration transferred
Less: net assets acquired

Goodwill arising on acquisition

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of the business because
the cost of the combination included amounts in relation to
the benefit of expected synergies, revenue growth, future
market development and the assembled workforce of the
business. These benefits are not recognised separately from
goodwill because they do not meet the recognition criteria
for identifiable intangible assets.

None of the goodwill arising on these acquisitions is
expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

Included in the profit for the year ended 31 December 2020
was HK$1,286,000 attributable to the additional business
generated by the above acquisition. Revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2020 included HK$210,165,000
generated from Eastpeak from above business.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2020,
revenue for the year ended of the Group would have
been HK$3,594,821,000 and profit for the year ended
31 December 2020 of the Group would have been
HK$333,282,000. The pro forma information is for
illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an indication
of revenue and results of operations of the Group that
actually would have been achieved had the acquisition
been completed on 1 January 2020, nor is it intended to be
a projection of future results.

Net cash outflows arising on acquisition of HK$34,485,000.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE2020F 12 A31BIEFE

36.  ACQUISITION OF BUSINESS/A SUBSIDIARY (zantinver) 3. WEER WBAR @

(b)  On 2 July 2019, the Group acquired entire equity interest (b) M2019F7H28  AEENBL
in ZE BB B2 AR A A] (namely, Zhuhai Nissin Packaging E-FKRBHKERBEEBEBRADA]
Company Limited (“Zhuhai Nissin Packaging”)) (formerly (FRERFEE]) (RBIKEHE R
known as ZR/EHEE B AR A F], namely Uni-Intech RERAR) M2 HE - LRER
(Zhuhai) Scientific Technology Co., Ltd.) from independent BEAR®59,270,000T (HERH
third parties at a cash consideration of RMB59,270,000 65,950,000 7T.) U B8 H - th {55 FA 4
(equivalents to approximately HK$65,950,000) for its land LABGEFT TR - WEE ARAWEE
use right for construction of a new factory. The acquisition E -

had been accounted for as acquisition of asset.

Assets and liabilities recognised on the date of WEERACEEREBNT @
acquisition are as follows:

HK$'000
FET
Net assets recognised: EHERCEEFE :
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE 60,025
Other receivables H b R GRIE 3,338
Bank balances and cash RITHER LIRS 2,677
Other payables and accruals EAth R RIE R EET B A (90)
65,950
HK$'000
FET
Consideration transferred HEAE
Consideration paid BERARE 64,837
Not yet paid up to 31 December 2019 (Note) ~ &[Z2019%12 A31 8 A&7 (M 5E) 1,113
Total st 65,950
Note: Amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable within Mizr : RBEAEER RENANRTSH
two years upon completion of the transaction date. B SRR E N (EE -
Net cash outflow on acquisition of Zhuhai Nissin WK EABEREELEZEHER
Packaging HiEaE
HK$'000
FET
Cash consideration paid BENESRE 64,837
Less: cash and cash equivalents acquired W WECEE RIReSEY (2,677)
Net cash outflow on acquisition for the year EHZE2019F12A31H L FEWEES 2
ended 31 December 2019 IR e FEE 62,160
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3l.

38.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3l.

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the generation of
profits from its operations. The Group's overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on an
annual basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with its capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends and
new share issues.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 38.

(a) Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets SRIEE

Financial assets at FVTPL BAFERAERZ
SRMEE

Financial assets at amortised cost REBERAZ SREE

Financial liabilities TRIEE

Amortised cost BESHR AR

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies
The Group’s major financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes.

The risks associated with the financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and other price
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.
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2020 2019
20204 20194
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38.

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS  /zantinues)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk

The Group does not enter into or trade in derivative
financial instruments either for hedging or speculative
purposes. There has been no change to the Group’s
exposure to market risks or the manner in which it

manages and measures the risk during the year.

(1)

Currency risk

The Company and several subsidiaries of the
Company have foreign currency sales and purchases,
which expose the Group to foreign currency risk.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and
monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting period
are as follows:

United States Dollar (“US$") =7t ([%7T])
Japanese Yen (“JPY") HE(THE)
RMB AR

Euro BT

As HK$ is currently pegged to US$, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group’s exposure
to fluctuation in HK$ against US$ is limited. The
Group's currency risk is mainly concentrated on the
fluctuations of JPY, Euro and RMB against HK$S.

The Group currently does not have a foreign
exchange hedging policy. However, the management
of the Group monitors foreign exchange exposure
and will consider hedging significant foreign
exchange exposure should the need arises.

HERMAEBRRAR

38. iﬁﬁlzx (7
(b) EREBREZEEERBEGE)

Assets

aE

2020
202045
HK$'000
FET

547,614
7,270
359,677
655

T R
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Liabilities
afE

2019 2020 2019
20194 20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET FET FAT
542,718 15,684 17,939
3,084 17,335 16,807
311,172 43,080 77,250
12,206 - -

EAB TR EETES - AR
RIESERAELAEEHF AR Z
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38.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (zantinued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(1)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity
to a 5% (2019: 5%) increase and decrease in the
relevant foreign currencies against the functional
currencies of the relevant group entities. 5% (2019:
5%) is the sensitivity rate used when reporting
foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management'’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items and adjusts their translation at the end of
the reporting period for a 5% (2019: 5%) change
in foreign currency rates. A positive number below
indicates an increase in profit for the year where the
relevant foreign currencies strengthen 5% against
the relevant functional currencies of the relevant
group entities. For a 5% weakening of the relevant
foreign currencies against the functional currencies
of the relevant group entities, there would be an
equal and opposite impact on the profit for the year
and the balances below would be negative.

JPY against HK$ HEXET
RMB against HK$ AREH BT
Euro against HK$ BT BT

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange
risk as the year end exposure does not reflect the
exposure during the year.
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38.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (zantinuec)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i)

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to fixed-rate time deposits with maturity
over three months, other financial assets and lease
liabilities. The Group is also exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk in relation to the fluctuation of
prevailing market interest rate on bank balances. The
Group currently does not have interest rate hedging
policy, however, the management monitors interest
rate exposure on dynamic basis.

The directors of the Company consider that the
overall interest rate risks for bank balances and
structured rates are not significant as bank balances
and structured rates are all short term and interest
rates are currently at low level with no significant
changes are expected for the foreseeable future.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through
its investments in listed equity securities measured
at FVTPL. The Group is also exposed to certain price
risks in relation to unquoted equity securities for
investees for long term strategic purposes which had
been designed as FVTPL. The Group has monitored
the price risk and will consider hedging the risk
exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risks at the
end of the reporting period. Sensitivity analyses
for unquoted equity securities with fair value
measurement categorised within Level 3 were
disclosed in note 38(c).
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38.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (zantinued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i) Other price risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis (continued)

If the prices of the listed equity instruments had
been 35% (2019: 35%) lower, the profit for the
year would decrease by HK$4,984,000 (2019:
HK$3,265,000) for the Group as a result of the
changes in fair value of investments at FVTPL.

The management does not anticipate a significant
increase in market bid price on the listed equity
instrument in the next financial year having regard
to the trends in the market bid price. Accordingly,
no sensitivity analysis for increase in such prices is
presented.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s counterparties
default on their contractual obligations resulting in financial
losses to the Group. The Group'’s credit risk exposures are
primarily attributable to trade receivables, amounts due
from fellow subsidiaries which are in trade nature, other
receivables, loan receivable, amount due from ultimate
holding company, bank balances, time deposits with
maturity over three months and other financial assets.
The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements to cover its credit risks associated with its
financial assets, except that the credit risks associated with
loan receivable is mitigated because it is secured over the
guarantee provided by the shareholders of the debtor.
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38.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (zantinuec)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Trade receivables and amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries which are in trade nature arising from
contracts with customers

0

Trade receivables

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits and credit approvals.
Before accepting any new customer, the Group
uses an internal credit scoring system to assess the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit
limits by customer. Limits and scoring attributed to
customers are reviewed regularly. Other monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 23%
(2019: 26%) and 67% (2019: 78%) of the total
trade receivables was due from the Group’s largest
customer and the five largest customers respectively.

In addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model on trade balances
individually for customers with significant balances
and others based on provision matrix based on
shared credit risk characteristics by reference to
repayment histories for recurring customers and past
due exposure for the new customers. Impairment
loss of HK$2,585,000 (2019: Impairment loss of
HK$457,000 was reversed) was recognised during
the year. Details of the quantitative disclosures are
set out below in this note.
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38.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (zantinued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Trade receivables and amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries which are in trade nature arising from
contracts with customers (continued)

(ii)

Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries which are in
trade nature

The Group performs impairment assessment under
ECL model. The balances with fellow subsidiaries
are considered as low credit risk since those fellow
subsidiaries are with good repayment history and
strong financial capacity to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term. Thus, the directors
of the Company consider the impairment loss was
insignificant to be recognised during the year.

Other receivables/loan receivables/amount due
from ultimate holding company/bank balances/time
deposits over three months/other financial assets

0

Loan receivable

The directors of the Company estimate the estimated
loss rates by using 12m ECL based on historical credit
loss experience of the debtor. Based on assessment
by the directors of the Company, the loss given
default is low in view of the regular settlement of
debtor without any delay in settlement of instalment
in the current and previous years. Thus, the directors
of the Company consider the impairment loss was
insignificant to be recognised during the year.
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38.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (zantinuec)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Other receivables/loan receivables/amount due
from ultimate holding company/bank balances/time
deposits over three months/other financial assets
(continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Other receivables and amount due from ultimate
holding company

The directors of the Company make periodic
individual assessment on the recoverability of other
receivables and amount due from ultimate holding
company based on historical settlement records, past
experience, and also quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportive
forward-looking information. The directors of the
Company believe that there are no significant
increase in credit risk of these amounts since initial
recognition and the Group provided impairment
based on 12m ECL basis. Thus, the directors of
the Company consider the impairment loss was
insignificant to be recognised during the year.

Time deposits with maturity over three months, bank
balances and other financial assets

The credit risks on bank balances, time deposits
with maturity over three months and other financial
assets are limited because the counterparties are
financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies. The Group
assessed 12m ECL for time deposits with maturity
over three months, bank balances and other
financial assets by reference to information relating
to probability of default and loss given default of the
respective credit rating grades published by external
credit rating agencies. Based on the average loss
rates, the directors of the Company consider the
impairment loss was insignificant to be recognised
during the year.
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e mAEEZ 1218 A EHIE
BEEERMARE - Bk - AR
FIEER /N FANERNRE
BRI 8

KR I W R AR P B

=R EESMER - RITHE
HEEMEREE
RITEEER - =EA DALEHW‘
&E’rlﬂipﬂé‘?ﬂ’] EER
ﬁﬁﬁé : I#yﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁﬂlf‘f’%ﬁ
EFAHBRTREENFMRN
TREIE - NEB2E BN
ERAMAKBERHREESERE
BB OB R FENER
FEM U =EANRLE
HEFER - RITEREEMES R
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38.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (zantinued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Credit risk and imp

airment assessment (continued)

Impairment assessment

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment

comprises the followin

Internal
credit rating

AEBEEFFR

Low risk

li9Eatey

Medium risk

RE

Watch list

7D

Loss

18

Write-off

g

g categories:

Description

4

The counterparty has a low risk of
default and does not have any
past-due amounts

HFFEONRRERE  BIWEE
fo]81 BRI

Debtor frequently repays after due
dates but usually settle in full

B AL RER - 838
EEREEN

There have been significant
increases in credit risk since initial
recognition through information
developed internally or external
resources

RIBEAEER SN ERRBEEE
[E\ B B IR FE R LA SRR IR 14 0

There is evidence indicating the asset
is credit-impaired

ERBEREAECHEERERE

There is evidence indicating that
the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and the Group has no
realistic prospect of recovery

ERBEREHSALRERMBER
- BASEYERAMERE
A

38.

ST E

(b) TEEMEEBEBERBEKE)

= EER R E S (G

HEFE

AEBENANBEERBIFRBIEAT

Al

Trade receivable

and amounts

due from fellow
subsidiaries which
are in trade nature
B RWRIER
R EA - NGB
(BEZHE)

Lifetime ECL
- not credit-impaired

2 HIEEEE SR
—AREEEERE
Lifetime ECL
— not credit-impaired
HFRHEEEE
—RBEEFERE
Lifetime ECL
— not credit-impaired

> HFEREEEE
—RELEERE
Lifetime ECL
— credit-impaired
2 EE R E EIS1E
—BEEERE
Amount is written off

HIHEIR

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Other financial assets
at amortised cost

BEBERATEEN
HitbemEE

12m ECL

12{8 AFEHMEEEE

12m ECL

128 A TR E B E1E

Lifetime ECL
— not credit-impaired

FHIEHEEERE
—REEEERE
Lifetime ECL
— credit-impaired
2 HIFEEME B &R
—REEERE

Amount is written off

EHFR IR

—E_TFFER
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38.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (zantinuec)

(b)

38.

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Impairment assessment (continued)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the
Group's financial assets which are subject to ECL assessment:

Financial assets at amortised

costs

RRHERATR 2 S REE

Loan receivable
JEME

Amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries

ERRZMBARRE

Amount due from ultimate

holding company

PR SRR A RIFR

Other financial assets

Ao mEE

Time deposits with maturity

over three months
ZEAULEHER
Bank balances
RITHH

Other receivables
H it fEIA
Trade receivables

BARYRR

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED

External
credit
rating
S
EETR

N/A
NEH
N/A

NER

Al -Baa

A1-Baa
A1-Baa
Al1-Baa
N/A

NER

HiER &

Internal
credit
rating
s
BEFR

Low risk
(Note 1)
{2 B
(FitzE1)
Low risk
(Note 2)
e
(F35E2)
Low risk
(Note 1)
KRR
(M)
N/A
TNER
N/A

T
N/A
T
Low risk
(Note 1)
KR
(FigzE1)
Low risk
(Note 2)
il
(BFz¥2)

Low risk
{livE

Loss

BB

12m ECL or

lifetime ECL

128 BBEEFES
2HAREESR

12m ECL
12{HAEHEERE

Lifetime ECL
(not credit impaired)

2HBRBEEBRGHS

BRE)
12m ECL

REAERHEEER

12m ECL
12{EAEHEERE
12m ECL

12{EARMESBR
12mECL
12EAEHEERE
12m ECL

12AREBREEEE

Lifetime ECL
(provision matrix)
FHEHEERSE
(BEERE)
Lifetime ECL
(not credit-impaired)
2 HEHEERR
GEEERE)
Credit-impaired
ZERE

EMIR®@

(b) TEEMEEBEBERBEKE)

= E/ER R E S (E)

REFHEG (&)

TR AKESREERBEFALAE

EEEENEERRFS
2020 2019
2020%F 20195
Gross carrying Gross carrying
amount amount
REAE FRmeE
HK$'000  HK$'000 = HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TR THET THET
1,915 2,463
15,640 3,269
3,766 5,760
- 156,630
507,758 105,003
1,607,247 1,505,143
40,778 37,739
296,390 208,446
212,155 212,610
3,464 512,009 879 421935



38.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (zantinued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Impairment assessment (continued)
Note:

1. For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the
Group uses an aged analysis based on past due days to
assess whether credit risk has increased significant since
initial recognition and concluded that there is no significant
increase in credit risk for loan receivable, amount due from
ultimate holding company and other receivables.

2. For trade receivables and amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries in trade nature, the Group has applied the
simplified approach to measure the loss allowance at
lifetime ECL. Except for debtors with significant outstanding
balances and amounts due from fellow subsidiaries which
are in trade nature, the Group determines the expected
credit losses on these items by using a provision matrix,
grouped by historical repayment pattern of customers in the
past three years.

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group
uses internal credit rating to assess the impairment for its
customers in relation to the trade receivables because these
customers consist of a large number of customers with
common risk characteristics that are representative of the
customers’ abilities to pay all amounts due in accordance
with the contractual terms.

The estimated loss rates used are estimated based on
historical observed default rates over the expected life
of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.
The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure relevant information about specific debtors is
updated.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, impairment
loss of HK$2,585,000 was recognised during the year
and for the year ended 31 December 2019, a reversal of
impairment loss of HK$457,000 was recognised.

38.
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38.

As at 31 December 2019
Impairment losses recognised

As at 31 December 2020

Changes in loss allowance for trade receivables are mainly
due to the net impact of additional ECL allowance of
HK$2,585,000 during the year ended 31 December 2020
and the reversal of credit impaired trade receivables of
HK$457,000 during the year ended 31 December 2019.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance the
Group's operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations
in cash flows.

The following table details the Group's contractual maturity
for its financial liabilities. The table has been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay.

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED AERMAERARA

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS /zantinuer) 38.
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)
Impairment assessment (continued)
The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL
that has been recognised for trade receivables under the
simplified approach.
As at 1 January 2019 R2019F181A8
Impairment losses reversed B EDREETE
Exchange adjustments M 3, FH

20195128311
HERREEE
720205124311

EMIR®@
(b) SEMEAREEEEREE D

= E/ER R E S (E)
R ERFIE ()

TRINREREBEBIITIEAE SR
RIAERNEHEREEEEES) -

Lifetime ECL
(credit-impaired)
>HABEE
B8 (EERE)
HK$'000

FAT

1,360
(457)
(24)

879
2,585

3,464

E S ENRENSEREESH T 2R
REZE2020F12 8318 (FFE585
TEHAE B R 1B fB)$582,585,000/%8
TTRREE2019F12A318EFE
BEIEREE 5 EWRFRIEA57,00058
TURTER o

mEEZ AR
REERDECRER  RNEBEER
MEERERARHZRASRRS
EBYWKFE - RAKBEZEERNE
T WREREREKBZFE -

TRHIAKESRABZANEH
ICP EZ%’%B%E$%I¢§S‘ZNZE§$
PR E 2 2RABZRTERER



38.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (zantinued) B ERITHA(

Y,

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) EMEAKREEBERBER#E)
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) TEEEER ()
Liquidity risk table TEE)E /AR
31 December 2020 2020%12H31H
Weighted
average  On demand Total
interest  or within 41012 1t03 undiscounted Carrying
rate 3 months months year  cash flows amount
g RERE L ik

YoNE  #=EAR =R  -E=F  REAE HEE
%  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
TR TR TRT TR TER

Trade payables BAERNER - 234,540 - - 234,540 234,540
Other payables and accruals At ERFERETER - 580,067 - - 580,067 580,067
Amount due to ultimate holding ~ JES &AIERR A 5)508
company - 36,712 - - 36,712 36,712
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries  fEFE B A - 3715 - - 3715 3715
Lease liabilities HERR 251 1,567 5,994 9,523 17,084 16,674
856,601 5,994 9,523 872,118 871,708
31 December 2019 2019412 H31H
Weighted
average  On demand Total
interest or within 41012 Tt03  undiscounted Carrying
rate 3 months months year  cash flows amount
WE - RENRE mz ABRE

PabxE  #=@AR t-@A  —E=f  RERR afE
% HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
ThT TR TR TR ThAT

Trade payables B AERNER - 213,944 - - 213,944 213,944
Other payables and accruals At ERFERETER - 476,372 - - 476,372 476,372

Amount due to ultimate holding ~ FER SR A RIFIE
company - 31,355 - - 31,355 31,355
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries  FE(F ZH B RIFE - 5,327 - - 5,327 5,327
Lease liabilities HEaR 4.75 635 1,745 190 2,570 1,791
727,633 1,745 190 729,568 728789
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38.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS /cantinuec) 8. EMT R

(o)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

Some of the Group's financial instruments are measured
at fair value for financial reporting purposes. The
management is to determine the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level
1 inputs are not available, the Group engages third
party qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The
management works closely with the qualified external
valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs to the model. The management reports the
findings to the board of directors of the Company regularly
to explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair value.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at fair

(o)

SMTAATEIE

AEEHH ERTERAH2HE
BAFEIE - ERERATFE
SETEA E TR AR -

RIEFTAFER - AEBRBEMEF
MSAERYE A EE—ERE
ABENBERT NEBRBE=T
BERMEMETRE EREHES
BRSNS EMER A ERIENE
Rz A ERM kB ARE - EEEE
HIRARREZGERERABER
FEREBHNHREA -

FRE R T M EEL L FER
B2EMEEZ N FE
AEEETEMEENSREHRRE

ATFEHE - FRBHMABTHS
SHAEZ ATVEERRMAMEE
BT RN 2 BR -

value at the end of each reporting period. The following
table gives information about how the fair values of these
financial assets are determined (in particular, the valuation
technique(s) and inputs used).

Fair value as at

- A Valuation
RTSIRRZDFE Fairvalue  technique(s) Significant
Financial assets 2020 2019  hierarchy  and key input(s) unobservable inputs
tRIEE 2020%F 2019F AVEEBR HERMRIEGARE EXTITERHAYE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TEx
Listed equity investment 14,241 9,328  Level 1 Quoted prices in an active N/A
market
FHRARE E-Ef  REEMSZRE TEH
Club debenture 272 272 level2 Quoted prices in a market for  N/A
identical assets
SHES F_BR  EWERSEEZRE NER
Unlisted equity 18,315 23,639  Level 3 Price to earnings ratio Discount rate of 30% (2019: 30%) (note
investments adjusted for marketability a) and price to earnings ratio multiple
of 10.74 (2019: 11.09) (note b), taking
into account management's experience
and knowledge of market conditions.
¥ EIRARE F=BH  TREGWHREMEL  AFHE30%(2019F : 30%) (Fizta) ki
HE) BR{EE10.742019F : 11.09) (7
b) - HEEREREMEREHTEN
E TEEMETE °
Structured notes 197,069 397,819 Level 2 Quoted prices provided by~ N/A

financial institution

HEELER FES  SRBERECZRE NEm

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED AERMAERARA



38.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (zantinued)

(o)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis
(continued)

Notes:

a)

b)

A slight increase in the discount rate used in isolation would
result in a slight decrease in the fair value measurement of
unlisted equity investment, and vice versa. If the discount
rate was 0.5% higher/lower to 30.5%/29.5% (2019:
30.5%/29.5%) while holding all other variables constant,
the carrying amount of the unlisted equity investment would
decrease by HK$108,000 (2019:HK$163,000) or increase by
HK$108,000 (2019:HK$163,000) as at 31 December 2020.

A slight increase in the price to earnings ratio multiple
used in isolation would result in a slight increase in the fair
value measurement of unlisted equity investment, and vice
versa. If the price to earnings ratio multiple was 5% higher/
lower to 11.28/10.20 (2019: 11.64/10.54) while all other
variables constant, the carrying amount of the unlisted
equity investment would increase by HK$1,391,000 (2019:
HK$1,751,000) or decrease by HK$1,391,000 (2019:
HK$1,751,000) as at 31 December 2020.

There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3 during
the year.

38.

T H®
ERMIENFEFTEGE)

(o)
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(a)

(b)

R E—ER -
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WAEM@MBIIBE R T - BhIR R E 4K
B ELETBRABENAF
BREEeBARD  R2ZT
R MALRERAS, TFHO.5%
%£30.5%/29.5% (20194 :
30.5%/29.5%) * i FTA H b &
BEERFTE FELTREAREN
BREE AR 202012 A31BR A
108,000/ 7T (20194F : 163,000/
7T) 338 11108,0005# 7T (20194F -
163,000/ 7T) °

WHARGHREBEH LA - 8
FEMBRARENAFENER
M RZMAK - fmAE
RZEH11.28/10.20(20194F
11.64/10.54) ',/ 1K5% - M ATAHE
thEERFTE  FLMRARE
HIBEEE 2020912 531880
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38.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (zamtinues) 8. &I HE®
(c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments (0 &EMIBEQAFEEHE)
(continued)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements FE=R L FEGBZHR
Financial assets
at FVTPL
BATFAE A
BRNEREE
At 1 January 2019 7201941 A18 19,514
Fair value gain ASRIEN 6 4,125
At 31 December 2019 2019412 A31H 23,639
Fair value loss NEEE (5,324)
At 31 December 2020 12020612 A31H 18,315
Fair value gains or losses on financial assets FVTPL are BATVESAEZHNEREENATE
included in ‘other gains and losses'. Bl EEE AT HE iz R EE
th o
Fair value of financial assets and financial WHGEEMHEEL N F
liabilities that are not measured at fair value on HECeREEHTSHE &
a recurring basis (but fair value disclosures are CHRFE(HEARKERFHEH)
required)
The directors of the Company consider that the carrying RATIEER S @ KA S
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities EREAESREERSHBE
recognised at amortised cost in the consolidated financial CEmMEEE N EAE
statements approximate their fair values.
The fair values of the financial assets and financial liabilities LitemBEERSREBE ATET
above have been determined in accordance with generally BEARTEER GRS RED
accepted pricing models based on a discounted cash flow WEETE -
analysis.

200 NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BERMABRAF



39.

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Apart from the balances with related parties as disclosed in the
consolidated statement of financial position and respective notes,
the Group has entered into the following transactions with

related parties:

Ultimate holding company
Management fee received

Outsourcing manufacturing and
procurement of finished goods

Purchase of raw materials

Purchase of equipment and parts

Royalty charges paid (Note)

Sales of raw materials and finished goods

Purchase of SAP license
Research service
Market service fee
Miscellaneous expense

REERAT
SWEEE
SMELAEEE R IRRE X R

BERME

BB B AR B R
EAERE ()
SHE MR R
B E SAP IR

7T AR
TISRIEE
IEMAY

Note: The amount represents royalty paid to ultimate holding company
for the rights to use certain trademarks and technical know-how
in connection with the manufacturing and sales of certain licensed
products which is calculated at certain percentage on the net sales

of these licensed products.

Fellow subsidiaries
Food testing fee

GENH: P
BB &

Outsourcing manufacturing and procurement M A 2 K £ B8 A S

of finished goods
Purchase of raw materials

Sales of raw materials and finished goods

BERME
HHE R R R &

The compensation to key management personnel consist mainly
of directors’ emoluments as disclosed in Note 12.

39. BABKTTIER

BRI R & BRI 2R B 4% MY S A B B8 B gt

TTZREERN - AR E D B R

5

2020
20205
HK$'000
FET

(82)

67,194
38,120

16,989

F13Z T3]

2019
20194
HK$'000
FAET

(304)

37,724
35,479
1,542
15,592
(36)

12
(6,878)
32

73

i ZeRERARERELERBEE TR
TEEE fn B B 2 B T A AR Rl FO s T e A
RERAR N2 BHNE (RBEZSEE
EREEFE-—CAILFE) -

2020
20205
HK$°000
FiT

4,144

58,647

4,399
(92,978)

2019
20194
HK$'000
FAT

4,132

45,246

3,651
(50,232)

IZEEBABZHMIZBEME 12/

BREERHM -
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40.

PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has equity
interests in the following subsidiaries comprising the Group:

Name of subsidiaries

WEAREE

Dongguan Nissin Packaging
Co., Ltd.* (Note 3)

Kagome Nissin Foods (H.K.)
Co., Ltd. (Note 2)

IRXAERR(BR)
BRAR (M)

Fujian Nissin Foods
Co., Ltd.* (Note 3)
RBREBEMBRAF

(Fft3E3)

Gangyongnan Food
Products (Shenzhen) Co.,
Ltd.* (Note 1)

ki Rm (R BR
AR ()

Place of
incorporation/ Date of
registration/  incorporation/

operation registration
R/ &,/

EENH AR,/ A
PRC 17 October 2013
il 20135108178
Hong Kong 27 April 2018
BB 2018F4427R
PRC 19 February 2014
h 201452198
PRC 3 March 1999
HE 199943 A3H

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BERMABRAF

40.

Issued and fully
paid ordinary
share capital/
registered capital
BRITRAR
EERAEMEE

RMB147,000,000

ARE147,000,0007T

HK$5,000,000

5,000,000/ 7T

RMB235,000,000

A& #235,000,0007

HK$11,000,000

11,000,000/ 7T

B 8 22 Rl R 1R
RIS IR + AR TR A TR E 2
BRI R

Attributable
equity
interest held
by the Company Principal activities
ENEIEEE P
RAEFELE TEER
2020 2019
2020F | 2019%F
100% 100%  Manufacturing of packaging
materials of instant
noodles products
SEANREERREME
70% 70%  Import, purchase and sale of
beverage products in Hong
Kong, Macau and PRC
WEE RPIRPEED
RERHEERM
100% 100%  Manufacturing of instant
noodles products
CENREER
100% 100%  Trading and sales of frozen
foods
ZHRMELREM



40.

PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES (zontinues)

Name of subsidiaries

WEAREE

Guangdong Shunde Nissin
Foods Co., Ltd.* (Note 3)

ERIBEHERRAER
ASICEE)

Nissin Foods (China)
Holding Co., Ltd.*
(Note 2)

AERR(PE)REER
AR (H3E2)

Nissin Foods (H.K.)
Company Limited
(Note 2)

RERR(EB)ERAR
firsE2)

Nissin Foods (H.K.)
Management Company
Limited (Note 2)

REEm (BB ERER
AT (fFE2)

Place of
incorporation/ Date of

registration/  incorporation/

operation registration
B/ &/

EEY AL/ A 5
PRC 13 November 1994
e 1994611 A13R
PRC 29 October 2001
HE 20014105298
Hong Kong 25 August 2015
BB 2015684250
Hong Kong 6 July 2001

BB 200167 A6H

40.

Issued and fully
paid ordinary
share capital/
registered capital
BRTRER
LEREERMEX

HK$130,000,000

130,000,000/ 7

RMB1,443,797,800

AEH1,443,797,8007C

HK$10,000,000

10,000,000/ 7T

HK$200

200/ 7T

M A B EEE (@)

Attributable
equity
interest held
by the Company Principal activities
LGS
RAERELL TEEH
2020 2019
2020F | 2019F
100% 100%  Manufacturing and and
sales of instant noodles
products
EEREEHRAER
100% 100%  Investment holding in the
PRC and purchase and
sale of instant noodles
products
ETEETRERRREER
HIRME R
100% 100%  Sales and distribution of
noodles, retort foods,
frozen foods, beverage
products and snacks in
Hong Kong and Macau
EEBRAMHER S (A
& FERm RRR
e FHERKRZR
100% 100%  Provision of administrative

and human resources to
group companies

MEE D AR THRA N
BIRMRT
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40.  PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARI

Place of

ES (contimue)

incorporation/ Date of

registration/
Name of subsidiaries operation

incorporation/
registration

A3 Ve

HEAR B EERY M, A

Nissin Koikeya Foods Hong Kong 27 September 2013
(China & HK) Co.,
Limited (Note 2)

BEWHE (REs 58) &% 2013594278
BRAR (HEE2)

Winner Food Products Hong Kong 11 April 1969
Limited (Note 2)

XERERBRAR(MF2) &S 1969F4 7118

MC Marketing & Sales Hong Kong 17 January 1978
(Hong Kong) Limited
(Note 2)

ERREARAA(MTY) BE 1978518178

Zhuhai Golden Coast PRC 3 July 1993
Winner Food Products
Limited (Note 1)

KEMLEFEXERME  TH 199357438
NG ED)

Zhejiang Nissin Foods PRC 25 November 2014
Co., Ltd.* (Note 3)

HIRBRMARAR  HHE 2014F11 4258

(R5E3)

2[]4 NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | H

BRMBERAR

40.

Issued and fully
paid ordinary
share capital/
registered capital
BRTRAR
LEREERMEX

HK$10,000,000

10,000,000/ 7T

HK$29,975,000

29,975,000 7T

HK$1,000

1,000787C

HK$84,000,000

84,000,000/ 7T

RMB350,000,000

A #350,000,0007

NG )

Attributable
equity
interest held
by the Company
ERAFEZ
IR

2020
2020

66%

100%

51%

70.45%

100%

2019
2019

66%

100%

70.45%

100%

Principal activities

TEEH

Purchase and sales of snacks

i
pul}
A
ap

Manufacturing and sales of
instant noodles products
and frozen foods

EERHENREERRA
REM

Importation and distribution
of beverages and food

products
ENRA IR RRRER

Manufacturing and sales of
instant noodles

HERHENREER

Manufacturing of instant

noodles products
EENREER



40.

PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES (zontinues)

Place of

incorporation/ Date of

registration/

incorporation/

Name of subsidiaries operation registration
A3 Ve

HEAR B EELE M, A

Zhuhai Nissin Packaging PRC 10 December 2003
Company Limited*
(acquired on 23 October
2019 (Note 36)) (Note 3)

WERFRERERRE  PE 2003F 123108
(1201910 /2381
¥ (fzE36)) (M3E3)

Hong Kong Eastpeak Hong Kong 4 March 2020
Limited (Note 2)

ERREBRAR(H2) FE 2020%3R4H

Shanghai Eastpeak Trading  PRC 6 March 2020
Limited* (Note 4)

LEREESERAR P 2020F3A6H
(Fri5E4)

Valleyfarm Holdings Hong Kong 21 January 2020
Limited (Note 2)

BRABERERRF Bk 202018218
(Fii5%2)

* English translated name is for identification only.

40.
Issued and fully
paid ordinary
share capital/
registered capital
BRTRER
LEREERMEX

RMB107,567,517
(2019: HK$7,200,000)

ARE107,567,5177C
(2019% : 7,200,000/ 7T)

HK$23,000,000

23,000,000/ 7T

RMB20,000,000

AE20,000,0007T

HK$7,500,000

7,500,000/ 7T

M A B EEE (@)

Attributable
equity
interest held
by the Company
ERAFEZ
IR

2020
20205

2019
2019

100% 100%

81% N/A
NEm

81% N/A

am

80% N/A

Nam

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Principal activities

TEEH

Manufacturing of packaging
materials of instant
noodles products

TENREBENH

Investment holding

REER

Importation and distribution
of food and beverages
products

EORD HERERARER

Trading of vegetable
products

s ir O
BERRER

—E_TFFER
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40. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES (zantinues) 40.
Notes:
1. Gangyongnan Food Products (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. and Zhuhai
Golden Coast Winner Food Products Limited are indirectly held by
the Company through Winner Food Products Limited.
2. These companies are directly held by the Company.
3. The subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company through Nissin
Foods (China) Holding Co., Ltd.
4. This subsidiary is indirectly held by the Company through Hong
Kong Eastpeak Limited.
5. Except for Zhuhai Golden Coast Winner Food Products Limited
which is a sino-foreign equity joint venture in the PRC, all other
PRC subsidiaries are wholly foreign-owned enterprises registered in
the PRC.
6. No debt securities have been issued by its subsidiaries as at 31
December 2020 and 2019.
The table below shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries
of the Company:
Proportion of equity

interest held by non-
controlling shareholders

FEHERR
BEZRELH
2020 2019
2020% 20195
Name of subsidiaries WEAREE
Zhuhai Golden Coast Winner Food HAMEERKERAER
Products Limited AH] 29.55% 29.55%
Other subsidiaries with individual E{ERIEA T EAI R
non-controlling interests which ExZMERT
is not material

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BERMABRAF

B A B RS ()

S -

1 BxmREmORY) BRARRIKETEE
FXEERERATEKEERERAT
BiEEA -

2 ZENRHARNREEEER

3 MELARBARTEBRBERR (FE) &K
BERRAFRERE -

4 MELRBARTEBEBRERR AR
BEHA -

5 BINEmEeEREXERMERAR/TE

ZHRNEEREI - AEEMPENBR
AYARTEEMZIINEBEEDRE -

6 A20204 % 2019128318 @ EMER
AN TERES o

TRIFARRRBEREMB AR ZFHE

Profit allocated to non- Accumulated non-
controlling shareholders controlling interests
DEFHEHM
RR 2R SRR
2020 2019 2020 2019

2020% 20195 20205 2019%
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TiEn TEL TR TEL

27,456 22,892 116,751 100,039

3,196 5,062 30,753 22,714

30,652 27,954 147,504 122,753



40.

PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES (zontinues) 40.

Information on non-wholly owned subsidiaries with
material non-controlling interests

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the
Company’s subsidiaries that has material non-controlling interests
is set out below. The summarised financial information below
represents amounts before intragroup eliminations prepared
under HKFRSs:

Zhuhai Golden Coast Winner Food Products Limited

D 24 B 1 0
BEEARFEFMERZFZEWEL
AzEH

REEBEAERIEH MR SMHB AR
2 E R BRI T X o LT R ERHE
ZERBEEEVHRE LR EERE
RIS

B EEFKERmMERAL A

Non-current assets ERBEE
Current assets MENVEE
Current liabilities MENAE
Non-current liabilities JEREAE

Equity attributable to owners of the Company ZAA FIEH A JEIG RS
Equity attributable to non-controlling interests JE4% i) 14 #2 25 JE (b HE 25

Revenue WA

Profit for the year F R A

Other comprehensive income (expense) FAEMRA ()
for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year FRZEBALERE

Profit for the year attributable to: IATATEIEERRT
— owners of the Company . VNCIEZZ =N

— IR R

— non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income for the year
attributable to:
— owners of the Company
— non-controlling interests

—RAFEEA
— e

Dividend recognised as distribution to non-
controlling interests

REEHEL 2R FHE

Net cash from operating activities

AT AT RIEFAZERALE

R RIS DR Z AR

Net cash (used in) from investing activities
Net cash used in financing activities

Net cash inflow

KREEH (M) Bz R
BERBAMAZIREFER

RemNHHE

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$°000 HK$'000
T FAET
184,836 181,004
382,610 303,661
(170,500) (142,829)
(1,850) (3,294)
395,096 338,542
278,345 238,503
116,751 100,039
395,096 338,542
594,537 554,063
92,913 77,471
26,613 (8,299)
119,526 69,172
65,457 54,579
27,456 22,892
92,913 77,471
84,206 48,739
35,320 20,433
119,526 69,172
18,608 15,174
131,521 64,019
(1,564) 8,696
(62,972) (51,352)
66,985 21,363

—E_TFFER
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41. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in
the Group's consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows
from financing activities.

M., MMEREESEZEEBEZHER

TRV AKERELDEL ZABEED
(BRASRIFRSEHY) 2FE - RELHY
EEXZABERRERESIRKRERER
AEEZHGARERERTEOBRRER
HRERE -

At 1 January 2019 M2019F1H1H
Financing cash flows BERERE
Exchange differences PE X ZERE

New leases entered RISETARAY
Interest expenses FERAE
Dividend declared EEIRKRE

At 31 December 2019 201912 A31H
Financing cash flows MERSNE
Exchange differences M N =58

New leases entered RISCETAEA)
Interest expenses BRI
Dividend declared EEIRE

At 31 December 2020

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | HIER S

£2020F 12 A31H

Lease Dividend
liabilities payable Total
HEEE BARE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T
1,064 17,200 18,264
(889) (121,877) (122,766)
412 412
1,552 - 1,552
64 64
- 119,439 119,439
1,791 15,174 16,965
(3,561) (140,916) (144,477)
- (980) (980)
18,328 - 18,328
116 - 116
- 145,330 145,330
16,674 18,608 35,282



42.

COMPANY’S FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following are the statement of financial position of the
Company as at 31 December 2020 and 2019:

Non-current Assets

Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets

Trademark

Investments in subsidiaries

Financial assets of FVTPL

Deposits paid for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment

Loan to a fellow subsidiary

Current Assets
Inventories
Trade receivables

Other receivables, prepayments and deposits
Amount due from ultimate holding company

Amounts due from subsidiaries
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries
Loan to a subsidiary

Financial asset at FVTPL

Other financial assets

Time deposits with maturity over three months

Bank balances and cash

8. TR ZEHBHEER

LA B ARFA20209F 2019412 A31H

Z ISR AR
2020
20204
HK$'000
T
EREBEE
M - BB R 436,061
EREEE 4,845
R 21,809
RBARZIEE 2,086,933
BEATEFABZZSMEE 32,828
UM ~ BB MR B iES
3,881
MR R EARER 10,968
2,597,325
REEE
FE 82,862
H 5 REUERK 2,895
HAbEWGRIE - FBRRIE RIS 10,190
FEM R A4 B A B SRR 826
FEU BB A BIFIA 76,393
B ES S YNGIE S 13,383
m—MEMEARER 15,000
BAFEFABZZSREE 197,069
HihSmEE -
@A EEHER 431,168
BITRBRIRE 301,130
1,130,916

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

2019
20194
HK$'000
FAT

459,460
5,028
25,040
2,062,303
27,698

3,081

2,582,610

80,654
2,362
13,647
1,023
116,198
1,653
32,000
397,819
156,630
46,003
271,535

1,119,524

—E_TFFER
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42.  COMPANY'S FINANCIAL INFORMATION /zantinues) 42.

FREAIZMBER @

20

Current Liabilities nREEE

Trade payables B S ENERR

Other payables and accruals HAbERRIEREE A
Amount due to ultimate holding company J+1‘J‘E*£“T WNCIE/OE]
Amounts due to subsidiaries ERHEA

Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries
Tax liabilities

ﬁ’%ﬁlﬁ%ﬁﬁ%’& ﬂfﬂlﬁ
HMIEEIE

Net Current Assets REEEFE
Total Assets less Current Liabilities HEERABAS
Capital and Reserves ERR G

Share capital [N

Reserves 15

Total Equity DB
Non-current Liability FRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities BERIEAE

The Company's statement of financial position was approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 18 March 2021

and are signed on its behalf of:

KIYOTAKA ANDO
RERE
DIRECTOR
EF

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BERMABRAF

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT Tt
27,349 21,647
97,501 118,640
25,566 21,959
26,411 22,789
2,105 3,067
5,104 -
184,036 188,102
946,880 931,422
3,544,205 3,514,032
2,941,441 2,941,441
572,817 546,021
3,514,258 3,487,462
29,947 26,570
3,544,205 3,514,032

ARRZMBHIRAREEFTEN202143A
18R HLER IR TSI M IA T ALTHERE

=z

SHINJI TATSUTANI
RAER
DIRECTOR
BE



42.  COMPANY’S FINANCIAL INFORMATION (zantinues) 8. KPRz BER @)

The followings are the movements in the Company'’s reserves: UTABRANT 2 #EEEE :
Shares
held for Share
Share Award award Retained
Scheme reserve profits Total
BRER S
2@ E BR A5
BEZRHG REFEE REEF #et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FAT FAT FAT
At 1 January 2019 20191 H1H (678) 252 508,587 508,161
Profit and total comprehensive 4 A% FI| & 2
income for the year WA 458 - - 139,690 139,690
Recognition of equity-settled RAERAEE LA
share-based payment B An R ER TR - 230 - 230
Dividend recognised as BERA/D KRS
distribution (Note 14) (FsE14) - - (102,060) (102,060)
At 31 December 2019 R2019F12A31H (678) 482 546,217 546,021
Profit and total comprehensive & A% F| & 2 T
income for the year WA LBE - - 152,402 152,402
Recognition of equity-settled — TEFRLAME = 4 B LANR
share-based payment 1 BEBER - 2,754 - 2,754
Share purchased from &1 SZEhE S8 T
secondary market under REMIGEE
share award scheme 0] abl (2,665) - - (2,665)
Share vested under share RAR I SR ED T &
award scheme =) ) 3,156 (3,236) 80 -
Dividend recognised as BRI BRE
distribution (Note 14) (F5E14) - - (125,695) (125,695)
At 31 December 2020 20209 12H31H (187) - 573,004 572,817

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 | —ZE T F &R



2020 2019 2018 2017 2016*

20204 20194 20184 20174 2016%*
FET FHET FHET FAT FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Results E
Revenue A 3,518,847 3,087,781 2,998,828 2,688,530 2,629,905
Profit before taxation BT BT 433,942 352,638 300,008 290,008 167,669
Income tax expense FRiSHif (101,378) (73,720) (69,426) (69,548) (60,517)
Profit for the year FE RN 332,564 278,918 230,582 220,460 107,152
Attributable to: AT ALFEM -
Owners of the Company AR EHA A 301,912 250,964 205,448 195,363 90,762
Non-controlling interest  FEF5 I MEAE RS 30,652 27,954 25,134 25,097 16,390
Total a5t 332,564 278,918 230,582 220,460 107,152
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016*
20204 20194 20184 20174 20165+
FET FH&T FHET FHT FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Total Assets BEBE 5,183,875 4,633,930 4,444,372 4,460,990 3,435,304
Total Liabilities BEERE (1,140,692) (921,612) (849,199) (909,916) (731,883)
Total equity TS ARER 4,043,183 3,712,318 3,595,173 3,551,074 2,703,421
Net current Assets MEEEFE 2,231,262 2,135,991 2,126,650 2,071,581 1,330,833
* Comparative figures of the results for the year ended 31 December 2016 * HZE2016F12 A31HILFE 2 EERA20165F
and assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2016 have not been restated 12A3MBZEENEBENLEERFTIESIINR
to reflect the impacts of the adoption of HKFRS 15, HKFRS 16 and HKFRS MERNE B SR E LR E 155 - BEMBRSE
9 as the directors are of the consider that it is costs over benefits to do so. ERIFE 16 R BBV HBRELENEIOFRZFE -

RAEER BB NEARRHE

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED B
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